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Sierra Cables PLC’s path has been defined by innovation and 
excellence. Our quest for excellence has positioned us towards 

a consistent growth trajectory. We have demonstrated resilience 
and strength by delivering a stellar performance in the financial 
year 2021/22 despite the adverse externalities. Our portfolio of 
products have played a pivotal role in the construction arena of 

the nation delivering reliability, safety and strength.

Leading the way as a truly Sri Lankan manufacturer with 
a superior array of products we are enthused to conquer 

greater horizons of success to deliver sustainable value to the 
stakeholders that we serve.



OUR
PURPOSE VISION

Being the bridge in energising 
the community.

MISSION
Achieve a continuous growth to enhance 
the stakeholder value while offering a 
high quality product.

Become a reputed organisation by 
promoting sustainable development.

Uplifting the living standards of the 
Sierra Cables family.

VALUES
As a responsible and ethical corporate citizen, 
Sierra Cables PLC conduct its affairs based on a 
set of values. Every member of the Sierra Cables 
family is committed to follow them.

STRATEGIC GOALS
Manufacture innovative product ranges and to 
be the pioneer in the cable industry.

To extend our footprint beyond Sri Lanka’s 
geographical boundaries.

To reduce the environmental impact by reducing 
the carbon footprint year-on-year.

CULTURE, ETHICS &  
CORPORATE VALUES
OUR CULTURE
We are proud of our culture of teamwork and cooperation 
which inspires our team of high achievers. We engender this 
ethos through knowledge - sharing, an inclusive approach 
to decision-making, ample learning and development 
opportunities and two-way communication and feedback.

A strictly implemented zero tolerance policy for discrimination 
based on religion, race, gender and ethnicity has given rise to 
a culture of equality and dignity for all.

OUR ETHICS

Our uncompromising ethics dictate the principles that form, 
the bedrock on which our stakeholders perceive us:

• Transparency and accountability
• Legal and regulatory compliance
• Honest and truthful dealings

CORPORATE VALUES

Pursuit of Excellence:
Every cable is manufactured to the highest quality standards.

Customer-centric:
Add value to customer experience by fulfilling their 
requirements.

Innovation:
Driving innovation

Environmental stewardship:
Operate responsibly to ensure minimal impact on the 
environment

Stakeholder engagement:
Pro-active and continuous engagement
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ABOUT SIERRA 
CABLES PLC

The company’s product quality and excellence has been 
recognized with a range of local and international quality 
certifications including ISO, Sri Lanka Standards (SLS) and 
other prestigious global certifications. All products are made 
with the highest quality raw materials and in compliance with 
the industry standards. 

As a leading player in the Cable manufacturing sector, 
Sierra Cables’ quality and trusted credentials have received 
multiple accolades over the years. During the year under 
review, Sierra Cables PLC was awarded Best Manufacturer 
of the year - in the large category at the South Asian 
Business Excellence Awards 2021 and Top Ten Winner - Best 
Management Practices Company Awards 2022 organized by 
the Institute of Chartered Professional Managers Sri Lanka.

Sierra Cables' workforce remains the most powerful asset 
that drives production capacities to their optimum level, 
and with a culture that shares successes as well as creates 
opportunities for growth, the management of Sierra Cables 
PLC ensures that employees work in an environment 
conducive to the best standard of safety and health 
parameters by facilitating the groundwork that brings out 
the best in employees across the facilities both here and 
within the international business operations.

Sierra Cables has established a strong presence in Sri 
Lankan and the overseas marketplace as a complete and 
comprehensive Power Cables supplier for the residential, 
commercial and industrial sectors during the last decades. 
The company is a leader in the manufacturing, marketing 
and distribution of Copper and Aluminum Cable products for 
the energy, industrial, specialty and communications sectors.

Sierra Cables’ main manufacturing facility is based in 
Kaduwela and the sprawling state-of-the-art manufacturing 
plant is equipped with the latest technology in cable 
manufacturing. The Company was established in 1999 and 
subsequently listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange in 
November 2005.

Our Manufacturing Plant in Kaduwela, Sri Lanka.

Sierra Cables has grown venturing into prospective 
cross-border markets such as Kenya and Fiji. Its overseas 
Companies – Sierra Cables East Africa Limited and Cables 
PTE Limited add to the company’s growing presence 
within the international market, driving Sierra Cables PLC 
forward in capturing new markets. In addition, Sierra 
Industries (Private) Limited, another subsidiary engages in 
manufacturing and marketing of high-quality uPVC pipes and 
fittings using modern technology. 

Best Manufacturer - 
South Asian Business 
Excellence Award

Top Ten Winner - 
Best Management Practices 

Company Award
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FINANCIAL 
HIGHLIGHTS (GROUP)
Financials Year ended 31st March 2022 2021

Rs. Rs.

Net Turnover 8,257,835,280 5,498,555,123

Gross Profit 1,544,135,340 880,957,894

Profit from Operations 1,078,940,198 495,404,118

Profit After Tax 471,680,985 319,961,155

Issued and fully paid Number of Shares 537,512,430 537,512,430

Total Assets 8,070,655,345 6,649,994,852

Return on Equity (ROE) 12% 12%

Per Share (Rs.)

Market Value - Highest 18.50 10.60

 - Lowest 5.50 1.60

 - Last Traded 6.80 5.70

Earnings 0.87 0.60

Net Assets Value 7.01 5.03

Net Turnover
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Rs. 8.3 Bn 
	 Net	Profit	

Rs. 472 Mn
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1999
Incorporation
Sierra Cables Limited was 
incorporated as a legal entity 
in 1999.

2005
Public Listing
Obtained the public listing on 
the Colombo Stock Exchange 
(CSE) through an Initial Public 
Offering (IPO).

2009
CNCI Industrial Excellence 
Gold Award
Sierra Cables PLC won the 
Gold Award for excellence 
in industrial sector 
enhanced quality standards, 
productivity, employee 
benets and relations.

2011
Best Cable Manufacturer of 
the Year
UDC International 
Business Awards 2011 in 
recognition of innovation, 
product development and 
sustainability Sierra Industries 
(Pvt) Ltd., a subsidiary of 
Sierra Cables PLC engaged 
in the manufacturing and 
distribution of uPVC pipes 
and ttings.

2015
Kenya Market Entry

Our very first Power Cable manufacturing 
plant outside Sri Lanka, Sierra Cables East 

Africa Limited, mainly focusing on emerging 
East African Region.

2016
FIJI Market Entry

Accessed Pacific Islands, Australia, New 
Zealand markets through a joint venture, 

Cables PTE Limited located in Fiji islands.

2019
In-house Solar Cable Manufacturing

Started manufacturing Solar cables in-house 
obtaining SLS 1542 Certication.

Annual Report Silver
Won Silver Award for the First Integrated 

Annual Report at CA Sri Lanka 55th Annual 
Report Awards.

2018
Manufacturing FR Cables

Manufacturing of Fire Resistance Cable 
obtaining certifications from laboratories in 

Singapore, India and France.

2021
Best Manufacturer of the year

Large Category South Asian Business 
Excellence awards

2022
Highest Revenue and Profit 

Recorded Rs. 8.3 Bn Revenue and 
Profit after Tax of Rs. 472 Mn

2017
NCE Export Award

Won the Bronze Award for Industry Sector - 
Extra Large Category.

2010
Quality Crown Award
Won BID Quality Crown 
Award based on QC100 Total 
Quality Management (TQM) 
model of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN’S 
MESSAGE

“DESPITE THE CHALLENGING EXTERNAL CONDITIONS SIERRA 
CABLES PLC JOURNEYED ON TO DELIVER EXCEPTIONAL RESULTS 
WITH ITS UNWAVERING FOCUS OF DELIVERING SUPERIOR VALUE TO 
ITS STAKEHOLDERS.”

Mr. W. A. P. Perera
Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to welcome you to the 19th Annual General 
Meeting of Sierra Cables PLC and place before you the 
Annual Report of the Company which provides a balanced 
view of the performance of the Company for the financial 
year ended 31st March 2022. During the financial year we 
underwent many challenges with the lingering impact of 
COVID-19 and its consequences on people, society and 
the economy. Despite the tough times, we were able to 
strengthen our Company and made every effort to overcome 
all the challenges. I am proud of the fortitude of my 
colleagues and other stakeholders who have rallied together 
to steer through the tough times and deliver sustainable 
outcomes. Our purpose guides us to work towards a 
sustainable future that ensures environmental sustainability, 
good governance, community development and socio-
economic growth.

These factors enabled the Group to record a Profit After 
Tax of Rs. 472 Mn being the highest ever in the history of its 
operations demonstrating its resilience and adaptability to 
deliver value to its stakeholders. The Group outperformed its 
previously established topline performance levels recording 
Rs. 8.3 Bn, a 50% growth over the last financial year.

External Environment
As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic lockdowns and mobility 
restrictions the economy experienced a slowdown during the 
first half of the year. However, towards the latter part of the 
year, as a result of the successful vaccination campaigns and 
health and safety protocols there was a revival in business 
activity and the Sri Lankan economy grew in real terms by 
3.7% in 2021, compared to the 3.6% contraction recorded 
in the preceding year. All three key sectors of the economy 
recorded growth during the year, with a notable growth of 
5.3% arising from the industry sector while the agriculture and 
service sectors grew by 2% and 3% respectively.

However, the country remained under pressure due to the 
surmounting debt obligations and widening trade deficit. 
High dependance on imports of fuel compounded by the 
increasing oil and gas prices and losses of state-owned 
enterprises in the energy sector resulted in upward revision 
of fuel and gas prices during the year. Inflation increased 
sharply in the second half of the financial year, reaching 18.7% 
by March 2022, driven by increases in both food and non-
food inflation. Consequently, disposable incomes dwindled 
creating significant economic hardship for people leading 
to social unrest, political instability and the beginning of a 
challenging period for the country.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Construction activity gained momentum during the first few 
months of the year, particularly as interest rates remained low, 
driving positive demand. However, towards the latter part of 
the year with the government’s weakening financial situation 
some of the major infrastructure projects faced temporary 
halts and delays. Furthermore, significant rises in raw material 
prices and the downward spiraling local currency impacted 
cost of sales and profit margins. Power outages, transportation 
issues due to fuel shortages and supply chain disruptions 
further impeded the industry’s full growth potential. Against 
this backdrop, the Company was required to be proactive 
in foreign currency funding to ensure smooth raw material 
importation while ensuring uninterrupted production.

Aligning our Strategy
Despite the challenging external conditions the Company 
journeyed on to deliver exceptional results with its unwavering 
focus of delivering superior value to its stakeholders. 
Business models are changing globally at an increasing 
intensity post COVID - 19 while at the same time our roles 
as business leaders have been transforming. In line with this, 
this year we undertook a strategic review reflecting on how 
we can do more to address socio-economic transformation 
and sustainability to ensure our business remains relevant 
in a changing context. Aligning our strategies to pursue 
opportunities for growth amidst the challenges allowed us to 
expand our horizon and accomplish the outcomes we set out 
to achieve.

Behind this strategic transformation there is a group of 
dedicated employees who work day in and day out to realize 
our vision. Accordingly, we made sure that our team was well 
looked after and continued to provide full compensation 
without any deductions despite the challenging conditions. 
Our focus on building a multi skilled workforce remained a 
top priority and thus we ensured that we provided the right 
opportunities for skill development and professional growth.

“WITH CAREFUL PLANNING, 
THE CHALLENGES THAT COME 
OUR WAY CAN BE TURNED 
INTO OPPORTUNITIES AND BE 
CATALYSTS FOR GROWTH. I AM 
CONFIDENT THAT MY TEAM WILL 
RISE TO THE CHALLENGE.”

Governance Changes
The Company has continuously complied with the highest 
ethical and governance standards and ensured sustainable 
value to its stakeholders. The Board continued to work 
closely with the corporate leadership team to assess the 
consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of 
the external economic pressures on business operations and 
responded efficiently to pressing issues.

Way Forward
On the back of a successful financial year amidst the aftermath 
of the COVID-19 pandemic and a weakening domestic 
economy, we need to prepare ourselves for yet another 
challenging year ahead.

I am pleased with the progress we are making, but we 
recognize that there is more to do and from a company 
standpoint it is critical that we pro-actively take measures to 
overcome the challenges of the current economic crisis the 
country is undergoing. It is critical that the country reaches a 
state of political stability and brings financial obligations to a 
sustainable level and I remain hopeful that this will become a 
reality. With careful planning the challenges that come our way 
can be turned into opportunities and be catalysts for growth 
and I am confident that my team will rise to the challenge. 
We hope to explore the export market with more vigor while 
focusing on local market and product development to initiate 
positive change and transformation across our operations.

Appreciations
I wish to express my sincere appreciation to my colleagues 
on the Board for being a source of great support, for their 
astute guidance and foresight during this challenging year. 
I also thank our Chief Executive Officer for the inspiration 
he provides and his outstanding leadership, as well as the 
Management Team in navigating the Company to where it is 
today. A special word of thanks goes out to the dynamic and 
dedicated employees of the Company. It is their hard work, 
determination and discipline that has enabled us to achieve 
beyond our expectations and there is no doubt that we are 
well-positioned to reach even greater heights together in the 
coming years. Finally, I would like to extend my gratitude to 
our customers and all other stakeholders for placing their trust 
in us, as we continue to deliver value amid a rapidly changing 
environment.

Mr. W. A. P. Perera
Chairman

31st August 2022
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER’S MESSAGE

“CONSIDERING THE UNSURMOUNTABLE CHALLENGES FACED 
DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW, THE STELLAR PERFORMANCE 
RECORDED DURING THIS YEAR EXEMPLIFIES THE GROUP’S 
UNWAVERING FOCUS AND COMMITMENT TOWARDS VALUE 
CREATION AND IT’S RELENTLESS PURSUIT OF EXCELLENCE DESPITE 
THE ODDS FACED.”

Mr. Harsha Jayatunga
Chief Executive Officer

Dear Stakeholders,

I wish to place before you the Annual Report of Sierra Cables 

PLC for the year ended 31st March 2022. The Company 

navigated its way through, yet another challenging year. 

The financial year under review was overshadowed by 

uncertainty and disruptions. The first half of the year was 

marked by the pandemic whilst the second half of the year 

was inundated with economic challenges in the business 

landscape. Despite these headwinds the Group demonstrated 

remarkable resilience and strength displaying stellar 

performance levels thus delivering on its commitment to 

deliver sustainable value to its stakeholders whilst upholding 

the highest levels of confidence and trust.

A Resilient Financial performance
Moving on with the momentum gained in the preceding 

year, with its trail blazing group performance, the Group was 

successful in recording a group profit after tax of Rs. 472 Mn 

generating an increase of 50% over the preceding year. Despite 

the challenges caused by macro-economic factors, the company 

managed to record a substantial revenue and profit which was 

the highest in the history of its operation. The gradual transition 

towards normalcy following the pandemic and implementing 

focused sales strategies were the main impetus to drive 

enhanced turnover and profitability levels.

The Company achieved a commendable performance amidst 

a challenging business landscape, achieving a Profit After 

Tax (PAT) of Rs. 374 Mn, a significant increase of 26% over 

the previous year, recording the highest ever profit since the 

inception. In addition, gross profit increased by 68% over the 

previous year, and the company’s Profit Before Interest and Tax 

(PBIT) increased by 108% during the period compared to the 

financial year 2020/21.

The significant depreciation of the Rupee against the US 

Dollar and higher inflation led to an increase in the cost 

structures of the Company. The finance costs recorded a 

significant increase by 252% mainly due to the currency 

fluctuations and higher lending rates which prevailed during 

the financial year.
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Despite the increase in copper, aluminum and other key 

raw material prices in the global market along with the 

unfavorable exchange rate increase, the company was 

successful in optimizing its margins by recording a remarkable 

improvement in its both topline and bottomline recording the 

highest ever revenue and profit after tax.

The key strategies implemented were realigning our 
sales model, pursuing more aggressive collection plans, 
encouraging more cash on deliveries, stringent monitoring 
and reducing credit periods to improve our cash flows. With 
the Company’s revenue generation from the state sector 
client’s being affected due to the unfavourable economic 
situation, extra efforts were required in terms of the collection 
of dues.

To overcome the foreign exchange crisis and other limitations 
of the current economic context, we developed competencies 
to meet international standards with the view of catering to 
other regions, especially the African region through export 
markets. To this end we have taken initiative to enhance our 
export credibility and are currently working towards obtaining 
the Certificate of Ethical Trading (CET) from the National 
Chamber of Exporters of Sri Lanka.

Considering the unsurmountable challenges faced during 
the year under review, the stellar performance recorded 
during this year exemplifies the Group’s unwavering focus and 
commitment towards value creation and its relentless pursuit 
of excellence despite the odds faced.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REVIEW

“DURING THE YEAR, 
A COMPREHENSIVE 
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT 
SYSTEM COMPRISING OF 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES WAS 
INTRODUCED TO INTEGRATE 
SUSTAINABILITY INTO OUR 
BUSINESS OPERATIONS.”

Creating Value
Amidst the challenging business externalities, the Company 
demonstrated an entrepreneurial approach along with 
astute business strategies which enabled the Company to 
generate value.

Timely strategic investments along with innovation paved the 
way for the Company to create a solid platform of growth. 
This enabled us to accelerate growth and leverage emerging 
opportunities in the market. These timely investments are 
aimed towards strengthening our product offering while 
gaining our competitive advantage.

The Company moved ahead with the second phase of the 
Artificial Intelligence (AI) technology project. This project 
enables us to monitor the manufacturing operations to 
generate greater efficiencies in production scheduling and 
planning to improve process efficiency levels, reduce wastage 
in factory operations and eliminate labor-intensive processes. 
Furthermore, in recognition of the rising demand for solar 
energy, the Company set up a plant to exclusively manufacture 
photovoltaic cables with inhouse tinning facilities. As the first 
local manufacturer of solar cables with SLS certification, Sierra 
Cables gains the competitive edge in a lucrative segment 
which will derive many benefits in the years ahead.

Our People – Our Strength
The Sierra Cables team continues to be one of the most 
critical pillars of our success. The team over the years has 
demonstrated its resilience and dedication despite the 
challenging externalities. Our team performed admirably 
demonstrating dedication amidst the challenges and 
limitations of the pandemic. Despite the challenging 
externalities in the construction sector, the Company ensured 
all employees were well cared for. Thus, the Company did not 
resort to any layoffs, redundancies or pay-cuts. Employees 
were provided with the necessary facilities to work from 
home whilst ensuring all health and safety protocols were 
adhered to across all our operations. With the pandemic 
conditions easing the Company held several employee 
engagement initiatives to elevate and enrich the employee 
experience further. Training and development initiatives were 
also conducted during the year to ensure that all employees 
were provided with re-skilling and up-skilling opportunities to 
further develop their skills and competencies.
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Commitment to ESG Principles
During the year a comprehensive environmental 

management system comprising of policies and procedures 

was introduced to integrate sustainability into our business 

operations. Thus, we have introduced environmentally 

responsible and socially equitable consumption of natural 

resources into the business operations.

We are deeply committed towards Environmental, Social and 

Governance (ESG) sustainability. A strong ESG commitment 

pervades across all segments of our operations as we strive 

to maintain the highest standards of ethics and integrity, 

including our dedication to the environment and our approach 

to maintain sustainable practices across all our operations. 

We maintain the highest standards of professionalism in 

all aspects of our businesses and have consistently given 

back to the communities and individuals to create a positive 

social and environmental impact. The Company has in many 

instances responded to the national needs. During the year, 

we pursued several environmentally friendly initiatives such as 

recovering energy through micro machines and switching over 

to LED lighting. Further we have introduced energy efficient 

production processes in a bid to enhance energy consumption 

levels.

This year too we continued our tree plantation programs in 
support of environmental preservation and planted over 300 
fruit plants in the factory premises.

Our Way Forward
Sierra Cables continues its trail blazing journey as a local 
manufacturer which has pursued innovative strategies to 
maintain its growth momentum. Our innovative products 
which have been well received by the market thus far bear 
testimony to our success and market acceptance. Along with 
world class products our strong distribution network adds 
further credence to our business strength.

Having garnered a significant market presence locally, we 
hope to pursue our growth strategy by expanding to global 
markets such as the African region. We have laid the necessary 
groundwork to cater the international buyers who wish to take 
advantage of duty-free entry from Africa to western nations. 
Cables PTE Limited, is a joint venture company located in Fiji, 
to which Sierra Cables supplies technical support by way of 

an experienced technical labour force. Cables PTE is focusing 
on the pacific region and increased the sales volumes rapidly 
over the last few years. We believe that these inroads to 
global markets will enable us to position Sri Lankan expertise 
and capabilities along with our world - class products in the 
international sphere, thus generating much needed foreign 
currency to the country.

We further hope to pursue the market segments in the pipe 
industry through Sierra Industries (Pvt) Ltd and tap profitable 
niche cable markets through solar cables and customized 
cables built to specifications. We are confident that we 
possess the required capabilities, strategy, and resources to 
achieve greater strides through our entry into global markets 
thereby delivering long-term returns for our shareholders.

A Note of Appreciation
I express my sincere appreciation to the Chairman and the 
members of the Board for their wise counsel in charting the 
strategic direction of the Company amidst the unprecedented 
challenges. I take this opportunity to recognize the dedicated 
and committed Sierra Cables team for their unstinted 
contribution to take the Company to new horizons of growth. 
I wish to extend a warm thank you to our valued customers, 
dealers, suppliers, financial partners and other stakeholders 
who have extended their continued support and continue to 
place their trust in the Company.

Mr. Harsha Jayatunga
Chief Executive Officer

31st August 2022
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BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

  

Non-Executive Director Executive Director Executive Director
Appointed on 11th Feb 2022

MR. W.A.P. PERERA - Chairman MR. D.S. PANDITHA MR. P. WEERASINGHA

Non- Executive Director
Appointed on 11th Feb 2022

MS. S.S. KOTAKADENIYA

Independent Non-Executive DirectorNon- Executive Director Independent Non-Executive DirectorIndependent Non-Executive Director

PROF. A.K.W. JAYAWARDANEMS. T.A.P. WEERASINGHE MR. B.W.N. RUPASINGHEMR. P.E.A.B. PERERA

Non- Executive Director
Appointed on 6th June 2022

MR. D.S.K. AMARASEKERA
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MR. W.A.P. PERERA - CHAIRMAN
Non-Executive Director

Mr. W.A.P. Perera is a founder Director of Sierra Construction 
(Private) Limited and serves as the Chairman of Sierra Cables 
PLC. He accounts for over 40 years of experience in the 
construction industry.

MR. D.S. PANDITHA
Executive Director

Mr. D.S. Panditha is a Executive Director of Sierra Cables 
PLC. He is a member of Institute of Incorporated Engineers, 
Life member of the Sri Lanka Institute of Marketing and 
also a fellow member of Chartered Institute of Professional 
Managers. At present, Mr. Panditha is a Vice Chairman of the 
Ceylon National Chamber of Industries Sri Lanka. He has over 
47 years’ experience in the Cable and Pipe industry.

MR. P. WEERASINGHA – Appointed on 11th Feb 2022

Executive Director

Mr. Panduka is an alma mater from S.Thomas’ College, Mt. 
Lavinia and holds an MBA from University of Los Angeles, 
California. He has more than 25 years of experience in proven 
leadership roles and has previously worked with companies 
such as Ceyoka (Pvt) Ltd., BASF Lanka (Pvt) Ltd., Brown 
& Company PLC, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC, Lanka Walltiles 
PLC, Nivasie Developers and International Construction 
Consortium. He has also been providing Consultancy services 
to mercantile institutions. Mr. Panduka is a strategist with a 
proven track record for change management in the Corporate 
world in Sri Lanka. He is the CEO of Browns Investments PLC. 
He is also The CEO / Executive Director of Iconic Trust (Pvt) 
Ltd and an Executive Director of its subsidiaries namely, Agstar 
PLC, Sierra Ready Mix (Pvt) Ltd, Sansun Boutique Hotels Ltd, 
Sierra Developments Ltd and Tiasa Construction (Pvt) Ltd. He 
is also a Director of LOLC Geo Technologies (Pvt) Ltd, Browns 
Metal & Sands (Pvt) Ltd and Browns Properties (Pvt) Ltd.

MS. S.S. KOTAKADENIYA – Appointed on 11th Feb 2022

Non- Executive Director

Ms. Sunjeevani is a fellow member of Chartered Institute 
of Management Accountants (UK), Chartered Global 
Management Accountant (USA) and holds a Masters in 
Business Administration from the University of Colombo. 
A senior Finance professional with extensive experience 
in General Management and in Finance and Financial 
management practices in the financial services sector and 
other industries. She has more than twenty years of senior 
management experience holding key positions in the 
Financial services industry, Insurance, Finance Companies, 
Factoring, Fund Management, Unit Trusts and Stock Broking.

Her exposure into the non-financial services sector spans from 
Leisure, Trading, Manufacturing, Construction, Agriculture 
and Plantations to the IT services industries. She holds several 
board positions representing these industries. Sunjeevani 
is a catalyst in change management, restructures, mergers, 
acquisitions and project management. She has taken 
leadership in strategic change, driving organisations to 
leading positions.

She currently holds the position of Chief Financial Officer, 
LOLC Group, overseeing the finance functions for the group 
locally and internationally. She also performs the overall 
business management role for Brown Investments PLC and 
its subsidiaries and holds Director positions in several LOLC 
Group companies including regulated and listed entities.

MR. P. E A. B. PERERA
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Buwanekabahu Perera is a veteran Professional Banker 
with 41 years of experience serving in the Financial Sector 
in Sri Lanka with an established reputation as a prominent 
leader in Corporate Banking. Mr. Perera worked for over 14 
years as the Head of Corporate Banking in the capacity of 
Senior Vice President at National Development Bank PLC, 
having previously worked at Deutsche Bank AG, Sampath 
Bank PLC and Banque Indosuez in the early part of his 
career. His qualifications include a BSc (Hon) in Financial 
Services from the University of Manchester, UK, a Post 
Graduate Diploma - Bank Financial Management, University 
of Sri Jayawardenapura, Associate Member of Certified 
Management Accountants, Sri Lanka and The Chartered 
Institute of Bankers, UK. He is also a passed finalist of the 
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA). 
Mr. Perera is a past President of The Association of 
Professional Bankers, Sri Lanka 2008/09.

Currently he is an Independent Non-Executive Director of 
Cargills Bank Ltd. and Deputy Chairman / Executive Director 
at Sierra Construction Ltd.

MS. T.A.P. WEERASINGHE
Non- Executive Director

Holding a Bachelor’s of Science in Management from the 
University of London, Ms. Tashali Perera Weerasinghe counts 
more than 15 years of experience in the construction sector 
whilst being attached to Sierra Holdings (Pvt) Ltd from the 
year 2006 to 2021. She is a Non-Executive Director of AgStar 
PLC. She is also a Director of Iconic Trust (Pvt) Ltd and its 
subsidiaries namely, Tiasa Construction (Pvt) Ltd, Sansun 
Boutique Hotels Ltd, Sierra Ready Mix (Pvt) Ltd and an 
Executive Director of Sierra Developments Ltd.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PROF. A.K.W. JAYAWARDANE
Independent Non-Executive Director

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane is a Senior Professor in Civil 
Engineering and a past Vice - Chancellor of the University 
of Moratuwa. He is an academic, a researcher and a 
consultant with experience and expertise in the broad 
areas of construction management, project management, 
technology management and entrepreneurship. He has 
extensive experience in organisation leadership and corporate 
governance. He has been a past Director General of the 
National Science Foundation and has served/is serving 
in governing boards of several public and private sector 
corporate entities. He has a BSc Eng in Civil Engineering with 
first class honors, from the University of Moratuwa, MSc in 
Construction, Loughborough University of Technology, United 
Kingdom and a PhD from the same University. 
He is a Past President and a Fellow of the Institution of 
Engineers, Sri Lanka, a Fellow of National Academy of 
Sciences Sri Lanka, a Fellow of the Institute of Project 
Managers, life member of Sri Lanka Association for 
Advancement of Science and a founding member of the 
Society of Structural Engineers, Sri Lanka. He is also a 
Graduate Member of Sri Lanka Institute of Directors.

MR. B.W.N. RUPASINGHE
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. B.W.N. Rupasinghe is a Chartered Electrical Engineer 
by profession with a BSc Eng (Hon) degree in Electrical & 
Electronics from the University of Peradeniya. He is a Fellow 
of the Institution of Engineering & Technology, UK. He is a 
holder of an MSc Degree in Electrical Power Transmission 
and Distribution from the University of Manchester Institute 
of Science & Technology, UK and a MA Degree in Economics. 
He is a former General Manager of Central Engineering and 
Consultancy Bureau.

MR. D.S.K. AMARASEKERA – Appointed on 6th June 2022

Non- Executive Director

Mr. Kamantha Amarasekera is a member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and is an Attorney-at-Law 
of the Supreme Court of Sri Lanka. He also holds a degree 
in Business Administration from the University of 
Sri Jayewardenepura and began his career in the year 1998. 
Mr. Amarasekera is an eminent Tax Consultant and the Senior 
Tax and Legal Partner of M/s. Amarasekera & Company, 
a leading tax consultancy firm in the country. Other key 
appointments: Director - Kelani Tyres PLC, Lanka Milk Foods 
(CWE) PLC, Madulsima Plantations PLC, Balangoda Plantations 
PLC, Eden Hotel Lanka PLC, Ceylon Hotels Corporation 
PLC, Palm Garden Hotels PLC, AgStar PLC, Serendib Hotels 
PLC, Dolphin Hotels PLC, Hotel Sigiriya PLC, Hapugastenne 
Plantations PLC, Udapussellawa Plantations PLC and several 
other subsidiaries of Browns Investments Group.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS

The year under review was full of milestones. Over the 
years, we have calibrated our path of progress defining our 

strengths to position ourselves in a competitive manner. 
We are well positioned to lead the way by actioning 
sustainable progress across our portfolio of products.
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Global Economy
The global economy experienced a rebound in the aftermath 
of the recurring waves of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2021. 
The steady roll-out of vaccination programs allowed the 
world’s major economies to pull back COVID-19 restrictions 
during most parts of the year. However, while advanced 
economies illustrated a stabilising trend with widely spread, 
high vaccination rates and considerable fiscal support, 
emerging markets and developing economies suffered due 
to a lack of political support as well as tightening of financial 
conditions. This tentative global recovery in 2021 however, was 
followed by a downward tug in 2022 with the onset of higher 
risks subsequent to Russia’s invasion of Ukraine and the global 
effects on commodity markets, supply chains, inflation, and 
financial conditions.

Sri Lankan Economy
The Sri Lankan economy recovered in 2021 recording a 3.7% 
growth in GDP, from the pandemic instigated contraction 
experienced during the prior year driven by a revival in 
economic activity and a gradual easing of pandemic related 
limitations. All three major economic activities - Services, 
Industry and Agriculture recorded moderate positive growth 
rates of 3%, 5.3% and 2% respectively. The macro-economic 
policies presented by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka (CBSL) 
and the Government also supported this economic recovery 
while also aiding to soften the impact of the pandemic on a 
broader segment of stakeholders. Both public and private 
sector organisations enjoyed the benefit of low-cost funds for 
working capital and investment that helped them stay afloat 
during this challenging time and keep businesses viable. 
These factors coupled with the successful vaccination drive 
and favourable weather conditions helped steer the economy 
towards a path of recovery.

However, with a few deep-rooted economic issues and 
vulnerabilities stemming from the previous couple of decades 
coming to the forefront, the country began experiencing 
severe socio-political stresses during 2022. Challenges on 
the external financing position and related foreign exchange 
liquidity constraints, together with inflationary stresses, 
exerted significant pressure on the economy.

The country’s trade deficit increased to USD 8.1 Bn in 2021 
from USD 6 Bn in 2020 despite the restrictions imposed 
on non-essential goods, with the accelerating import bill 
off-setting the favourable export earnings. The decline in 
remittances and tourism receipts intensified the country’s 
economic woes leading to the current account deficit 
widening to USD 3.3 Bn during the year under review.

The Sri Lankan Rupee remained broadly stable throughout 
2021 and in the early part of 2022, supported by the CBSL’s 
intervention to stabilise the USD/LKR within the range of 
200-203. However, with the adoption of the flexible exchange 
rate regime by the CBSL in mid-March 2022, the currency 
witnessed a steep depreciation. Consequently, the Sri Lankan 
Rupee, which depreciated by a mere 7% in 2021, plummeted 
32% to hit a record low of Rs. 299 against the USD by end-
March 2022.

Economic growth
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Construction Sector
The construction industry was one of the hardest hit sectors 
with the outbreak of the pandemic and the subsequent 
lockdowns, not just in Sri Lanka but across the globe. 
However, reinforced by the renewed demand for real estate 
and housing, and the recommencement of projects, the 
country’s construction value-added picked up by 1.9% in 
2021, recovering from the contraction of 13.2% recorded 
in 2020. Yet, business surveys related to construction 
activities conducted by the CBSL indicated that supply-side 
disturbances, especially the limitations in key raw materials 
such as cement, steel and tiles, as well as the rapid price 
increases impeded the pace of recovery and the full potential 
of the industry.

Credit to the private sector granted by Licensed Commercial 
Banks for construction activities, including personal housing 
construction activities, also recorded a growth as at the 
end of the 2021, denoting an increased availability of funds 
for construction activities. However, the third wave of the 
pandemic which emerged during the second and third 
quarters of the year and the prolonged disruptions to global 
and local supply chains adversely impacted construction 
related activities. Added to this, the expatriation of Sri Lankan 
professionals and skilled staff has created a scarcity of skilled 
labour within the country which is a challenge that the local 
construction sector has been dealing with for more than a 
decade.

Despite these circumstances, the newly introduced tax regime 
and the initiatives taken by the Government to engage with 
the International Monetary Fund are expected to help stabilize 
the country’s fiscal position creating a positive influence 
on the construction industry. The Government’s plans to 
secure investment for the Port City Development Project and 
various other large scale development projects may revive 
construction activities, contributing to the growth of the 
overall industry sector.

Accordingly, while looking to seize emerging opportunities 
in the local market, Sierra Cables PLC will continue to 
ambitiously explore new export opportunities to leverage 
global demand during these challenging times for the nation, 
to play its part in contributing towards economic recovery.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Following a challenging business environment, Sierra 
Cables PLC recorded an outstanding performance during 
the financial year 2021/22 and maintained best practices 
in financial management to achieve the Company’s 
short- to long-term strategic business objectives. We 
explored and invested in enhancing value, giving due 
consideration towards inclusivity of the wider community 
and the environment. The financial review set out herein 
demonstrates the financial performance and position of the 
Company for the year ended 31st March 2022.

Turnover
In 2021/22, the Group generated a highest ever total revenue 
of Rs. 8.3 billion, a 50% increase over the previous year, 
while the company recorded a total revenue of Rs. 7.8 billion 
which is also the highest in its history. Revenue growth was 
comparatively higher in the first two quarters than in the 
second half of the year. Higher revenue was primarily the 
result of implementing focused sales strategies and consistent 
efforts to penetrate the market. In the future, the Group will 
be positioned to be both flexible and adaptable in the context 
of Sri Lanka’s ongoing volatile economic conditions, in order 
to mitigate any negative effects on the business.

Turnover

2021/222020/212019/202018/192017/182016/17

Rs. (Mn)

Earnings before Interest and Tax (EBIT)
Throughout the year, rising raw material prices, freight costs, 
and utility costs presented additional challenges, However, 
the Group was able to mitigate these effects to the greatest 
extent possible by increasing capacity and efficiency through 
its operational excellence approaches.

The Group achieved a gross profit of Rs. 1.5 Bn in 2021/22, 
which reflects an increase of 75% as a result of innovative and 
focused sales strategies. Other income mainly comprises of 
Solar Power income and Scrap Material sales of Rs. 23 Mn and 
Rs. 17 Mn respectively.

During the year under review, the selling and distribution 
cost increased by 14% to Rs. 277 Mn and administration cost 
increased by 5% to Rs. 176 Mn from Rs. 167 Mn recorded 
in the previous year. The increase was mainly due to the 
increase in staff costs coupled with the higher inflation 
prevailing in the country. However, the Company continued 
the implementation of cost control measures throughout 
the period to reduce costs and control overheads wherever 
possible.

Accordingly, Group EBIT growth recorded an increase of over 
100% and reached Rs. 1.08 Bn in financial year 2021/22 from 
Rs. 500 Mn in previous financial year.

Earnings before interest and tax

2021/222020/212019/202018/192017/182016/17

Rs. (Mn)

Profit	After	Tax	(PAT)
The Group’s consolidated profit after tax for the year reached 
a significant milestone of Rs. 472 Mn. Despite the external 
economic challenges, this represents a 47% increase in net 
profit compared to the previous financial year. The Group also 
achieved a 5.7% net profit margin.

Even though there was a substantial profit before taxes, the 
PAT was negatively affected by net finance cost of Rs. 516 
Mn which reflects a 198% increase compared to the previous 
financial year due to higher exchange losses and interest 
expenses. The Company’s corporate tax rate remains at 18% 
and recorded a tax expense of Rs. 112 Mn in 2021/22.

Profit after tax

2021/222020/212019/202018/192017/182016/17

Rs. (Mn)
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Earnings per Share (EPS)
Reflecting the Group’s outstanding performance, earnings per 
share of Rs. 0.87 was delivered during the year compared to 
Rs. 0.6 in 2020/21.

EPS

2021/222020/212019/202018/192017/182016/17

Rs.

Net assets per Share (NPS)
As a result of increased profits and the surpluses created 
by the revaluation of land and buildings and vehicle, the 
Group’s NPS increased to Rs. 7.01 by the end of the current 
financial year.

Net asset per share

2021/222020/212019/202018/192017/182016/17

Rs.

Return on Equity
The group maintained its steady operating results during the 
financial year amidst the challenging business environment 
where a positive 12% Return on Equity was recorded. 

Return on Equity

2021/222020/212019/202018/192017/182016/17

%
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OUR CUSTOMERS AND 
KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The strong ties we maintain with our customers, suppliers, business partners and regulator as 
well as the community are an integral element of our eco-system and our strategy formulation 
process. These relationships help our business thrive in a responsible and sustainable way, positively 
impacting our corporate reputation. Thus, we actively engage with them to understand and address 
their needs.

Customers
We strive to excel in service quality, experience and delivery 
as the satisfaction and trust of our customers underpins our 
success. Accordingly, we evolve our products, services and 
processes to cater to the changing needs of our customers. 
Regular market research and engagement with customers 
through feedback from our sales force, employees and other 
business partners, are key methods that we use to provide 
optimal service delivery.

Delivering high quality products
Being a key player in the manufacturing sector we place 
utmost importance on maintaining the quality and 
trustworthiness of our products. We adhere to strict quality 
standards and protocols throughout our entire value chain, 
commencing from the procurement of raw materials, 

Our customer segments

Institutional Category
Caters to Government 
tenders – such as 
Ceylon Electricity Board 
(CEB) for national 
electrification projects – 
and Telecommunication 
providers

Exports Market
Spans over 10 global 
destinations including 
the Maldives, Ethiopia, 
Kenya, Rwanda, 
Seychelles, Fiji and 
Vietnam

Dealer Market
Caters to Local 
distribution channels, 
Agents, Distributors and 
dealers

Projects Market
Caters to Apartments, 
Hotels, Commercial 
Buildings, Housing 
projects and Mega 
infrastructure 
development projects

manufacturing process, quality, testing, delivery, to after-sales 
services.

Quality checks are carried out in 3 stages: Incoming, In-
line and Final Inspection. In addition, all products undergo 
megger and continuity tests, while heavy cables are subjected 
to high voltage testing prior to being distributed in the 
market. Sierra Cables is one of two companies in Sri Lanka 
that completes the ‘Compulsory Test Report’ requested by 
government institutions. This third-party accreditation test 
report, obtained from the LCIE laboratory in France, further 
reaffirms the Company’s product reliability and boosts its 
ability to obtain contracts from various government entities.

All our products are made using the highest quality raw 
materials and in compliance with the relevant industry 
standards as outlined below:
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• ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and ISO 45001.

• United Kingdom (BS), Australian (AS) New Zealand (NZS), 
France (NFC), Japanese (JIS), American (ASTM) and 
International Electro Technical Commission (IEC) standards.

• Sri Lanka Standards Institutions: SLS 412, 733, 750, 1186 and 
1542, SLS 1504-2-11, SLS 1504-2-31

Enhancing our product mix
With over 700 products across 14 categories, we have 
progressively developed our product range over the years. 
New products ensure we cater to changing customer 
interests. We continue to maintain our pace of growth through 
elevated our capabilities during the year adding on a 90mm 
Extruder line with 12 Wires Multi Wire Drawing machine into 
production to enhance the productivity. 

Accessibility 
We currently operate with a branch network of 25 distribution 
points island-wide with our main manufacturing plant located 
in Kaduwela. The Company also has overseas presence in 
Sierra East Africa Private Limited, a subsidiary company 
located in Kenya and Cables PTE Limited, a joint venture 
company located in Fiji, to which Sierra Cables supplies 
technical support by way of an experienced technical labour 
force.

Health and safety of our customers
Customer health and safety is a critical aspect of the 
Company’s products, services and customer solutions and we 
ensure that our products are free from harmful substances that 
may be dangerous to customers. All our products are subject 
to a megger and continuity tests while heavy cables undergo 
high voltage testing. We have gained prominence as the 
market leader for Low Smoke Halogen Free Cables as well as 
FR cables which offer greater customer safety and have plans 
to enhance the portfolio with similar innovative products. 
Furthermore, the Company also uses only 99.97% or above 
pure copper and virgin PVC for fire prevention and carried out 
strict inspection at each stage of product development.

Products are offered upon evaluation of customer needs and 
even customized on request to ensure customer satisfaction 
and adherence to required quality standards. We maintain 
complete transparency with respect to product features and 
provide the necessary literature and knowledge to customers 
enabling them to optimize usage. Packaging of our products 
is also carried out in-house with high quality packaging 
materials. During the year, there were no incidents reported 
of non-compliance concerning product information and 
labelling.

Marketing communications
Our marketing practices uphold the highest ethical standards 
and are based on transparency, honesty and full disclosure. 
Customer information is treated with utmost confidentiality 
and not disclosed to any external parties without prior 
permission being obtained. We place heavy emphasis 
on providing proper product information and catalogue 
referencing and make sure all regulatory requirements are 
fulfilled. Our brand presence was further enhanced through 
social media platforms as well as sales representatives 
covering the entire country except the Northern region which 
is managed by a distributor. Our aim is to place more focus on 
driving one-on-one sales to enhance customer convenience 
and elevate our brand name.

The key customers of the Company’s range of cables are 
electricians, and to effectively engage this segment, Sierra 
Cables PLC conducts seminars which not only refresh 
and upgrade their technical knowledge, but also provide 
information about the product range offered by the Company. 
A points scheme is also offered to hardware stores that can be 
subsequently redeemed in the form of attractive rewards to 
drive greater loyalty.

Customer engagement initiatives
• “Behind our Wings” program to recognise their loyalty to 

us, and to promote their business through our social media 
platforms.

• Conducting seminars for electricians to upgrade their 
technical knowledge and provide information about the 
product range offered by the Company.



SIERRA CABLES PLC   ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2222

OUR CUSTOMERS AND KEY STAKEHOLDERS

• Performance of the supply in terms of delivery history, 
meeting required specifications, level of technical assistance 
when required and follow up on complaints.

• Compliance with environmental standards when packing 
and supplying materials.

STEP
01 Requesting 

samples from 
suppliers

STEP
02

Testing the 
samples

STEP
03

Based on the 
evaluation - 

import a small 
commercial 

quantity

STEP
04

If material 
meets required 

standards - 
purchase full 

order

Procurement procedure
The Company sources its raw materials and production 
consumables both externally and internally. Most of the key 
raw materials used in the production of cables including 
Copper, Aluminium, Alloy Aluminium, PVC, XLPE/FR 
Compounds, Steel Wire are imported, and the Company 
has built a solid network of suppliers to ensure production is 
carried out without any obstruction. Most of our imports are 
from Dubai and India and in order to ensure further supply 
security we have extended our network to Indonesia and 
Malaysia as well. In a post COVID scenario with increased raw 
material prices, capacity issues of suppliers and global trade 
restrictions the Company has strengthened its procurement 
practices, planning well in advance to meet the production 
requirements. 

The sales division prepares the sales plan, and the production 
division plans the production according to the sales plan and 
stock keeping requirement. The raw material requirement 
is based on the production plan of the month and the 
requisitions are allocated accordingly. Material planning is 
a pro-active process assuring ample lead time to facilitate 
smooth production runs and as an ISO 14000 certified 
company we maintain a list of registered suppliers. This list is 
periodically reviewed to ensure that we source the best quality 
material required for our products from the most reliable and 
trustworthy suppliers.

Anti-competitive behaviour
Pricing of our products is carried out in line with the country’s 
monetary policy and market trends and developments. We 
strongly discourage anti-competitive behaviour and during 
the year under review the Company did not incur any fines 
or penalties for anti-competitive, anti-trust or monopolistic 
behaviour.

Anti-corruption
The Company takes a zero-tolerance approach towards 
corruption of any form. Strict adherence towards industry 
rules and regulations is maintained including ISO system 
certification audits and SLS product certification audits.

The internal audit division monitors and reviews compliance 
with internal protocols and documentation procedures of all 
functions while CCTV surveillance has been implemented 
across the factory and office premises to ensure no fraudulent 
activity takes place. Overall sound internal controls are in 
place to ensure ethical manufacturing practices and there 
were no reports of risks and/or incidents relating to corrupt 
practices during the year under review.

Suppliers
Our suppliers are vital to our value chain and it’s important 
to us that they complement our way of responsible business 
conduct. We take measures to ensure that they maintain the 
requisite standards thereby safeguarding the responsibility of 
our procurement practices while enhancing the sustainability 
of the value created by our suppliers.

Supplier evaluation
Beyond our operations, our commitment to operate 
responsibly and sustainably extends to our suppliers and 
business partners. When purchasing from a newly registered 
supplier we make sure our procurement protocols are strictly 
followed.

We encourage transparency, ethical business practices, 
competitive and fair pricing, high quality, timely supply and 
value for money and carry out our supplier assessments based 
on the following criteria. 

• Level of certification with international standards such as 
ISO.

• History of supplying similar goods to Sri Lanka or other 
countries.

• Production facilities, manufacturing technologies and 
capacity of continuous supply of the material.

• Negotiable and competitive pricing.
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Compliance
We consider the compliance of our partners and suppliers 
with environmental, labour regulations, the use of child or 
forced labour, and other regulations. Our ISO 14001 certified 
Quality Management System provides a framework to ensure 
that the quality of relationships maintained with our suppliers 
and business partners is in line with the standards maintained 
throughout the Group’s value chain. During the year under 
review there were no incidents of non-compliance nor any 
negative impacts from supply chain activities. 

External associations
Sierra Cables is a member of the following associations.

Local International

• Ceylon Chamber of 
Commerce

• National Chamber of 
Exporters

• The Ceylon National 
Chamber of Industries

• Sri Lanka Chamber 
of Small & Medium 
Industries

• The Plastics & Rubber 
Institute

• International Chamber of 
Commerce

• European Chamber of 
Commerce

• Germany Business Council

• Sri Lanka-Australia-New 
Zealand Business Council

• Sri Lanka-China Business 
Council

Regulators
We ensure that all our business activities are conducted in 
accordance with the conditions promulgated by applicable 
regulatory bodies, allowing zero tolerance for any deviations 
or violations. We manage relationships with Government 
agencies on ethical grounds with responsible and transparent 
policies and systems. 

Communities
Acknowledging the fact that corporate responsibility does 
not end with our business processes and their direct impact, 
we have constantly shown enthusiasm towards disseminating 
greater social responsibility and change, for the betterment 
of society as a whole. Being a manufacturing company, it is 
our profound sense of social responsibility that drives our 
corporate citizenship initiatives. Accordingly, the CSR activities 
we undertake aim to deliver change not only at a primary 
level but also on an extensive, far-reaching level to contribute 
towards long term national development. Some of the key 
contributions during the year are as follows.

Education
• Programs to raise awareness via social media

Monthly videos through social media educating 
the public on basic household technical activities

• Awareness posts/videos from expertise through social 
media for special days such as world breast cancer days, 
diabetics day, mental health day etc.

• Questions and answer sessions for technical matters related 
to the industry

Entity partnership with AIESEC – University of Moratuwa 
energy management “Switch of 13.0” project which includes 
CSR activities as awareness campaigns for school children, job 
fair for university undergraduates etc.

Conducting seminars for electricians to upgrade their 
technical knowledge and also to provide information about 
the product range offered by the Company

Providing extensive internship programs for university 
undergraduates and students at technical institutes on an 
annual basis

Welfare
Rations and meals for elders home and food for 
stray dogs on World Food Day

Installing a structure to provide shade to the public at the 
visitor’s waiting area of the Nawagamuwa Police Station.

Providing employment opportunities for village locals where 
available

Providing cables at a discount price for schools/ dhamma 
schools/ temples/ police stations of the area for their 
developmental activities

Donations for village activities, dhamma schools prize giving’s, 
schools etc.

Annual donation of books, stationary, school equipment, 
musical instruments etc. to the less fortunate schools in Sri 
Lanka

Facilitating the COVID-19 vaccination program for the village 
locals
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OUR EMPLOYEES

The past year has been challenging for our business as well 
as our people. Adjusting to new ways of work has required 
new strategies to engaging and driving productivity while 
managing well-being in an environment of increasing 
external stresses. We aim to support our workforce and 
develop them for the future by fostering a diverse and 
inclusive work environment while encouraging a culture of 
continuous learning and innovation.

What Human Capital Means to Us
Our people are our biggest differentiator and 
our most valued asset. Through their dedication 
and expertise, we are able to differentiate our 
business, navigate through the many challenging 
conditions and ensure we remain sustainable in 
the long run.

Governance and Management 
Approach
Our approach to managing our human capital 
is supported by a strong HR policy framework, 
and well governed systems and processes which 
provide a solid foundation for the equitable 
and effective management of all people related 
aspects.

Our Strategic HR Goals
• Talent acquisition

• Talent retention

• Talent development

• High-performance culture

Key Policy Changes
• Health & safety management policy

• Training & development policy

• Performance appraisal policy

• Staff welfare policy

Our HR VISION
To be the most sought-after partner of our associates’ progress while 
helping them to realize their professional and personal dreams.

Our HR Mission
Equipping our associates with the required knowledge, skills and abilities 
to undertake challenging roles in the dynamic business environment.

Creating an organizational culture and climate that improve our 
associate’s motivation, commitment and concern to serve customers 
through a High-Performance Work System for improved organizational 
performance.
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Staff Mobility
Attracting and retaining high-potential individuals who are 
able to support our organizational growth is critical to our 
success. We focus our energy on developing high-performing 
individuals who have the appropriate qualifications, know-how 
and people skills to uphold our culture and brand integrity to 
meet our evolving business needs. Our recruitment strategies 
are aligned with the overall business strategy through 
manpower planning. We ensure our policies and procedures 
are updated in response to changing labour market dynamics 
and endorse the principle of equal opportunity. The 
senior management of the Company is recruited through 
professional networks/headhunting to make sure we have the 
right people driving our growth agenda.  

We maintain healthy retention levels and our employee 
retention policy is underpinned by a range of factors to 
include strategic training opportunities, performance 
measurement and reward schemes, monetary and non-
monetary benefits, and health and well-being of employees. 
We conduct employee attitude surveys and satisfaction 
surveys on a periodic basis in order to improve our work 
environment and facilitate a healthy and engaged workforce.

Sustainable Development Goals
We are committed to provide good 
health and the wellbeing of our 
employees by ensuring that they are 
guaranteed a proper work-life balance

During recruitment and throughout 
their time at the company, no person 
is discriminated in any way based on 
their gender.

We are committed to ensure that 
along with the growth of the 
organization, the employees grow 
their skills and their economic 
capabilities.

Team	Profile
Our employees are the life force of the organization and are 
supported by an empowering work culture, strong brand 
identity and superior systems and processes to guide them 
in their day-to-day activities while also providing them with 
overarching goals in order to make a meaningful contribution 
to the organization. The Sierra Cables team comprises of 265 
dynamic and highly skilled employees who are a key source 
of the Company’s competitive edge. The team comprises of 
personnel representing all genders, major ethnic groups, and 
age groups as we strive to be an equal opportunity employer 
that offers an environment where everyone can work together.

Employees by Employment 
Category

Non
Executives

ExecutivesManagers

New Recruits by Employment
Category

Non
Executive

ExecutiveManager

Employees by Age

Above 50

41-50

36-40

26-35

18-25

New Recruits by Gender

No.

67
Male

Employees by Gender
No.

252
Male

13
Female

• Majority of our recruitment 
was done on the factory 
floor. Due to its working 
environment only male staff 
was taken on board during 
the period.
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Growing our Employee Capabilities
We are committed to fostering an environment in which 
our employees can thrive and prosper. Thus, we eagerly 
support our employees’ growth, and prioritise learning 
and development by investing in employee training and 
career development, which we believe is a key driver of 
organisational success and employee satisfaction. We align 
our employees’ capabilities with our strategic goals to ensure 
we have the right skills – now and into the future – to achieve 
our value creation objectives.

Based on the employee skill evaluation and competency 
matrix which records the current knowledge, skills and abilities 
of the workforce, we assign relevant training programs for 
all our employees to ensure continuous development and 
improved performance. In addition to competency related 
technical trainings, soft skill development trainings are also 
offered to our employees to groom the future leaders of the 
organization. The Company has developed a talent pool 
recognizing individuals qualified to eventually fill the key 
roles of the organization and we nurture and develop these 
resources further via appropriate professional development 
programs.

The Company has also in collaboration with the National 
Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority (NAITA) 
developed a NVQ level training for cable machine operators 
in the cable industry to provide them with a vocational 
qualification with the intention of adding value to their profiles 
and offering them greater social recognition. The Company 
will serve as a training institute delivering a systematic training 
process. A grading system will also be established where 
factory employees will be assessed based on a set of criteria 
providing them the opportunity for career advancement.

Key Training Initiatives carried out during 
the year
• Workplace ethics, 5 S & housekeeping, autonomous 

maintenance and documentation & reporting training for 
the production department.

• Generator maintenance training, AC/DC drive programming 
and troubleshooting training, PLC programming and 
troubleshooting training, preventive maintenance and 
machine troubleshooting for the electricians.

• Basic electrical knowledge training for welders and fitters.

• Pneumatic & hydraulic training and the best methods of 
power saving through operational practices for all in the 
maintenance department.

• 5 S application, basic concepts of quality and productivity, 
calibration and monitoring of measuring devices for the 
Quality Assurance department.

• Customer care, time management, tender procedures, 
credit management, territory management, distribution 
management training for the sales team.

• Reward management, Business English, Occupational 
Health & Safety, IR/ER/disciplinary management and HR 
analytics for the HR department.

• Negotiation skills, update on import/export/custom 
procedures, new trends in global supply chain and best 
practices of supply chain training for the Supply Chain 
Department.

• First aid, fire evacuation and firefighting training for the 
dedicated team.

• Leadership skills, presentation techniques and motivational 
programmes for managerial and staff employees.

Rewards and Recognition
Performance management is an ongoing process where 
appraisals are generally conducted annually, at the time of 
employment confirmation, allocated for a special assignment, 
while being absorbed into the permanent cadre or to 
facilitate an internal promotion. The Company has in place a 
comprehensive performance management framework, which 
helps associates review their performance expectations, 
including the behaviour they are expected to display and the 
results they are expected to achieve during the upcoming 
rating cycle. Annual evaluations are carried out in three stages: 
self-appraisal, superior appraisal and cross functional team 
appraisal to reach an approximately 270-degree appraisal. 
In addition to providing feedback during the appraisal or 
whenever exceptional or ineffective performance is observed, 
a culture of providing periodic feedback on day-to-day 
accomplishments and contributions is also followed within the 
Company.

The Company’s compensation and benefits scheme has been 
designed to attract, retain, and motivate employees to meet 
the Company’s strategic objectives. Our pay structures and 
pay scales are focused on meeting industry standards.

Training Hours per Employee

Executive &
Above

Factory &
Non Executive

Training Hours per Employee
Category

Factory &
Non

Executive

Executive
&

Above
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Engaging with our Employees
Employee engagement is fundamental to understanding and 
improving our relationship with our people. We aim to create a 
work environment in which our employees enjoy fulfilling roles 
and feel proud to be a part of the Sierra family. An engaged 
workforce is more likely to go the extra mile in performing their 
duties, in turn increasing productivity and operational efficiency. 
Each year the Company hosts a variety of engagement events 
to uplift the spirits of our employees and nurture their sense of 
togetherness. Some of the key engagement initiatives carried 
out during the year are as follows,

• Attitude survey accompanied by an action plan

• HR pipeline for grievance handling

• Suggestion box placed on the factory floor

• Celebrating International Women’s Day

• Conducting a singing competition

• Christmas celebrations through the sharing of gifts – Secret 
Santa Program

• An extensive English language program upon employee 
request

• Publishing a motivational post given by one of our 
experienced employees on our Company’s social media 
platforms once a month to display our appreciation, while 
simultaneously raising public awareness on the internal 
culture of the Company.

International Women’s Day Celebration

Secret Santa Program – Christmas Day Celebration

Health and Wellbeing
Keeping our employees safe and well is one of our top 
priorities and with the re-emerging strains of the COVID-19 
pandemic the Company continued to enforce stringent 
protocols to minimize the risk of infection. Safety measures 
such as disinfecting office premises on a regular basis, socially 
distanced seating, working from home arrangements and 
transportation arrangements were made to protect our 
staff at all times. Furthermore, clear, concise and consistent 
communication of health and safety information along with 
constant awareness reminders on preventive measures via 
emails/notices were disseminated to make sure our staff 
adhered to the COVID safety protocols.

In terms of occupational safety, we provide intensive training 
to highlight the importance of responsible work practices 
and use of safety gear. Sierra Cables is an ISO 45001 certified 
company which is a testament to our commitment towards 
maintaining a proper Health and Safety Management System 
that provides a secure and risk-free work environment. 
Stringent accident and incident reporting procedures are in 
place to make sure that the safety protocols are adhered to 
across all organizational activities and immediate action is 
taken where necessary to upgrade or improve the standards.
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Our accident follow-up procedure

1
Report to immediate 

superior

2
Organize first aid if the 

accident is minor or take 
victims (permanent/casual/

contract) to the nearest 
hospital if the accident 

is major

3
Report relevant 

information to the 
Departmental Head

4
Department Head to notify 
the Executive Director and 

HR Manager 5
HR Manager to assign 

an officer to carry out an 
investigation to find out 

the cause of accident

6
Ensure welfare of victims 
providing the necessary 

financial assistance

Diversity and Inclusion at Sierra
The Company firmly believes that a diverse and inclusive 
workplace enriches decision making through combining 
varying skills, ideas, and perspectives. Our recruitment and 
selection policy set out in the Human Resource Management 
Policy addresses and ensures that employees shall not be 
discriminated based on their gender, ethnicity or physically 
disabilities. All our employees must act in accordance with the 
Code of Conduct provided in the Sierra Cables Handbook 
promoting workplace ethics and good corporate conduct.

No female employee shall be discriminated on the grounds 
of gender or pregnancy and receives equal remuneration 
according to the position held. Specific policies are in place 
to address issues relating to sexual harassment and anti-
bullying and the established grievance handling channels 
provide quick resolutions to any such grievances reported. 
Additionally, counselling facilities and awareness training 
sessions are held to raise general awareness among staff 
regarding disciplinary procedures in terms of workplace 
harassment. Managers and supervisors are given additional 
responsibilities to stamp out any form of discrimination on 
sight.

All our employees have the freedom to engage in religious 
and cultural ceremonies as we believe in sustaining a multi-
cultural work environment enriched with various ethnicities 
and religions. We have also created a platform “Forward 
together” for all the Company’s female employees to come 
together and strengthen each other to move up the corporate 
ladder. Through this platform we also conduct awareness 
programs on Women Empowering Day to promote the sense 
of self-worth in women as well as seminars on corporate 
etiquette and grooming, soft skills and personal development 
programmes.

Policies ensuring gender parity
• Diversity and inclusion policies

• Gender pay equity policy

• Specific policies on sexual harassment in the workplace
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Return to work after parental leave

Parental Leave – 2021/22 Female Male

Employees entitled to parental leave 13 -

Employees on parental leave 2 -

Employees who returned after parental 
leave

1 -

Employees still in employment 12 
months after returning on parental 
leave

1 -

There were no reported incidents of discrimination on 
grounds of race, sex, religion, political opinion, social origin, 
or other relevant forms of discrimination during the year.

Grievance Handling
Sierra embraces an open-door policy which ensures that 
employees have the freedom to approach their supervisors 
and superiors at any time, to raise their concerns. While this 
policy promotes the early settlement of many concerns, 
a formal mechanism is in place for the escalation of 
grievances. This involves a step-by-step process, whereby 
an employee may escalate a grievance through his/her 
immediate supervisor, to the supervisor’s superior and then 
to the Executive Director. Every employee is free to submit 
their grievances and have them examined in an appropriate 
manner without any prejudice or fear of punishment.
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With the continued global spotlight on the critical 
issue of climate change, we recognize the importance 
of understanding and taking action on our material 
environmental impacts, risks and opportunities. Thus, 
operating responsibly is part of our culture and a 
fundamental of how we conduct our business. We always 
aim at actively minimizing the environmental impact of our 
operations, while striving for continual improvement by 
putting in place policies, management systems and targets 
to improve our performance.

Environmental Management Policy
The organization has introduced a comprehensive 
environmental management system comprising of policies 
and procedures which enable environmentally responsible 
and socially equitable consumption of natural resources across 
the entire value chain whilst improving the bottom line. The 
Group focuses on efficient management of inputs such as 
material, energy, water and conservation of bio-diversity, while 
responsibly managing outputs such as emissions, waste and 
effluents. The initiatives undertaken by the Group as a part of 
its commitment to environmental sustainability are discussed 
in detail in the ensuing sections.

Objectives of our Environmental Management Policy

Optimizing the use 
of natural resource 
inputs

Material
Energy
Water

Managing our 
outputs to reduce 
environmental 
pollution

Emissions
Waste

Effective 
communication of 
this policy

Employees 
General public

Other 
stakeholders

Create awareness 
towards the 
achievement 
of greener 
responsibilities of 
the employees

Training 
programs

CSR initiatives
Compliance
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Optimizing our Inputs
Material Management
Multiple measures have been implemented 
to ensure the efficient and responsible use 
of raw materials in our production process. 

As measures of optimizing material use, we improved our 
production planning process and operation layout and we 
began using raw materials more efficiently. Accordingly, we 
have been able to reduce our rework from 11% to 3%. Due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic and its resultant challenges to 
business operations, we have also increased our focus on 
ordering bulk loads and maintaining sufficient stocks of raw 
materials which in turn contributes towards the reduction of 
our carbon footprint.

Energy Management
The Company made steady progress towards 
conservation of energy within its value 
creation process. The main sources of energy 

consumption were electricity and fuel, and steps were taken 
to ensure these resources were managed efficiently and 
effectively.

• Installation of 1MW solar system

• Recovering energy through micro machines by modifying 
the steam recovery process which delivers enhanced 
efficiency.

• Installation of solar panels to meet the electricity needs 
of the factory and office premises while delivering the 
additional electricity generated to the national grid.

• Reducing power consumption of the lighting system by 
cleaning existing polycarbonate sheets and increasing the 
number of sheets, using natural lighting in the warehouse 
and replacing CFL bulbs in the plant with LED bulbs.

• Optimising machine runs by encouraging machine runs at 
off-peak times and using the interlocking system during 
peak hours to prevent two machines operating at the same 
time.

• Optimising compressed air system by introducing ring 
blowers in reducing compressed air. Additionally, regular 
maintenance of water lines and air lines are carried out 
by fixing water filters and drainers and reducing the 
compressed air leakages.

• Optimising energy consumed by air conditioning units 
by replacing the old units with energy saving inverter 
technology, running ACs at room temperature and adding 
an ‘On-off’ timer for AC machines on automatic mode.

• Installation of UPS systems for extruder machines to 
ensure uninterrupted power supply while manufacturing 
customized cables so that in the event of a power failure, 

production may continue. As a result, there will be no 
requirement to restart the machines thus leading to cost 
and time savings.

Analysis of energy consumption with
production value - 2020/21 
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Water Management
The Group monitors its water usage and 
wherever possible, strives to use lower volumes 
of water or recycled water to minimise its use of 

the resource. All employees are educated on the importance 
of conserving water and minimizing wastage and we also 
make sure quick remedial action is taken to fix or prevent any 
leakages. We have also developed a rainwater harvesting 
plant at our factory premises which is primarily utilized for the 
cooling of machinery.

Managing our Outputs
Emissions Management
In order to manage its emissions, the Company 
has made various changes to its processes 
including changing the method of copper 

tinning to conventional vapour scrubber method through 
which all possible emissions are trapped and separated. 
Additionally, with the changes made to the process layout 
we have allocated a separate area for the solar cable 
manufacturing plant to minimize the forklift movements.

Waste Management
As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company 
has implemented several measures in order to 
reduce waste generated within its production 
process including:

• Shifting from the use of Grafted Polymer to Base Polymer, 
thus significantly reducing waste generated in the process 
of color change, changeovers, as well as machine cleaning 
frequency. The use of base polymer has significantly improved 
the processing ability resulting in an overall reduction in 
wastage and rework ABC Cables from 15% to 3%.
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• Encouraging our sales team to return the wooden drums 
used for transportation of our cables to customers in order 
to reuse and reduce our consumption of wood.

• Recycling waste by baling it into blocks to use as paving 
bricks and for other purposes. The baling also helps to 
compact waste and saves storage space.

Environmental Awareness
In order to reduce our environmental footprint and address 
climate change, we are committed to raising environmental 
awareness of our employees through training opportunities 
and voluntary environmental initiatives. The Company 
embraces an Environmental Management Policy that sets 
forth its commitment to create value by efficiently managing 
and nurturing the natural capital resource.

Sierra Cables PLC does not pose a direct threat to any natural 
habitats, fauna or flora within its production process. However, 
the Company places great importance on educating the 
workforce on environmental conservation and carries out 
various sustainability projects aimed towards preserving the 
bio-diversity and eco-systems with the involvement of its 
employees.

Programs on environmental conservation
1. Comprehensive awareness programs are carried out 

on an ongoing basis on ISO 14001:2015 (Environmental 
Management System) for all the employees of the 
company to;

• Continuously improve the Company’s environmental 
performance through commitment, planning, 
implementation, evaluation and review.

• Clearly educate each employee on his/her responsibility 
towards conserving the environment and

• Provide awareness on the green concept.

2. Providing internship training for undergraduates of the 
Bachelor of Environmental Management degree program. 
Every year undergraduates of the above program are 
provided with industrial training (i.e. From the University 
of Kelaniya in 2019). The intention is to provide them with 
special assignments in cross functional teams where our 
employees will also have access to knowledge sharing and 
dissemination

3. HSE Audit Conducting Health, Safety and Environmental 
audits in the Company with teams of employees 
representing every category of the Company. All are 
provided with sufficient knowledge through training on 
environmental aspects, pollution, sustainability, auditing 
techniques etc.

CSR initiatives

Tree planting initiative
We continued our tree planting drive demonstrating our 
commitment towards strengthening our environmental value 
proposition. We planted over 300 fruit plants and hope to 
expand this initiative during the upcoming years as well.

Compliance

Certifications	received
• Green Certificate by Ceylon Institute of Builders
• ISO 14001 : 2015

The Company complies with the necessary environment-
related legal and regulatory requirements. During the year 
under consideration, there were zero incidents of non- 
compliance with environmental laws and regulations.
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Chairman’s Statement on 
Corporate Governance
It gives me pleasure to present the Corporate Governance 
Report for the year 2021/22, on behalf of the Board of 
Directors of Sierra Cables PLC. This report encompasses 
our approach to Corporate Governance principles and 
practices, built on the belief that a strong and healthy 
culture, supported by a robust governance framework is 
essential to the creation of long-term shareholder value.

The Company has in place a well-structured governance 
framework, focused on upholding transparency and 
accountability. We believe that sound governance should 
be ingrained within the entire business and our corporate 
culture embraces good governance practices in the daily 
operations of the Group. Our Corporate Governance 
processes are regularly reviewed and the Board remains 
strongly committed towards maintaining and continuously 
improving the policies and processes, to ensure that 
the level of risk management, internal controls and 
accountability remain robust and support the Company’s 
long term growth strategy.

Key focus areas
The Board’s main focus during the year was monitoring 
the implications of COVID-19 on the Company and 
providing oversight on the measures implemented to 
ensure the safety of employees, assessing the impact of 

Our Approach to Corporate Governance
The Board embraces an unwavering conviction that good 
corporate governance is vital towards creating trust and 
confidence between the Company and its investors, thereby 
contributing to the long-term success of the organization. 
Sound governance practices guide the Board and all levels 
of employees in the conduct of day-to-day business activities 
ensuring that operations are carried out for the benefit of 
all stakeholders. The Company is committed to achieving 
the highest standards of corporate governance practices 
that facilitate sustainable value creation. The framework and 
policies are reviewed at regular intervals to maintain alignment 
with the Company’s strategy, regulatory requirements, 
changing business environment, technological advancements 
and international best practice.

macro-economic vulnerabilities and strengthening risk 
management practices. The Board acted pro-actively in 
understanding the Company’s plans to ensure continuity 
of production, operations and distributions given the 
unprecedented conditions that prevailed during the year. 
Furthermore, special focus was directed towards re-
shaping the company’s strategy to effectively mitigate the 
impact of the highly volatile exchange rate.

Compliance
The Company’s level of compliance with the Code of Best 
Practice on Corporate Governance issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka is described in this 
report. As stipulated by the Code, I affirm that I am not 
aware of any material violations of any of the provisions of 
the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics by any Director 
or any member of the Corporate Management.

(Sgd.)
Mr. W. A. P. Perera 
Chairman/Non-Executive Director 

31st August 2022

The Board of Directors bears the overall responsibility 
for good governance, transparency, stewardship and 
accountability towards all stakeholders. The governing 
framework depicts how the Board of Directors has structured 
the governing body to better discharge the responsibilities 
and accountability bestowed upon them.
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Corporate Governance Framework

Board Highlights of 2021/22

Shareholders

Board Related 
Party Transactions 

Review 
Committee

Board 
Remuneration 

Committee

Nomination 
Committee

Executive Directors

Internal 
Auditors

External 
Auditors

Board Audit 
Committee

Top Management

Governance StructureExternal Compliance
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007

Continuing listing 
requirements of the Colombo 
Stock Exchange

Code of Best Practice on 
Corporate Governance issued 
by ICASL (2017)

Shop and Office Employees 
Act of 1954

Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of 
2017

Integrated Reporting 
Framework issued by the 
International Integrating 
Reporting Council (IIRC)

Internal Compliance
Quality Standards:
ISO 9001:2015, ISO 
14001:2015, SLS 733, SLS 
750, SLS 412, SLS 1186, 
SLS 1542, SLS 1504-2-11, 
SLS 1504-2-31

Safety Standards:
ISO 45001:2018

Employee Handbook

Board of 
Directors

Board Composition

Independent 
Directors

Non-Executive 
Directors

Executive Directors

Board Independence

Independent 
Directors

Non-Independent 
Directors

Age Diversity

Below 60 

Over 60

Gender Diversity

Male

Female

Board Size 09

Appropriate and suitable board size promoting healthy 
debate and decision making
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Board Functions
The Board of Directors are the representatives of the shareholders of the Company holding the ultimate responsibility of 
determining the strategic direction and risk appetite of the Company while ensuring a sound governance framework is in place. 
The Corporate Management team led by the Chief Executive Officer holds the responsibility of executing the corporate strategies 
whereas the Board assumes a supervisory role in overseeing the management and its performance.

Board Chairman Chief Executive Officer

1. Enhancing shareholder wealth.

2. Planning and guiding the business 
towards meeting the set objectives.

3. Ensuring the interests of all 
stakeholders in corporate decisions.

4. Formulating, communicating, and 
monitoring business policies, overall 
strategies and corporate goals to 
ensure sustained growth.

5. Assessing and approving the 
implementation of management and 
internal control systems.

1. Lead the Board and manage the 
business of the Board.

2. Ensure that the Board receives 
accurate and timely information to 
make sound decisions.

3. Encourage constructive discussions 
among the Board members to 
facilitate effective decision making.

4. Monitoring the effectiveness of the 
Board.

1. Improving shareholder value by 
formulating strategy, evaluating 
the viability and implementation to 
reach the desired objectives.

2. Continuous monitoring and 
reporting to the Board on the 
Company’s performance.

3. Ensuring compliance with all 
applicable legal and regulatory 
obligations.

4. Ensuring that the Company operates 
within the approved risk appetite.

5. Developing and recommending the 
budgets to the Board.

Board Sub-Committees
While the entire Board remains accountable for the performance and affairs of the Company, several Board sub-committees assist 
the main Board in the discharge of its duties;

Sub-committee Areas of oversight Composition Further information

Audit Committee • Financial Reporting

• Internal Controls

• Internal Audit

• External Audit

Mr. P.E.A.B Perera

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane

Mr. B.W.N. Rupasinghe

Refer the Report of the Audit 
Committee on pages 47 to 
48 for more information.

Remuneration 
Committee

• Remuneration of the Chief Executive 
Officer and Key Management 
Personnel

• HR Policies including Remuneration 
Policy

• Organisation structure

• HR Systems including Performance 
Evaluation

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane

Mr. B.W.N. Rupasinghe

Mr. P.E.A.B. Perera

Refer the Report of the 
Remuneration Committee 
on page 49 for more 
information.

Related Party 
Transactions Review 
Committee

• Related Party Transactions Policy

• Disclosures on related party 
transactions in the annual report

• Quarterly and annual disclosures of 
related party transactions

Mr. P.E.A.B Perera

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane

Mr. B.W.N. Rupasinghe

Refer the Report of the 
Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee on page 
50 for more information.
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Board Meetings
Board and sub-committee meetings are scheduled once in every quarter. Meeting agendas and Board papers are circulated 
to all Board members well in advance of each meeting to ensure adequate time is dedicated for preparation. The Group has a 
state-of-the-art management information system to process and monitor the performance of the Group. Appropriate and timely 
information is made available to the Board members who make additional inquiries when necessary. Any Director can call for a 
resolution to be presented to the Board if deemed necessary.

Meeting attendance

Name of the Director Board  Meeting Audit  Committee Remuneration 
Committee

Related  party

Mr. W. A. P. Perera 4/4    

Mr. D. S. Panditha 4/4    

Ms. S. M. Irugalbandara * 3/4    

Mr. B. W. N. Rupasinghe 4/4 4/4  1/1 4/4

Prof. A. K. W. Jayawardena 4/4 4/4  1/1 4/4

Ms. T. A. P. Weerasinghe ** 3/4    

Ms. S. N. Lokuge * 2/4    

Mr. P. E. A. B. Perera ** 3/4 4/4 1/1 4/4

* Resigned wef 11th February 2022
** Appointed wef 13th May 2021

Independent Judgement
Directors exercise independent judgment on aspects 
relating to strategy, resource allocation, performance, key 
appointments as well as standards of business conduct. The 
Board composition and representation ensures that there is 
a sufficient balance of power within the Board, with limited 
tendency for one or few members to dominate decision 
making.

The Board collectively and the Directors individually act in 
accordance with the laws of the country of operation which are 
applicable to the business enterprise. The Board of Directors 
ensures that procedures and processes are in place to ensure 
that the Company complies with all applicable laws and 
regulations and present a compliance checklist to the Audit 
Committee.

In enhancing the effectiveness of the Board’s decision making 
and preserve overall independence, the Company seeks 
independent professional advice when deemed necessary at 
the expense of the Company including that of the Company’s 
external lawyers and auditors.

Role of the Company Secretary
The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the 
Board practises good governance when discharging its duties 
and that all applicable laws and regulations are complied 
with. Following are some of the main duties performed by the 
Company Secretary :

• Conduct meetings in accordance with the Articles of 
Association and relevant legislations.

• Provide timely and accurate information needed for 
meetings, advice on matters relating to corporate 
governance and economic and social sustainability.

• Maintaining registers of shareholders, company changes, 
directors and secretary and directors’ interests in shares.

• Obtaining legal advice in consultation with the Board on 
company law, SEC, CSE and other relevant legislations in 
ensuring that the Group complies with all applicable laws 
and regulations.

• Filing statutory returns/information with the Registrar of 
Companies.
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Board Appointment and Re-election
Directors are appointed by the shareholders based on the recommendations made by the Board. Appointments of new Directors 
are communicated immediately to shareholders through the Colombo Stock Exchange inclusive of a brief resume of the newly 
appointed Director, relevant expertise, key appointments, shareholding and status of independence.

In compliance with the Articles of Association of the Company, 1/3 of the Directors will retire from office each year and are eligible 
for re-election. Details of the Directors being re-elected at this year’s AGM are given in the Notice of Meeting on page 131.

Written communication is obtained from any Director resigning prior to completion of his appointed term.

Compliance with the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka in 2017

Code 
Ref. 

Requirement Compliance Details of Compliance/Reference

A Directors
A.1 The Board Refer - A diverse Board on page 12

A.1.1 Board Meetings Refer - Meetings and attendance on page 36

A.1.2 Roles and Responsibilities of 
the Board

Refer - Roles and responsibilities on page 35

A.1.3 Independent Professional 
Advice

The Board members are permitted to obtaining independent 
professional advice from third parties as deemed necessary including 
that of the Company’s external lawyers and auditors at the expense of 
the Company.

A.1.4 Access to advice and services 
of Company Secretary and 
Insurance Cover

Refer - Role of the Company Secretary on page 36

The Company has appropriate insurance cover for Key Management 
Personnel (KMP’s) according to the Group policy

A.1.5 Independent Judgement All the Board members actively participate in the Board meetings by 
bringing up their own independent judgment

A.1.6 Dedicate Adequate Time 
and Effort to Board matters

The Company estimates that Non-Executive Directors devoted 
sufficient time for the Group during the year

A.1.7 Calls for Resolutions All Directors are encouraged to submit any items/ proposals to the 
agendas of the Board meetings

A.1.8 Board Induction and Training The Board has in place an induction programme for new Directors to 
ensure they are adequately briefed and have the requisite knowledge 
of the Group and its operations. The Board regularly reviews the 
training needs of the Directors and all Directors engage in relevant 
training programs to enhance their skills and expertise

A.2 Chairman & Chief Executive 
Officer

There is a clear demarcation of the responsibilities between the 
Chairman and the CEO. The functions performed by the Chairman 
and the CEO are distinct and separate, ensuring the balance of power 
and authority within the organisation, so that no person has unfettered 
powers of decision-making and implementation

Refer- Roles and Responsibilities on page 35
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Code 
Ref. 

Requirement Compliance Details of Compliance/Reference

A.3 Chairman’s Role in 
Preserving Good Corporate 
Governance

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, 
managing Board meetings and business undertakings. The Chairman 
is responsible for ensuring that all relevant issues of the Company 
are dealt with on the Board Agenda and that Directors receive all 
appropriate information and documentation in a timely manner, thus 
facilitating the Directors to contribute at the deliberations

Refer - Roles and Responsibilities on page 35

A.4 Availability of Financial 
Acumen

Our Directors with their academic and/or entrepreneurial financial skill, 
business acumen and wide practical wisdom contribute substantial 
value, knowledge and independent judgment to decision making on 
matters concerning finance and investment

A.5 Board Balance Seven of the Nine Directors of the Board held office in a Non-
Executive Capacity. The Board comprises of three Non- Executive 
Independent Directors

Each Non-Executive Director submits a signed and dated declaration 
annually of his/ her Independence or Non -Independence

The Chairman meets with the Independent Non-Executive Directors as 
and when necessary

A.6 Provision of Appropriate and 
Timely Information

Board agendas and necessary Board Papers and minutes are 
dispatched in advance of the Board meetings

A.7 Appointments to the Board Board appointments follow a transparent and formal process. The 
Board is satisfied that the experience and exposure of the Board 
members are adequate to meet the strategic demands faced by the 
Company

A.8 Re-election of Directors In compliance with the Articles of Association of the Company, 1/3 
of the Directors will retire from office each year and are eligible for 
re-election. Details of the Directors being re-elected at this year’s AGM 
are given in the Notice of Meeting on page 131

Written communication is obtained from any Director resigning prior 
to completion of his appointed term

A.9 Appraisal of Board 
Performance

The Board annually appraises itself on its performance in the discharge 
of its key responsibilities. The Board also undertakes an annual 
self-evaluation of its own performance and that of its committees 
identifying any areas which require improvements

A.10 Disclosure of information in 
respect of Directors

The names of the Directors of the Board, their expertise, skills and 
profiles are disclosed on pages 13 to 14 of this Annual Report

Directors’ interests in contracts are indicated in Note 35.2 of the 
Financial Statements of this Annual Report.

Refer Corporate Governance Report on pages 33 - 42
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Code 
Ref. 

Requirement Compliance Details of Compliance/Reference

A.11 Appraisal of the Chief 
Executive Officer

At the start of each year the Board in consultation with the CEO sets 
the goals to be achieved by the CEO during the year. At the end of 
each year the performance of the CEO is evaluated against these set 
targets

B. Directors’ Remuneration
B.1 Remuneration Procedure The details of the Remuneration Committee’s composition, policies 

and responsibilities are set out on page 49 of this Annual Report

The Board as a whole decides the remuneration of the Non-Executive 
Directors. The Non-Executive Directors receive a fee for being a 
Director of the Board and a fee for participating as a sub-committee 
member. The Remuneration Committee obtains the input of the 
Chairman relating to the remuneration of Executive Directors and 
external professional advice is sought when deemed necessary

B.2 Level and Make-up of 
Remuneration

The remuneration scheme for Executive Directors is structured to align 
rewards to their individual and corporate performance targets and the 
Remuneration Committee ensures that the remuneration is on par with 
market standards

B.3 Disclosures related to 
Remuneration in the Annual 
Report

Remuneration Committee Report on page 49

C. Relations with Shareholders
C.1 Constructive use of the AGM 

and other General Meetings
We ensure that all proxy votes are counted and the quantum of 
proxies lodged on each resolution is conveyed to our Chairman. 
Separate resolutions are proposed at the AGM on each substantial 
issue

At the AGM, the Chairman of each sub-committee provides any 
clarification required by Shareholders

The notice and the agenda of the AGM together with the Annual 
Report of the Company containing the relevant documents are sent to 
the Shareholders 15 working days prior to the date of the AGM

C.2 Communication with 
shareholders

Shareholders are engaged through various channels of 
communication, including the AGM, regulatory reports and 
announcements via the CSE. Shareholders also have the opportunity 
to ask questions, comment or make suggestions to the Board 
through the Company Secretary. All significant issues and concerns 
of Shareholders are referred to the Board with the views of the 
Management and our Company Secretarial Division and/or 
Communications Teams is responsible for answering such queries 
raised

C.3 Disclosure of Major and 
Material Transactions

The Directors ensure that any transaction which may affect the net 
asset base of the Company is communicated to the Shareholders 
and required approvals are obtained and disclosures are made in 
accordance with the Statutes
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Code 
Ref. 

Requirement Compliance Details of Compliance/Reference

D. Accountability and Audit
D.1 Present a balanced and 

understandable assessment 
of the Company’s financial 
position, performance and 
prospects

The Board aims to present a balanced and understandable assessment 
of the Group’s financial position, performance and prospects through 
this annual report. Interim reports have been published and all other 
statutory requirements have been complied with and approval of the 
Board has been obtained prior to publication

Refer –

• Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the affairs of Sierra 
Cables PLC (page 53 - 57)

• Statement of Directors’ Responsibility (page 52)

• Management Discussion and Analysis (page 15 - 17)

• Independent Auditors’ Report (page 58 - 61)

• Related Party Transactions in Note 35.1 in the Financial Statements

D.2 Process of Risk Management 
and a sound system of 
internal

The Board is responsible for establishing a sound framework of risk 
management and internal controls and monitoring its effectiveness on 
a continuous basis

Refer - Managing Risks on pages 43 to 46

D.3 Audit Committee Refer - Audit Committee Report (page 47 - 48)

D.4 Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee

Refer - Related Party Transactions Review Committee Report (page 50)

D.5 Code of Conduct and Ethics Refer -

• Our Employees on pages 24 to 29

• Chairman’s Message on pages 7 to 8

D.6 Corporate Governance 
Disclosures

Refer - Corporate Governance Report on pages 33 to 42

E/F Institutional and Other Investors
E.1&F.1 Encourage voting at AGM 

– Institutional and other 
investors

Institutional and other investors are encouraged to participate in 
the annual general meetings and exercise their voting rights. The 
Company has an effective mechanism to record and count all proxy 
votes lodged for each resolution

E.2 Evaluation of governance 
disclosures

Institutional investors are encouraged to give due consideration to all 
relevant factors related to Board structure and composition

F.2 Investing/divesting decisions Individual shareholders investing directly in the shares of the Company 
are encouraged to carry out adequate analysis or seek independent 
advice in investing or divesting decision
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Code 
Ref. 

Requirement Compliance Details of Compliance/Reference

G. Internet of Things & Cyber 
security

The Board is conscious of its responsibility to ensure investments 
in technology generate the desired business value while mitigating 
associated risks. The Board is assisted in the discharge of 
responsibilities by the Audit Committee which monitors and reviews 
the Management’s initiatives to ensure that information technology 
risks, including emerging cyber security risks, are managed 
appropriately

Consequently, data protection and cyber security matters are regularly 
addressed at Board meetings

This is headed by the IT Manager who is responsible for the Group’s IT 
security strategy and safeguarding against cyber threats

H. Environment, Society & 
Governance

The Board places significant emphasis on sustainable development 
and ESG factors are built into the Company’s value creation model, 
strategy, governance and risk management framework.

Refer-

• Risk management on pages 43 to 46

• Environmental Sustainability on pages 30 to 32

• Corporate Governance on pages 33 to 42

Rule No. Applicable Requirements Compliance Company’s Action 

7.10.1 Non – Executive Directors
7.10.1(a) Non-Executive Directors 

(NEDs) on the Board
7 out of 9 Board members are NEDs

7.10.2 Independent Directors
7.10.2(a) Independent Directors 3 out of the 7 NEDs are independent

7.10.2(b) Declaration of Independence A Declaration of independence has been given by the Independent 
Directors

7.10.3 Disclosures relating to Directors
7.10.3(a) Names of Independent 

Directors should be 
disclosed in the Annual 
Report

Board of Directors - pages 12 to 14

7.10.3(b) The basis for determining 
the independence of NEDs, 
if criteria for independence is 
not met

Based on the declarations received from the Non Executive Directors 
the Board has determined that three directors are independent

7.10.3(c) A brief resume of each 
Director should be included 
in the Annual Report, 
including his area of 
expertise

Board of Directors - pages 13 to 14
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Rule No. Applicable Requirements Compliance Company’s Action 

7.10.3(d) Upon appointment of a new 
Director a brief resume of the 
Director should be submitted 
to the SEC

Corporate Governance - pages 33 to 42

7.10.4 Criteria for defining the Independence of Directors
Requirements for meeting 
the criteria to be an 
Independent Director

All of the Independent Directors of the Company met the criteria for 
independency specified in this rule

Prof. Ananda Jayawardane and Mr. Nimal Rupasinghe  have served 
over nine years on the Board. The Board is of the opinion that the 
aforesaid Directors are nevertheless independent by taking into 
account all the circumstances and is satisfied that they are free of 
material business or other relationship that could interfere with or 
could reasonably be perceived to interfere with the exercise of their 
unfettered and independent judgments

7.10.5 Remuneration Committee
7.10.5(a) Composition of the 

Remuneration Committee
Report of the Remuneration Committee (page 49)

7.10.5(b) Functions of the 
Remuneration Committee

Report of the Remuneration Committee (page 49)

7.10.5(c) Disclosure in the Annual 
Report relating to the 
Remuneration Committee

Report of the Remuneration Committee (page 49)

7.10.6 Audit Committee
7.10.6(a) Composition of the Audit 

Committee
Report of the Audit Committee (page 47 - 48)

7.10.6(b) Functions of the Audit 
Committee

Report of the Audit Committee (page 47 - 48)

7.10.6(c) Disclosure in the Annual 
Report relating to the Audit 
Committee

Report of the Audit Committee (page 47 - 48)
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RISK MANAGEMENT REVIEW

Risk management is a fundamental aspect of the Company’s ability to create sustainable value for 
stakeholders in the short, medium and long term. To this end, the Company has established a robust 
risk management framework that pro-actively identifies and mitigates risks allowing us to face 
challenges effectively while realizing opportunities for growth.

The financial year 2022 was one of the most challenging periods in the history of Sri Lanka as the 
pandemic continued to maintain its grasp and heighten risks and vulnerabilities of businesses as well 
as individuals. However, our internal controls and risk management practices shielded us against any 
serious threats allowing us to ensure healthy performance levels during the year.

Risk Governance
At Sierra Cables risk management is a 
continuous, forward-looking process 
that requires strong leadership and 
the risk management framework spans 
throughout the entire organization 
from the Board right down to the 
operational level. The responsibility 
of managing risk, communicating the 
risk strategy and approving policies for 
effective risk management ultimately 
rests with the Board. The Audit 
Committee reviews the comprehensive 
risk profile and receive quarterly reports 
on risk management which includes 
individual company risk portfolios, 
sound internal control systems 
and other mitigation actions. Each 
strategic business unit is responsible 
for identification, measurement, 
monitoring, management and 
reporting of risks giving due 
consideration to the business climate, 
competition, stakeholder concerns and 
the SBU’s business goals.

Board of Directors
Retains overall accountability for the 
governance of risk and effective risk 

management. 

Board Audit Committee
Reviews the adequacy of the 

risk management framework by 
evaluating the risk management 

reports submitted by the respective 
department heads as well as from 

internal and external auditors.

Management
Each department head is responsible 
for identifying the key risks affecting 
the respective areas in the business 

that they handle and adopt 
appropriate risk mitigation measures 

with the approval of CEO and 
Executive Director.

Internal audit plan is designed 
to identify key business risks and 

assess the effectiveness of measures 
designed to address those risks.

Any key risk identified by the 
External Auditors during the years 
end is reported to the board Audit 
Committee via the management 

letter.

Risk Identification
The purpose of risk identification 
is to find, recognise and describe 
risks that might help or prevent an 

organization achieving its objectives.

Risk Analysis
The purpose of risk analysis is to 
comprehend the nature of risk 

and its characteristics including, 
where appropriate, the level of risk. 

Risk analysis involves a detailed 
consideration of uncertainties, risk 
sources, consequences, likelihood, 
events, scenarios, controls and their 

effectiveness.

Risk Mitigation
Based on the risk analysis and the 

likelihood and impact of the risk, the 
decision is taken to either accept, 

minimize, avoid or transfer the risks. 

Implementation and monitoring
Once the risk mitigation plans 

have been put in place continuous 
monitoring is carried out to assess 
the effectiveness of the measures 

taken.

Review
Continuous review is performed 

in recognition of the evolving 
trends of the business and external 
environment and the risk strategies 
and plans are updated accordingly 
to stay ahead of the changes and 

potential impacts.
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The functions that enable Sierra Cables to effectively control its risks have been assigned to three levels. These three levels play a 
distinct role within the Three Lines of Defense model, to better identify and structure interactions and responsibilities of key players 
towards achieving more effective alignment, collaboration and accountability.

1st line of defence:
Management

Each department head is responsible for identifying the key risks affecting the respective areas in 
the business that they handle and adopt appropriate risk mitigation measures with the approval of 
CEO and Executive Director.

The internal audit plan is designed to identify key business risks and assess the effectiveness of 
measures designed to address those risks.

Any key risk identified by the External Auditors as at the year-end is reported to the Board Audit 
Committee via the management letter.

2nd line of defence:
Board Audit Committee

Reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework by evaluating the risk management 
reports submitted by the respective department heads as well as from internal and external 
auditors.

3rd line of defence:
Board of Directors

Retains overall accountability for the governance of risk and effective risk management.

Risk Management Process
A well-structured risk management process has been implemented at Sierra Cables involving risk identification, analysis, mitigation, 
implementation and monitoring and review as demonstrated below:

Risk Identification The purpose of risk identification is to find, recognize and describe risks that might help or prevent 
an organization achieving its objectives.

Risk Analysis The purpose of risk analysis is to comprehend the nature of risk and its characteristics including, 
where appropriate, the level of risk. Risk analysis involves a detailed consideration of uncertainties, 
risk sources, consequences, likelihood, events, scenarios, controls and their effectiveness.

Risk Mitigation Based on the risk analysis and the likelihood and impact of the risk, the decision is taken to either 
accept, minimize, avoid or transfer the risks.

Implementation and 
monitoring

Once the risk mitigation plans have been put in place continuous monitoring is carried out to 
assess the effectiveness of the measures taken.

Review Continuous review is performed in recognition of the evolving trends of the business and external 
environment and the risk strategies and plans are updated accordingly to stay ahead of the 
changes and potential impacts.

Risk Register
In support of the above risk management process the Company maintains a comprehensive risk register, which is addressed 
quarterly with the risk owners.

Risk Culture
As risk management is a vital element of corporate sustainability, the Company encourages a culture of risk awareness among all its 
employees. The Company recognizes that risk management is the responsibility of all employees, rather than being a separate and 
stand-alone process and regular training on risk awareness forms part of the training calendar of the workforce.
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Principle Risks
Risk Impact Mitigation Process Priority

Market Risk
Assessment

Impact H

Likelihood H

The Financial year under review 
witnessed significant business 
interruptions due to COVID-19 
impacts resulting in reduced sales, 
impacting operating margins and 
profitability.

• Completion of the pending projects with 
minimal staff upon obtaining special 
permission prior to lifting lockdown.

• Monitoring market trends for key inputs at 
sector level to ensure we receive competitive 
pricing.

H

Financial Risk
Assessment

Impact H

Likelihood H

Financial markets continue to be 
fluctuating and increase the risk 
of investing and funding activities. 
Volatile financial conditions will lead 
to potential losses and increasing 
credit risk of the business.

• Borrowing from fixed interest rate funding 
sources.

• Maintain positive relationships with financial 
institutions in order to obtain lucrative rates.

• Sales representatives to collect debts in 
frequent basis.

• Monthly meetings with sales representatives 
to review on debt collection.

H

Customer Risk

Assessment

Impact H

Likelihood M

Customer attraction, retention and 
customer satisfaction is a crucial 
factor determining the market share 
of the business.

• Improve the customer engagement in 
order understand the customer interest 
and their requirements and focus more on 
improvements to the existing products in 
order to maintain customer satisfaction.

• Enhanced the local market presence 
via expansion of the coverage of sales 
representatives across the island.

H

Employee Risk

Assessment

Impact H

Likelihood L

Long-term growth of the Company 
is directly linked to the employees’ 
commitment to the Company’s 
vision mission and targets.

Failure to attract skilled labour or 
retain and develop talent will affect 
the ultimate growth prospects of the 
Company.

• Having a transparent and fair mechanism to 
recruit staff.

• Identify training needs through skill gap 
analysis and provide ongoing as well as cross 
functional trainings to increase awareness of 
other department functions.

M

Health and Safety 
Risk

Assessment

Impact H

Likelihood L

The likelihood that an individual may 
be harmed or suffers adverse health 
effects if exposed to a workplace 
hazard or viral infection

• Operations and plants are designed 
considering employee health and safety.

• Implement health and safety protocols 
recommended by GOSL.

M
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Risk Impact Mitigation Process Priority

Inventory & Supply 
Chain Risk

Assessment

Impact M

Likelihood M

Since the manufacturing industry is 
highly dependent on the availability 
of raw materials poor inventory 
management would increase the risk 
of obsolete inventory. This may lead 
to increase stock holding costs.

• Focus on developing and maintaining strong 
relationships with suppliers through long-
term contracts.

• Regularly evaluating the stock level.

• Thoroughly protect the warehouses in order 
to minimise unnecessary losses.

M

Information Risk

Assessment

Impact M

Likelihood L

Real time accurate information 
greatly impacts management 
decisions and a loss of sensitive 
information may lead to a loss of 
competitive advantage.

• Regular backups of all data bases.

• Regular system upgrades and implementing 
the ERP system inclusive of new functions.

• Improving cyber security to protect 
confidential information.

M

Exchange Rate Risk

Assessment

Impact H

Likelihood H

Drastic depreciation of the Sri 
Lankan Rupee against the USD post 
COVID-19 exposes the Company 
to higher levels of risk when 
conducting transactions involving 
foreign currency movements.

• Effective management of exchange rate 
exposure using financial risk management 
tools such as hedging.

H
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REPORT OF THE BOARD AUDIT 
COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference
The Group Audit Committee was established to assist the 
Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility for the Group’s 
financial reporting system, compliance with legal and 
regulatory requirements, internal control mechanism, risk 
management process, internal audit function and review of 
independence and performance of External Auditors with 
a view to safeguarding the interests of shareholders and all 
other stakeholders.

The Audit Committee Charter clearly defines the Terms of 
Reference, the composition and role and responsibilities of 
the Committee and is reviewed periodically to ensure that 
emerging trends in the business environment are adequately 
addressed within the Committee’s functions.

Key Responsibilities of the Committee
• Exercising oversight in relation to compliance of published 

financial reports with the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, 
other legal and regulatory requirements, reporting 
standards and governance standards.

• Review of controls in the preparation and presentation 
of the financial statements and ensuring the adequacy of 
disclosures in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards.

• Monitoring and review of the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the Group’s internal control system and risk management 
function and ensuring the Company’s assets are properly 
safeguarded.

• Monitoring the internal audit function and carrying out 
discussions with the internal auditors regarding the audit 
program, audit findings and following up on the issues 
presented.

• Assessing the independence and performance of the 
external auditors and making recommendations to the 
Board relating to the appointment, re-appointment and 
removal of the External Auditors.

• Defining the non-audit services to be obtained from the 
external auditors.

• Approving remuneration and terms of engagement of the 
External Auditors.

• Carrying out discussions in relation to the findings arising 
from the annual financial statements audit.

• Recommending to the Board the approval of the Annual 
Report and Audited Annual Financial Statements and 
Quarterly Reports.

Activities in 2021/22
Financial reporting
The Audit Committee reviews and recommends the 
Company’s quarterly and annual financial statements to the 
Board for approval, prior to release, including the extent 
of compliance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKASs 
and SLFRSs) and the adequacy of disclosures required by 
other applicable laws, rules and guidelines. Accordingly, the 
Committee ensures that an effective of financial reporting 
system is in place providing reasonable assurance on the 
reliability and timeliness of the information provided to the 
stakeholders.

Furthermore, discussions are carried out in consultation with 
the Management on the accounting developments and tax 
regulations that are likely to affect the financial statements.

Internal Audit, Risk and Controls
The Committee reviews the Internal Audit plan at regular 
intervals and accommodates changes to suit the operating 
environment and business needs. Performance of the Internal 
Auditors and the resourcing requirements are also monitored 
and discussed. Monitoring of follow-up action is done to 
ensure audit findings are addressed in a timely manner.

The Committee also reviews the adequacy and effectiveness 
of internal controls and risk management methods in place 
highlighting any areas which require attention and makes 
recommendations to the Board.

Composition and Meetings
The Remuneration Committee is a sub-committee of the 
Board of Directors of the Company and reports directly 
to the Board. As at 31st March 2022 the Committee 
comprised of the following Directors.

Name Category Meetings 
Attended

Mr. P.E.A.B. Perera (C) INED 4/4

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane INED 4/4

Mr. B.W.N. Rupasinghe INED 4/4

(C) - Chairman
INED - Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. R. D. S. Malinga – Finance Manager acted as the 
Secretary to the Committee
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Upon review of the processes established for identification, 
evaluation and management of operational risks faced by the 
Company during the year, the Committee is satisfied that an 
effective system of internal controls is in place to safeguard 
the Company’s assets.

External Audit
Messrs. KPMG were appointed as the External Auditors of 
the Company and the Audit Committee is satisfied that the 
independence and objectivity of the External Auditors has not 
been adversely influenced by any event or service that could 
result in a conflict of interest. Due consideration has been 
given to the level of audit and non-audit fees received by the 
External Auditors.

The Committee also reviewed the arrangements made by the 
Auditors to maintain their independence and confirmation has 
been received from the Auditors of their compliance with the 
independence guidance given in the Code of Ethics of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

The performance of the External Auditors has been discussed 
with the senior management of the Company and the Audit 
Committee has recommended to the Board that Messrs. 
KPMG, Chartered Accountants be re-appointed as External 
Auditors for the ensuing financial year, subject to approval by 
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Committee Effectiveness
The performance of the Committee is reviewed annually 
as part of the Board effectiveness review. The Committee 
completed its self-assessment for the year 2021/22, conducted 
by the Chairman and Committee Members and the review 
concluded that the Committee continues to operate 
effectively.

(Sgd.)
Mr. P.E.A.B. Perera
Chairman- Audit Committee

31st August 2022
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REPORT OF THE BOARD REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE

Composition and Meetings
The Remuneration Committee is a sub-committee of the 
Board of Directors of the Company and reports directly 
to the Board. As at 31st March 2022 the Committee 
comprised of the following Directors.

Name Category Meetings 
Attended

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane (C) INED 1/1

Mr. B.W.N. Rupasinghe INED 1/1

Mr. P.E.A.B. Perera INED 1/1

(C) - Chairman
INED - Independent Non-Executive Director

Key Responsibilities of the Committee
• Set the principles, parameters and governance framework 

of the Company’s remuneration policy.

• Make recommendations to the Board regarding the 
Company’s remuneration practices ensuring these are in line 
with the overall business strategy, objectives and long-term 
interests of the Company. 

• Make recommendations to the Board regarding the 
remuneration of the Executive Directors and Chief Executive 
Officer.

• Succession Planning for key positions of the Company.

Activities in 2021/22
• Evaluated the Company Remuneration Policy against the 

current market trends and industrial norms.

• Evaluated the performance of the Executive Directors, Chief 
Executive Officer as well as the individual and collective 
performance of Directors and Senior Management.

• Reviewed, monitored and evaluated performance of Key 
Management Personnel as well as their development needs 
and succession planning.

Committee Effectiveness
The annual evaluation of the performance of the Committee 
was carried out by the Board and the Committee was deemed 
to be operating effectively.

The Committee will continue to assist the Board of Directors 
by strengthening and presenting the policies and systems 
aimed towards reinforcing the Human Capital resource in line 
with strategic business priorities and provide opportunities 
to the employees to enhance and acquire new skills and 
knowledge within the Company for their career progression. 

(Sgd.)
Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane
Chairman-Remuneration Committee

31st August 2022

Terms of Reference
The Committee’s Terms of Reference outline the composition, 
role and responsibilities of the committee. 

The objective of the Committee is to ensure that appropriate 
human resource policies and practices are adopted across 
the Group and a strong remuneration framework is in place 
to attract, retain and motivate high caliber Key Management 
Personnel (KMP) who contribute positively to achieving the 
Company’s strategic goals.

Remuneration Policy
The remuneration policy of Sierra Cables PLC is designed to: 

• Attract and retain high caliber individuals.

• Provide a competitive total compensation package 
including benefits.

• Ensure fair and equitable compensation.

• Be in line with the industry benchmarks and individual 
performance standards.

• Ensure compliance with the laws and regulations applicable 
in the country.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD RELATED PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS REVIEW COMMITTEE

Composition and Meetings
The Related Party Transactions Review Committee is a 
sub-committee of the Board of Directors of the Company 
and reports directly to the Board. As at 31st March 2022 
the Committee comprised of the following Directors.

Name Category Meetings 
Attended

Mr. P.E.A.B. Perera (C) INED 4/4

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane INED 4/4

Mr. B.W.N. Rupasinghe INED 4/4

(C) - Chairman
INED - Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. R. D. S. Malinga – Finance Manager acted as the 
Secretary to the Committee.

• Obtain competent independent professional advice to 
assess all aspects of proposed related party transactions 
where necessary. Additionally, the Committee is authorized 
to access data and information pertaining to Related Parties 
as well as obtain clarifications from the Management & 
Auditors (External or Internal) on any associated matter.

Activities in 2021/22
The Committee reviewed all recurrent and non-recurrent 
related party transactions and their compliance and 
communicated their observations to the Board.

A detailed disclosure of all the related party transactions 
including Recurrent and Non-Recurrent related party 
transactions which are required to be disclosed under section 
9.3.2 of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange has 
been made in Note 35.1 to the Financial Statements on pages 
114 to 116.

Committee Effectiveness
The annual evaluation of the performance of the committee 
was carried out by the Board and the committee was deemed 
to be operating effectively.

The Committee will continue to assist the Board of Directors 
by reviewing all related party transactions and ensuring that:

• They comply with Section 9 of the Listing Rules of the 
Colombo Stock Exchange.

• The Shareholder interests are safeguarded.

• They are carried out at arms-length on fair, transparent and 
commercial terms.

Declaration
The Committee has reviewed all related party transactions 
during the period and has established that they are in the best 
interest of the Company and comply with all standards of best 
practice and reporting.

(Sgd.)
Mr. P.E.A.B. Perera
Chairman-Related Party Transactions Review Committee

31st August 2022

Terms of Reference
The Committee is governed by the mandate approved by 
the Board of Directors which encompasses the Committee’s 
purpose, duties and responsibilities. The Committee assists 
the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities pertaining 
to all aspects of related party transactions in line with the 
listing rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange and the Code 
of Best Practice on Related Party Transactions issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. In doing so, 
the Committee places emphasis on ensuring that procedures 
are in place to ensure that the Company does not engage in 
any transactions with related parties in a manner that would 
be more advantages to such parties and acts in the interest of 
the shareholders.

Key responsibilities of the Committee
• Ensuring the effectiveness of the mechanisms implemented 

for documenting related party transactions in line with LKAS 
24 and CSE listing rules.

• Establishing threshold values for each transaction and 
making recommendations on related party transactions 
which have to be pre-approved by the Board, those that 
require immediate market disclosure, those that require 
Shareholder approval and those which require disclosure in 
the Annual Report.

• To review in advance all proposed related party transactions 
of the Group either prior to the transaction being entered 
into or, if the transaction is expressed to be conditional on 
such review, prior to the completion of the transaction.



OUR STRENGTHS
TO DELIVER VALUE
We moved ahead towards greater strides of 
success through a well-calibrated operating 
model delivering long-term growth with 
attractive returns. Moving into the future, we 
hope to leverage this firm foundation we have 
set today, to action our blueprint of continuous 
growth.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial year end 31st March 2022

Interim Results for Financial Year 2021/2022
1st quarter 12th August 2021

2nd quarter 09th November 2021

3rd Quarter 14th February 2022

4th Quarter 31st May 2022

Audited Financial Statements 31st August 2022

19th Annual General Meeting 23rd September 2022
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The responsibility of the Directors in relation to the Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 which 
have been prepared and presented in conformity with 
the requirements of the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, 
the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange and the 
Companies Act No.7 of 2007, is set out in the following 
statement.

The responsibility of the Auditors in relation to the Financial 
Statements is set out in the Report of the Auditors on pages 
58 to 61 of the Report. As per the provisions of the Companies 
Act No. 7 of 2007, the Directors are required to prepare 
Financial Statements, for each financial year and place before 
a General Meeting which comprise of:

1) An Income Statement, which presents a true and fair view 
of the profit and loss of the Company and its subsidiaries 
for the financial year;

2) A Statement of Financial Position, which presents a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its 
subsidiaries as at the end of the financial year;

3) A Statement of Changes in Equity which presents a true 
and fair view of the changes in the Company’s and its 
Subsidiaries’ retained earnings for the financial year;

4) A Statement of Cash Flow which presents a true and fair 
view of the flow of cash in and out of the business for the 
financial year;

and which comply with the requirements of the Act.

The Directors are of the view that, in preparing these Financial 
Statements:

 The appropriate accounting policies have been selected 
and applied in a consistent manner. Material deviations, if 
any have been disclosed and explained;

 All applicable Accounting Standards, as relevant, have 
been followed;

 Judgements and estimates have been made which are 
reasonable and prudent.

The Directors are also of the view that the Company has 
adequate resources to continue in operation and have 
applied the going concern basis in preparing these Financial 
Statements.

Further, the Directors have a responsibility to ensure that 
the Company maintains sufficient accounting records to 
disclose, with reasonable accuracy the financial position 
of the Company and of the Group, also to reflect the 
transparency of transactions and to ensure that the Financial 
Statements presented comply with the requirements of the 
Companies Act.

The Directors are also responsible for taking reasonable 
steps to safeguard the Assets of the Company and that of 
the Group and in this regard to give proper consideration 
to the establishment of appropriate internal control systems 
with a view to preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities.

The Directors are required to prepare the Financial Statements 
and to provide the Auditors with every opportunity to take 
whatever steps and undertake whatever inspections they may 
consider to be appropriate to enable them to give their Audit 
Opinion.

The Directors are of the view that they have discharged their 
responsibilities as set out in this statement.

COMPLIANCE REPORT
The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge, 
all taxes, duties and levies payable by the Company and its 
subsidiaries, all contributions levies and taxes payable on 
behalf of and in respect of the employees of the Company 
and its subsidiaries, and all other known statutory dues as 
were due and payable by the Company and its subsidiaries as 
at the Balance Sheet date have been paid or, where relevant 
provided for.

The Board of Directors confirms that the Company, based 
on the information available, satisfies the Solvency test as 
and when required according to the Section 56(2) of the 
Companies Act No 07 of 2007.

By order of the Board

(Sgd.)  
Mr. W. A. P. Perera  
Chairman / Non-Executive Director

31st August 2022
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON 
THE AFFAIRS OF SIERRA CABLES PLC

The Directors of Sierra Cables PLC (the Company) have the 
pleasure in submitting their Report together with the Audited 
Financial Statements of the Company and the Audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year 
ended 31st March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing, 
marketing and distribution of power cables. The two 
subsidiaries, Sierra Industries (Private) Limited and Sierra 
Cables East Africa Limited are engaged in the manufacturing 
of uPVC pipes and fittings and manufacture and sale of wires 
and cables, respectively. The two associate Companies and 
the Joint Venture, Tea Leaf Resort (Private) Limited, T & G 
Lanka (Private) Limited and Cables PTE Limited are diversified 
into leisure sector and manufacturing of cables, respectively.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
A review of the Company’s business and its performance 
during the financial year is contained in the Chairman’s 
message on pages 7 to 8 and the Chief Executive Officer’s 
report on pages 9 to 11 of the Annual Report, together with 
the Financial Statements which reflects the state of affairs of 
the Company.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The completed financial statements of the Group has been 
duly certified by the person responsible for the preparation 
of the financial statements of the Company have been signed 
by two Directors on behalf of the Board of Directors and 
the Auditors confirm the Company is in compliance with the 
requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. Details 
are given on pages 58 to 61.

AUDITORS’ REPORT
The Auditos’ Report on the Financial Statements is given on 
pages 58 to 61.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The Group made Profit After Taxation of Rs.472 Mn during 
the year compared to Rs. 320 Mn in the previous year. The 
detailed results are given in the Income Statement on  
page 62.

DIVIDENDS
No dividends were made by the Company during the year 
under review.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation 
of the financial statements are given on pages 70 to 85 and 

changes to accounting policies made during the accounting 
period is described under Note 3 to the Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
An analysis of the Property, Plant and Equipment of the 
Company is disclosed in Note 13 of the Financial Statements 
on pages 90 to 94.

STATED CAPITAL
The stated Capital of the Company as at the date of this 
report is  Rs. 894,565,898 which consists of 537,512,430 
ordinary voting shares. 
(2021 - Rs. 894,565,898 which consists of 537,512,430 ordinary 
voting shares)

RESERVES
The Group retained earnings and other reserves as at 31st 
March 2022 amounted to Rs. 2,874,719,219 as compared with 
Rs.1,810,913,644 in the previous year.

DONATIONS
Donations made by the Company during the year amounted 
to Rs. 438,300.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
There were no material capital commitment as at the 
reporting period as disclosed in the Note 32 of the financial 
statements.

PROVISION FOR THE TAXATION
Provision for taxation of the Company is disclosed in Note 9 of 
the financial statements.

STATUTORY PAYMENTS
The Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief, are 
satisfied that all statutory payments due to relevant authorities 
have been made by the Company.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There were no material contingent liabilities as at the 
reporting date which require adjustments to or disclosure in 
the financials Statements.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Post balance sheet events of the Company are disclosed in 
Note 33 of the financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The details of the significant risks identified by the Company 
and strategies and actions adopted in managing them are set 
out on pages 43 to 46.
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE 
AFFAIRS OF SIERRA CABLES PLC

GOING CONCERN
The Directors having made an assessment of the Company’s 
operating conditions, financial position, risks and future 
prospects have a reasonable expectation that the Company 
has adequate resources to continue its operations as a going 
concern in the foreseeable future.

DIRECTORS WHO HELD OFFICE DURING  
THE YEAR
The Directors of the Company during the year were as follows.

Mr. W. A. P. Perera - Non- Executive Director/Chairman

Mr. D. S. Panditha - Executive Director

Mr. P. Weerasingha - Executive Director 
(Appointed wef 11th February 2022)

Ms. S. S. Kotakadeniya - Non- Executive Director 
(Appointed wef 11th February 2022)

Ms. T. A. P. Weerasinghe – Non-Executive Director

Mr. P. E. A. B. Perera – Independent Non- Executive Director

Mr. B. W. N. Rupasinghe - Independent Non- Executive 
Director

Prof. A. K. W. Jayawardane - Independent Non- Executive 
Director

Mr. D S K Amarasekara – Non-Executive Director  
(appointed wef 06th June 2022)

Ms. G S M Irugalbandara – Non – Executive Director 
(Resigned on 11th February 2022)

Ms. S N Lokuge – Non – Executive Director  
(Resigned on 11th February 2022)

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
Ms. S. S. Kotakadeniya was appointed to the Board on  
11th February 2022 as a Non-Executive Director.

Mr. P Weerasingha was appointed to the Board on  
11th February 2022 as an Executive Director.

Mr. D S K Amarasekara was appointed to the Board on  
06th June 2022 as a Non-Executive Director.

RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS
Ms. G. S. M Irugalbandara, Non – Executive Director resigned 
on 11th February 2022.

Ms. S. N. Lokuge, Non – Executive Director resigned on  
11th February 2022.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
 Mr. P.E.A.B. Perera who retires by rotation in accordance 

with Article 91 of the Articles of Association of the Company 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

 Mr. W.A.P. Perera retires by rotation in accordance with 
Article 91 of the Articles of Association of the Company 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

 Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane retires by rotation in accordance 
with Article 91 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

 Ms. S. S. Kotakadeniya, who was appointed to the Board 
on 11th February 2022 retires in terms of Article 97 of the 
Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible, 
offers herself for re-election.

 Mr. P. Weerasingha, who was appointed to the Board on 
11th February 2022 retires in terms of Article 97 of the 
Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-election.

 Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekara who was appointed to the Board 
on 06th June 2022 retires in terms of Article 97 of the 
Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-election.

  Directors hereby recommend that Mr. D.S. Panditha, 
who vacates office in terms of Section 210 (2) (b) of the 
Companies Act, be re-appointed as an Executive Director 
of the Company, in terms of Section 211 of the Companies 
Act No. 7 of 2007 for a period of one year or until the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting whichever 
occurs first and it is hereby declared that the age limit of 
70 years referred to in Section 210 of the Companies Act 
No. 7 of 2007 shall not apply to the said Director.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information called for by this item with respect to the 
practice followed by the Company is set out in the Corporate 
Governance Report on pages 33 to 42.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board established the following Committees for better 
monitoring and guidance of different aspect of operations 
and control.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. P. E. A. B. Perera – Chairman  
(Appointed wef 07th July 2021)

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane - Member

Mr. B.W.N. Rupasinghe - Member

Mr. M. N. Gunasekara – Chairman  
(Resigned wef 05th May 2021)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane - Chairman

Mr. B.W.N. Rupasinghe - Member 

Mr. P. E. A. B. Perera - Member 
(Appointed wef 07th July 2021) 

Mr. M.N. Gunasekera - Member  
(Resigned wef 05th May 2021)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS REVIEW 
COMMITTEE
Mr. P. E. A. B. Perera - Chairman 
(appointed wef 07th July 2021)

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane - Member

Mr. B.W.N. Rupasinghe - Member

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE
Mr. W.A.P. Perera - Chairman

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane - Member

Mr. M.N. Gunasekera - Member  
(Resigned wef 05th May 2021)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In terms of Section 9 of the Listing Rules of the CSE, 
there were no any related party transactions that required 
shareholder approval or non-recurrent related party 
transactions that required immediate market disclosures 
during the year under review except those which were duly 
disclosed by way of market announcements via CSE website.

The Directors declare that the Company has complied with 
Section 9 of the Listing Rules of the CSE.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST REGISTER
The Company maintains an Interest Register in terms of the 
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. The Directors have made 
declarations and disclosed their interests to the Board and 
those interests are recorded in the interests register as 
provided for in Section 192(2) of the Companies Act No. 7 of 
2007.

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION AND OTHER 
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS
Directors’ remuneration in respect of the Company for the 
financial year 2021/22 is given in Note 7 to the financial 
statements on page 86.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

Name No. of Shares 
as at 31st 

March 2022

No. of Shares 
as at 31st 

March 2021

Mr. W.A.P. Perera 598,078  3,920,510 

Mr. D.S. Panditha 11,738,918  17,601,297 

Mr. P. Weerasingha  60,000  -   

Ms. S. S. Kotakadeniya - -

Ms. T.A.P Weerasinghe - -

Mr. P.E.A.B. Perera - -

Mr. B.W.N. Rupasinghe - -

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane - -
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
None of the Directors had a direct or indirect interest in any contracts or proposed contracts with the Company other than as 
disclosed in Note 35.2.1 on page 117 of the financial statements.

SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
The distribution and analysis of shareholdings were as follows;

Shareholding As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

From -To No. of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares % No. of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares %

1-1,000 14,193 12,329,521 2.29 13,929 12,406,708 2.31

1,001-10,000 6,702 16,926,905 3.15 6,478 15,750,128 2.93

10,001-100,000 926 28,591,334 5.32 919 28,257,096 5.26

100,001-1,000,000 128 33,585,640 6.25 130 36,876,001 6.86

1,000,001-10,000,000 14 446,079,030 82.99 18 444,222,497 82.64

Total 21,963 537,512,430 100.00 21,474 537,512,430 100.00

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

No. of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares % No. of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares %

Resident 21,922 533,369,480 99.23 21,432 533,063,103 99.17

Non-Resident 41 4,142,950 0.78 42 4,449,327 0.83

Total 21,963 537,512,430 100.00 21,474 537,512,430 100

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

No. of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares % No. of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares %

Individual 21,657 89,188,371 16.59 21,210 110,729,588 26.48

Institutional 306 448,324,059 83.41 264 426,782,842 73.52

Total 21,963 537,512,430 100.00 21,474 537,512,430 100

Share Price As at 31st 
March 2022

As at 31st 
March 2021

(Rs) (Rs.) 

High 18.50  10.60 

Low 5.50 1.60

Close  6.80 5.70

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE 
AFFAIRS OF SIERRA CABLES PLC
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PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
The percentage of public shareholding as at 31st of March 
2022 was 29.10% (2021 - 37.53%).

FLOAT ADJUSTED MARKET CAPITALISATION 
The float adjusted market capitalisation for the year ended 
31st March 2022 was Rs.1.064Bn. 

The float adjusted market capitalization of the Company falls 
under Option-5 as per section 7.14.1 (a) of the Listing Rules 
of Colombo Stock Exchange and the Company has complied 
with the minimum public holding requirement applicable 
under the said option.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The notice of the Annual General Meeting is on page 131.

AUDITORS
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 
have been audited by Messrs KPMG (Chartered Accountants) 
who offer themselves for reappointment. As far as the 
Directors are aware, the Auditors do not have any relationship 
(other than that of an Auditor) with the Company other than 
those disclosed above. The Auditors also do not have any 
interest in the Company.

The Auditors Messrs KPMG, Chartered Accountants were paid 
Rs. 1,750, 000 (2020/21 Rs. 1,400,000) as Audit fees by  
the Company.

A resolution relating to their re-appointment and authorizing 
the Directors to determine their remuneration will be 
proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

ANNUAL REPORT
The Board of Directors approved the Consolidated Financial 
Statements on 31st August 2022. The appropriate number of 
copies of this report will be submitted to the Colombo Stock 
Exchange and to the Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing 
Standards Monitoring Board on or before 31st August 2022.

By Order of the Board

(Sgd.)    (Sgd.) 
Mr. W. A. P. Perera  Mr. D. S. Panditha 
Chairman / Non-Executive Director Executive Director

(Sgd.)  
L O L C Corporate Services (Private) Limited  
Secretaries

31st August 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To The Shareholders Of Sierra Cables PLC
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Sierra Cables PLC 
(“the Company”) and the consolidated financial statements 
of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 
2022, and the income statement, statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information set out in pages 62 to 126 of the Annual Report.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of 
the Company and the Group give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of the Company and the Group as at March 
31, 2022, and of their financial performance and cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by CA Sri 
Lanka (Code of Ethics) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Company financial statements and the consolidated financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the Company financial 
statements and the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Carrying value of Inventories
Refer note 19 to the financial statements and the accounting policies in note 3.7 to the Financial Statements.

Risk Description Our Responses

The Company and Group recorded inventories of Rs. 1.786 Bn 
and Rs. 2.032 Bn respectively as at 31st March 2022 at lower of 
cost and net realizable value.

The Company and Group have a significant amount of inventory 
and judgment is exercised with regard to categorisation of 
inventories as obsolete and/or slow-moving to be considered 
for provision/write off; estimates are then involved in arriving at 
the amount to be provided/ written off, against cost in respect 
of slow moving and obsolete inventories to arrive valuation 
based on lower of cost and net realizable value.

Given the level of judgements and estimates involved, this is 
considered to be a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included;

 Obtaining an understanding and assessing the design, 
implementation, and operating effectiveness of 
management’s key controls over the inventory valuation and 
monitoring.

 Comparison of inventory levels, by product group, to sales 
data to corroborate whether slow-moving and obsolete 
inventories had been appropriately identified and challenge 
the categorisation as obsolete or slow moving.

 On a sample basis, physically verifying the inventories 
and challenging the inventory provisioning in line with our 
observations of potentially obsolete inventory.

 Performing roll-back procedures to ensure the movements 
between the physical verification date and inventories as at 
reporting date is accurate.

KPMG Tel : +94 - 11 542 6426
Fax : +94 - 11 244 5872

Internet : www.kpmg.com/lk
  +94 - 11 244 6058

(Chartered Accountants)
32A, Sir Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha,
P. O. Box 186,
Colombo 00300, Sri Lanka.
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Carrying value of Inventories
Refer note 19 to the financial statements and the accounting policies in note 3.7 to the Financial Statements.

Risk Description Our Responses

 On a sample basis, assessing the realisations of inventories 
after the period end, in particular of clearance categories, 
and comparing these to the expected recoveries with the 
cost to identify any instances of NRV is lower than cost.

 Assessing whether the accounting policies had been 
consistently applied and the adequacy of the disclosures in 
respect of the judgement and estimation made in respect of 
inventory write-off.

Impairment of trade receivables 
Refer note 20 to the financial statements and the accounting policies in note 3.9 to the Financial Statements.

Risk Description Our Responses

The Company and Group recorded trade receivable balance 
(net of impairment) of Rs. 1.650 Bn and Rs. 2.001 Bn respectively 
as at 31st March 2022.

The determination of impairment provision using the expected 
credit loss model is subject to a number of key parameters and 
assumptions, estimates of the probability of default, loss given 
default, macroeconomic forecasts, exposures at default and 
discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking information, 
and other adjustment factors. In particular, the determination 
of the impairment provision is heavily dependent on the 
external macro environment and the Group’s internal credit 
risk management strategy. Management judgement is involved 
in the selection of those parameters and the application of 
assumptions. Further recoverability of trade receivables remains 
one of the most significant judgment made by the management 
particularly in light of the prevailing uncertain and volatile 
macro- economic outlook in Sri Lanka as at the reporting date.

We identified the impairment of trade receivables as a key audit 
matter because of the inherent uncertainty and management 
judgement involved and the materiality of the reported amounts 
for trade receivables (and impairment provision thereof).

Our audit procedures included;

 Obtaining an understanding and assessing the design, 
implementation, and operating effectiveness of 
management’s key internal controls over the approval, 
recording, and monitoring of trade receivables.

 Assessing the reliability of the expected credit loss 
model used by management in determining impairment 
provisions, including assessing the appropriateness of the 
key parameters and assumptions in the expected credit 
loss model, including the identification of probability of 
default, loss given default, exposure at default, discount 
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and other 
management adjustments and assessing the reasonableness 
of key management judgement;

 Evaluating the model methodology and key assumptions 
by testing the completeness and accuracy of key inputs 
into models and assessed the appropriateness of other 
assumptions. We substantially tested the completeness 
and accuracy of key inputs into models and assessing the 
appropriateness of assumptions.

 Recalculating the amount of impairment for samples of 
trade receivables to verify the calculation accuracy of the 
impairment provision.

 Evaluating whether the disclosures on impairment of 
trade receivables meet the disclosure requirements of the 
prevailing accounting standards.
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Valuation of lands and buildings
Refer note 13 to the financial statements and the accounting policies in note 3.3 to the Financial Statements.

Risk Description Our Responses

The Company and Group have recorded its lands and buildings 
classified under Property, Plant & Equipment at fair value of Rs. 
1.622 Bn and 1.973 Bn respectively as at 31st March 2022.

The management’s assessment of fair value of its lands and 
buildings is based on valuations performed by a qualified 
independent property valuer in accordance with recognised 
industry standards.

Valuation of lands and buildings is considered a Key Audit 
Matter due to the subjective nature of property valuations using 
level 3 assumptions which depend on the nature of property, its 
location and value per square foot, market price per perch and 
capitalisation rates. A change in the key assumptions will have a 
significant impact on the valuation.

Our audit procedures included;

  Assessing the objectivity, independence, competence and 
qualification of the property valuer engaged by the Group 
and challenging the methodology adopted and assumptions 
used.

  With the assistance of our own internal property valuation 
specialists assessing the key assumptions applied and 
conclusions made in deriving the fair value of the properties 
and comparing the fair value of properties with evidence of 
current market values. In addition to that, we have assessed 
the valuation methodologies with reference to recognized 
industry standards.

  On sample basis, testing of data inputs underpinning the 
valuation such as the price per perch, price per square 
foot and the area extent against our knowledge of the 
business and industry, to assess the accuracy, reliability and 
completeness thereof.

  Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial 
statements in relation to fair value of lands and buildings.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the 
annual report, but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those 
Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such internal control 

as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SLAuSs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
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expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SLAuSs, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company and the Group’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding 
the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for 
the direction, supervision and performance of the group 
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with ethical requirements in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements
As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 
2007, we have obtained all the information and explanations 
that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from 
our examination, proper accounting records have been kept 
by the Company.

CA Sri Lanka membership number of the engagement partner 
responsible for signing this independent auditor’s report is 
2599.

  
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Colombo, Sri Lanka

31st August 2022
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INCOME 
STATEMENT

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Revenue 5 8,257,835,280 5,498,555,123  7,815,415,841 5,254,615,046

Cost of Sales (6,713,699,940) (4,617,597,229) (6,369,211,317) (4,395,857,829)

Gross Profit 1,544,135,340 880,957,894 1,446,204,524 858,757,217

Other Income 6 40,245,489 79,604,614 39,374,419 78,843,415

Selling and Distribution Expenses (276,627,599) (243,070,422) (262,850,933) (268,225,400)

Administrative Expenses  (176,179,023) (167,034,372) (141,844,205) (109,379,840)

Other Operating Expenses  (52,634,009) (55,053,596) (85,850,098) (81,161,805)

Profit from Operations 7  1,078,940,198 495,404,118 995,033,707 478,833,587

Finance Income 8.1  15,250,984 944,690 15,183,763 911,158

Finance Cost 8.2  (531,244,267) (173,853,259) (547,586,721) (152,360,338)

Net Finance Costs 8  (515,993,283) (172,908,569) (532,402,958) (151,449,180)

Share of Profit of Equity-Accounted Investees, 
(Net of Tax) 17 20,690,955 15,101,345 - -

Profit Before Taxation  583,637,870 337,596,894  462,630,749 327,384,407

Income Tax Expense 9  (111,956,885) (17,635,739)  (88,520,965) (30,891,880)

Profit from Continuing Operations  471,680,985 319,961,155  374,109,784 296,492,527

Discontinued Operation

Profit/Loss from Discontinued Operations 12 - - - -

Profit for the Year  471,680,985 319,961,155 374,109,784 296,492,527

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to :

Owners of the Company  465,548,034  323,018,593 374,109,784 296,492,527

Non - Controlling Interests  6,132,951 (3,057,438) - -

Profit  for the Year  471,680,985 319,961,155 374,109,784 296,492,527

Basic Earnings Per Share 10  0.87 0.60 0.70 0.55

Figures in  brackets indicate deductions.     

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes to these Financial Statements set out on  
pages 70 to 126 of the Annual Report.
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Profit for the Year  471,680,985 319,961,155 374,109,784 296,492,527

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be Reclassified to  
Profit or Loss

Revaluation Surplus on Land , Building & 
Motor Vehicle 13 733,193,509 544,391,443 626,991,822 463,021,043

Deferred Tax Impact on Revaluation Surplus 
of Land & Building (123,205,540) (63,563,284)  (104,089,237) (54,052,122)

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Defined Benefit 
Obligation 24  (5,058,407) (1,910,559)  (5,198,531) (1,910,559)

Deferred Tax Impact on Acturial Gain/ (Loss)  904,496 342,898  929,718 342,898

Equity Investments at FVOCI - Net Change in 
Fair Value 327,334 8,465,160 327,334 8,465,160

Items that are or may be Reclassified to 
Profit or Loss

Foreign Operations- Foreign Currency 
Translation Difference  198,248  (3,785,972) - -

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, 
Net of  Tax  606,359,640  483,939,686  518,961,106 415,866,620

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  1,078,040,625  803,900,841  893,070,890 712,358,947

Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to :

Owners of the Company  1,063,805,575  800,479,041  893,070,890 712,358,947

Non - Controlling Interests  14,235,050  3,421,800  -   -

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  1,078,040,625  803,900,841  893,070,890 712,358,947

Figures in  brackets indicate deductions.     

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes to these Financial Statements set out on  
pages 70 to 126 of the Annual Report.        
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Group Company

 As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment 13  2,799,890,735  1,942,237,591  2,039,081,384  1,470,560,214 

Intangible Assets 14  571,586  2,555,545  571,586  2,555,545 

Right- of-Use Assets 15  123,677  2,528,281  123,677  2,528,281 

Investments in Subsidiaries 16  -    -    89,876,892  89,876,892 

Investment in Equity-Accounted Investees 17  53,266,907  32,575,952  31,610,163  31,610,163 

Other Non-Current Assets 18  29,344,528  29,017,194  29,344,528  29,017,194 

Total Non-Current Assets 2,883,197,433  2,008,914,563  2,190,608,230  1,626,148,289 

Current Assets

Inventories 19  2,032,132,009  1,742,847,403  1,786,169,315  1,639,488,164 

Trade and Other Receivables 20  2,742,021,334  2,651,711,150  2,086,264,904  2,303,895,982 

Derivative Financial Assets 20.2  -    24,909,645  -    24,909,645 

Amounts due from Related Companies 21  87,064,544  96,053,049  714,505,444  342,855,109 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 22  326,240,025  125,559,042  315,863,259  123,496,141 

Total Current Assets  5,187,457,912  4,641,080,289  4,902,802,922  4,434,645,041 

Assets Classified as Held for Sale 12 - - - -

Total Assets 8,070,655,345  6,649,994,852  7,093,411,152  6,060,793,330 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity 

Stated Capital 23.1  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898 

Revaluation Reserve 23.2  1,614,753,772  1,012,847,327  1,441,509,941  918,607,356 

Fair Value Reserve 23.3  17,705,002  17,377,668  17,705,002  17,377,668 

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 23.4  9,213,333  9,024,997  -    -   

Retained Earnings  1,233,047,112  771,663,652  1,108,524,378  738,683,407 

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of 
the Company  3,769,285,117  2,705,479,542  3,462,305,219  2,569,234,329 

Non-Controlling Interest 16.4  27,135,487  12,900,437  -    -   

Total Equity  3,796,420,604  2,718,379,979  3,462,305,219  2,569,234,329 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
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Group Company

 As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non-Current Liabilities

Retirement Benefit Obligations 24  80,106,867  64,392,757  78,547,281  63,168,477 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 25  293,977,241  204,657,526  235,253,051  168,202,891 

Term Loans Due After One Year 26  301,965,253  142,094,560  149,601,249  60,526,308 

Lease Liabilities Due After One Year 27  -    485,415  -    485,415 

Total Non-Current Liabilities  676,049,361  411,630,258  463,401,581  292,383,091 

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 28  1,372,248,737  2,049,390,480  1,264,874,861  1,878,183,861 

Term Loans Due Within One Year 26  132,670,133  74,612,460  80,622,024  7,894,740 

Lease Liability Due Within One Year 27  360,782  1,508,430  360,782  1,508,430 

Amounts due to Related Companies 29  1,243,932  1,205,467  30,666  504,594 

Import Demand Loans 30  1,682,392,479  1,222,117,705  1,549,340,079  1,222,117,705 

Income Tax Payable  84,732,265  38,450,141  67,220,938  41,246,703 

Bank Overdraft 22  324,537,052  132,699,932  205,255,002  47,719,877 

Total Current Liabilities  3,598,185,380  3,519,984,615  3,167,704,352  3,199,175,910 

Total Liabilities  4,274,234,741  3,931,614,873  3,631,105,933  3,491,559,001 

Total Equity and Liabilities  8,070,655,345  6,649,994,852  7,093,411,152  6,060,793,330 

Net Asset Value per Share 7.01 5.03 6.44 4.78

Figures in  brackets indicate deductions.        

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes to these Financial Statements set out on pages 70 to 
126 of the Annual Report.        

It is certified that the Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 
of 2007.

 
(Sgd.) 
Mr. R. D. S. Malinga  
Finance Manager

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements.

Approved and signed for and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

(Sgd.)     (Sgd.) 
Ms. S. S. Kotakadeniya   Mr. D. S. Panditha  
Non-Executive Director   Executive Director

31st August 2022
Colombo
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For the year ended 31st March Attributable to Owners of the Company

Non
 Controlling

Interest
Total

Equity Group
Stated
Capital

Revaluation
Reserve

 Foreign
 Currency 

Translation 
Reserve 

Fair Value
Reserve

Retained
Earnings Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1st April 2020 894,565,898 538,687,705      12,621,670  8,912,508 557,715,206  2,012,502,987 9,478,637  2,021,981,624 

Profit / (Loss) for the Year - - - -  323,018,593  323,018,593 (3,057,438) 319,961,155

Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Investments at FVOCI - 
Net Change in Fair Value - - - 8,465,160 - 8,465,160 - 8,465,160

Actuarial Gain on Retirement 
Benefit Obligation, Net of Tax - - - - (1,567,661) (1,567,661) - (1,567,661)

Revaluation Surplus on Property 
Plant and Equipment - 474,159,622 - - - 474,159,622 6,668,537 480,828,159

Net exchange differences on 
translation of foreign operations                      - - (3,596,673)                     - - (3,596,673) (189,299)  (3,785,972)

Total Comprehensive Income 
 for the Year - 474,159,622 (3,596,673) 8,465,160 321,450,932 800,479,041  3,421,800  803,900,841 

Transactions with Owners, 
Recognised Directly in Equity

Dividend Paid - Ordinary Shares                      - - - (107,502,486) (107,502,486) - (107,502,486)

Total Transactions with 
Owners of the Company                      - - -                     - (107,502,486) (107,502,486) - (107,502,486)

Balance as at 31st March 2021 894,565,898 1,012,847,327        9,024,997  17,377,668 771,663,652 2,705,479,542  12,900,437  2,718,379,979 

Balance as at 1st April 2021 894,565,898 1,012,847,327        9,024,997  17,377,668 771,663,652 2,705,479,542  12,900,437  2,718,379,979 

Profit for the Year - - - -  465,548,034  465,548,034  6,132,951  471,680,985 

Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Investments at FVOCI - 
Net Change in Fair Value  -    -    -    327,334  -    327,334  -    327,334 

Actuarial Gain on Retirement 
Benefit Obligation, Net of Tax  -    -    -    -    (4,164,574)  (4,164,574)  10,663  (4,153,911)

Revaluation Surplus on Land, 
Building & Motor Vehicle, Net 
of Tax  -    601,906,445  -    -    -    601,906,445  8,081,524  609,987,969 

Net exchange differences on 
translation of foreign operations  -    -    188,336  -    -    188,336  9,912  198,248 

Total Comprehensive Income 
for the Year                      -  601,906,445  188,336           327,334  461,383,460  1,063,805,575  14,235,050  1,078,040,625 

Balance as at 31st March 2022 894,565,898  1,614,753,772  9,213,333  17,705,002  1,233,047,112  3,769,285,117  27,135,487  3,796,420,604 

Figures in  brackets indicate deductions.

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes to these Financial Statements set out on pages 70 to 
126 of the Annual Report.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

 For the year ended 31st March
 Stated 
 Capital 

 Revaluation  
 Reserve 

 Fair Value  
 Reserve 

 Retained 
 Earnings  Total  Company

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April 2020  894,565,898  509,638,435  8,912,508  551,261,027  1,964,377,868 

Profit  for the Year  -    -    -    296,492,527  296,492,527 

Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Investments at FVOCI - Net Change in 
Fair Value  -    -    8,465,160  -    8,465,160 

Actuarial Loss on Retirement Benefit 
Obligation, Net of Tax  -    -    -    (1,567,661)  (1,567,661)

Revaluation Surplus on Property Plant and 
Equipment -  408,968,921 - -  408,968,921 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  -    408,968,921  8,465,160  294,924,866  712,358,947 

Transaction with Owners of  
the Group

Interim Dividend Paid   
2019/2020  -    -    -    (107,502,486)  (107,502,486)

Total Transactions with Owners of the 
Company  -    -    -    (107,502,486)  (107,502,486)

Balance as at 31st March 2021  894,565,898  918,607,356  17,377,668  738,683,407  2,569,234,329 

Balance as at 1st April 2021  894,565,898  918,607,356  17,377,668  738,683,407  2,569,234,329 

Profit for the Year  -    -    -    374,109,784  374,109,784 

Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Investments at FVOCI - Net Change in 
Fair Value  -    -    327,334  -    327,334 

Revaluation Surplus on Land ,Building & 
Motor Vehicles  -    522,902,585  -    -    522,902,585 

Actuarial Loss on Retirement Benefit 
Obligation, Net of Tax  -    -    -    (4,268,813)  (4,268,813)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  -    522,902,585  327,334  369,840,971  893,070,890 

Balance as at 31st March 2022  894,565,898  1,441,509,941  17,705,002  1,108,524,378  3,462,305,219 

Figures in  brackets indicate deductions.

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes to these Financial Statements set out on pages 70 to 
126 of the Annual Report.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit/(Loss) Before tax from continuing 
operations  583,637,870 337,596,894  462,630,749 327,384,407

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 13  165,699,118 143,710,678 117,642,067 99,210,895

Amortization of Intangible Asset 14 1,983,959 2,007,713 1,983,959 2,007,713

Provision for Impairment of Trade Receivables 20  74,416,215 45,905,167 57,000,000 44,013,447

Provision for Impairment of Related Party 
Receivable 21  2,500,000 1,797,790  55,850,098 66,194,050

Share of Profit of Equity-Accounted 
Investees, (Net of Tax) 17 (20,690,955) (15,101,345) -

Write-back of Creditors no Longer Payable - (118,079) -

Provision for Impairment of Inventories 19  26,404,378 13,387,010 20,520,369 13,130,445

Right of Use Asset - Depreciation 15 595,532 1,532,938 595,532 1,532,938

Provision for Impairment of Other 
Receivables 20 30,000,000 1,405,346 30,000,000 1,405,346

Provision for Employee Benefit Obligation 24  12,074,953 11,261,475 11,599,523 10,930,268

Net Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss 117,223,518 1,536,188 199,605,908 1,536,188

Interest Expenses 8.2  164,004,033 130,540,664 137,643,639 115,109,946

Interest Income 8.1 (14,942,359) (559,807) (14,875,138) (526,275)

Dividend Income 8.1 (308,625) (384,883) (308,625) (384,883)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital 
Changes  1,142,597,637 674,517,750  1,079,888,081 681,544,485

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  (315,392,687) (339,179,702)  (167,201,522) (389,225,673)

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other 
Receivables  (93,908,895) (905,334,914) 155,540,722 (917,981,303)

(Increase)/Decrease in Dues from Related 
Parties  6,488,505 11,283,141  (427,500,432) 11,179,854

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other 
Payables  (879,139,547) 612,068,041 (812,914,907) 571,990,258

Increase/(Decrease) in Dues to Related 
Parties - 1,152,690 (473,928) 473,928

Cash Generated from Operations  (139,354,987) 54,507,006 (172,661,986) (42,018,453)
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Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Interest Expense Paid 8  (162,920,522) (130,089,584) (136,560,128) (114,658,866)

Income Tax Paid (98,656,088) (57,578,462) (98,656,088) (56,463,690)

Retirement Benefit Paid 24 (1,419,250) (2,837,250) (1,419,250) (2,735,750)

Net Cash From/(Used In) Operating 
Activities  (402,350,847) (135,998,290) (409,297,452) (215,876,759)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest Income Received 8 14,942,359 559,807 14,875,138 526,275

Dividend Received from FVOCI Investment 8 308,625 235,296 308,625 235,296

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments 13  (280,962,834) (85,296,732) (59,171,417) (51,727,191)

Recovery of Loan from Related Party - - - 85,000,000

Net Cash From/(Used In) Investing 
Activities  (265,711,850) (84,501,629) (43,987,654) 34,034,380

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceed from Interest-Bearing Borrowings 6,550,876,144 3,295,467,997 6,038,488,769 3,168,422,997

Repayment of Interest-Bearing Borrowings (5,888,297,622) (2,840,805,611) (5,549,464,170) (2,719,491,870)

Repayment of Finance Lease Obligations 27 (907,500) (2,524,500) (907,500) (2,524,500)

Dividend Paid - (107,502,486) - (107,502,486)

Net Cash Flows Generated From/(Used In) 
Financing Activities 661,671,022 344,635,400 488,117,099 338,904,142

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash 
Equivalents  (6,391,676) 124,135,480 34,831,993 157,061,763

Effect of Movement in Exchange Rates  15,235,539 13,675,182 - -

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning 
of the Year (7,140,890) (144,951,552) 75,776,264 (81,285,499)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of 
the Year  1,702,973 (7,140,890) 110,608,257 75,776,264

Analysis of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash in Hand and at Bank 22  326,240,025 125,559,042 315,863,259 123,496,141

Bank Overdraft 22 (324,537,052) (132,699,932) (205,255,002) (47,719,877)

 1,702,973 (7,140,890) 110,608,257 75,776,264

Figures in  brackets indicate deductions.    

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes to these Financial Statements set out on pages 70 to 
126 of the Annual Report.         
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.  REPORTING ENTITY
1.1   Domicile and Legal Form

Sierra Cables PLC (the Company) is a public limited 
liability Company incorporated and domiciled in Sri 
Lanka and listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange. 
The registered office of the Company is located at 
112, Havelock Road, Colombo 05 and principal place 
of business is located at 39/1A, Galwarusawa Road, 
Korathota, Kaduwela.

The consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company as at and for the year ended 31st March 
2022 comprise the Financial Statements of the 
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred as 
the “Group” individually as Group entities) and the 
Group’s interest in equity accounted investees.

1.2   Principal activities and nature of operations
The principal activity of the Company is manufacture 
and sale of wires and cables. The principal activities of 
the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited - Manufacturing all 
types of pipes and fittings and manufacturing any type 
of construction materials required for infrastructure 
development.

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited - Manufacture of 
power transmission cables.

2.   BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1   Statement of Compliance

The consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Group and the separate Financial Statements of the 
Company, which comprise the statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement 
of financial position, statement of changes in equity, 
statement of cash flows, and notes to the Financial 
Statements have been prepared in accordance with 
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRSs/LKASs) 
promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Sri Lanka (ICASL) and comply with the requirement 
of Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

2.2   Approval of financial statements by Directors
The Financial Statements of the Group and the 
Company for the year ended 31st March 2022 were 
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of 
Directors on 31st August 2022.

2.3   Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements of the Group and the 
Company have been prepared on the historical cost 
basis, except for the following material items in the 
statement of financial position.

• Fair value through other comprehensive income 
financial assets are measured at fair value;

• Defined benefit obligations is carried at the 
present value of the defined benefit obligations

• Land, buildings and motor vehicles are measured 
at cost at the time of acquisition and subsequently 
at revalued amounts, which are the fair values at 
the date of revaluation

• Recognition and measurement of provisions 
and contingencies; key assumptions about 
the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of 
resources.

2.4   Going concern
The Directors have made an assessment of the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and 
being satisfied that it has the resources to continue 
in business for the foreseeable future, confirm that 
they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease 
operations of any business in the Group.

Throughout the year the Group gradually recovered 
from the impacts of the ongoing but now subsiding 
COVID - 19 pandemic. The Group’s performance 
improved substantially during the financial year. This 
also validates the effectiveness of the strategies taken 
by the Group especially via streamlining of business 
processes and stringent control of costs.

The Directors have also assessed the prevailing 
macroeconomic conditions in the country and the 
impact on the operations of the Group companies 
when determining the basis of preparing the financial 
statements for the year ended 31st March 2022. Fair 
judgment has been made taking into consideration 
the prevailing economic uncertainties in the country, 
limitations in the foreign exchange market, sharply 
rising interest rates, interruption to power supply and 
other supply chain challenges due to shortages in fuel 
distribution, when making the going concern.
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2.5   Reporting date
The Financial Statements of all Companies in the 
group are prepared for a common financial year, 
which ends on 31st March except for Sierra Cables 
East Africa Limited, T & G Lanka (Private) Limited and 
Cables PTE Ltd whose financial year ends on 31st 
December and 30th June respectively.

2.6  Functional and Presentation Currency
The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan 
Rupees, which is the Group’s functional currency. All 
financial information presented in Sri Lankan Rupees 
has been rounded to the nearest rupee, unless stated 
otherwise.

2.7  Use of Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
income, and expenses. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are 
revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about critical estimates and judgments 
in applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
Financial Statements is provided in the following 
notes.

 Judgements and Assumptions
• Equity accounted investees - whether the Group 

has significant influence over an investee.

• Measurement of defined benefit obligation: key 
actuarial assumptions

• Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability 
of future taxable profit against which deductible 
temporary differences and tax losses carried 
forward can be utilised

• Impairment on trade receivable- Measurement of 
ECL allowance for trade receivables and amounts 

due from related parties classified as amortised 
cost: key assumptions in determining the weighted 
average loss rate.

• The extent and the duration of the expected 
economic downtown (and forecasts for key 
economic factors including GDP). This includes the 
disruption to capital markets, deteriorating credit, 
liquidity concerns, impact on unemployment and 
decline in consumer discretionary spending.

2.8   Fair Value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or  paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. When measuring fair value of an 
asset or liability, the Group uses observable market 
data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into 
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the 
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1  :  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2  :  inputs other than quoted prices included 
in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived 
from prices)

Level 3 : inputs for the asset or liability that are not 
based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs) If inputs used to measure the fair value of an 
asset or liability fall into different levels of the fair 
value hierarchy, then the     fair value measurement 
is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the 
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement.

Fair values have been determined for measurement 
and disclosure purposes based on the following 
methods. Where applicable further information about 
the assumptions made in determining fair value is 
disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either:

• In the principal market for the asset or liability 

 Or
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• In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The 
principal or the most advantageous market must 
be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest. 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 
into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs 

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1  Basis of consolidation
3.1.1  Business combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the 
acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is 
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. 

As required by SLFRS 3 - Business Combinations and 
amendments to the SLFRS 3, when the Group acquires 
a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities 
assumed under classifications or designations on the 
basis of the contractual terms, economic conditions, 
its operating or accounting policies and other 
pertinent conditions that exists as at the acquisition 
date. The Group applies Definition of a Business 
(Amendments to SLFRS 3) to business combinations 
whose acquisition dates are on or after 1 January 2020 
in assessing whether it had acquired a business or a 
group of assets. 

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date, 
as excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the 
consideration transferred; the recognised amount of 
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; the fair 
value of the pre-existing interest in the acquiree if the 
business combination is achieved in stages; and the 
net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the 
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed; 
measured at the acquisition date. 

Transaction costs, other than those associated with 
the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group 
incurs in connection with a business combination are 
expensed as incurred. The consideration transferred 
does not include amounts related to the settlement of 
pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are generally 
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured 
at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent 
consideration is classified as equity, then it is not re-
measured and settlement is accounted within equity, 
or else subsequent changes in the fair value of the 
contingent consideration is recognised in the income 
statement. 

3.1.2  Non-controlling interests
NCI are measured initially at their proportionate share 
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of 
acquisition.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that 
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as 
equity transactions. Adjustments to non-controlling 
interests are based on a proportionate amount of the 
net assets of the subsidiary.

No adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or 
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

3.1.3   Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. 
The Group ‘controls’ an entity when it is exposed to, 
or has right to, variable returns from its involvement 
with the entity and has the ability to affect those 
returns through its power over the entity. The Financial 
Statements of subsidiaries are included in the 
consolidated Financial Statements from the date that 
control commences until the date that control ceases.

3.1.4   Loss of control
When the Group losses control over a subsidiary, it 
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, 
any non-controlling interests and other components 
of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the 
previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at 
fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, 
it is accounted for as equity-accounted investee or 
as an fair value through other comprehensive income 
financial asset depending on the level of influence 
retained.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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3.1.5   Interest in equity-accounted investees
The Group’s interest in equity-accounted investees 
comprise interest in associates and a joint venture.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has 
significant influence, but not control or joint control 
over the financial and operating policies. A joint 
venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint 
control, whereby the Group has rights to the net assets 
of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and 
obligations for its liabilities.

Interests in associates and joint venture are accounted 
for using the equity method. They are initially 
recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated 
Financial Statements include the Group’s share of the 
profit or loss and OCI of equity-accounted investees, 
until the date on which significant influence or joint 
control ceases.

3.1.6  Intra-group transactions
Pricing policies of all intra-group sales are identical to 
those adopted for normal trading transactions, which 
are at market  prices.

3.1.7  Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra group balances and transactions, and any 
unrealised income and expenses arising from intra 
group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the 
consolidated Financial Statements. Unrealised gains 
arising from transactions with equity-accounted 
investees are eliminated against the investment to 
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. 
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as 
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no 
evidence of impairment.

3.2   Foreign currency
3.2.1   Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the 
respective functional currencies of Group entities at 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies at the reporting date are re-translated to 
the functional currency at the exchange rate at the 
reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured 
at fair value are translated into the functional 
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value 

was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign 
currency that are measured based on historical cost 
are translated using the exchange rate at the date 
of the transaction. Foreign currency differences are 
generally recognised in profit or loss and presented 
within finance cost.

However, foreign currency differences arising from the 
translation of the following items are recognised in 
other comprehensive income.

• An investment in equity securities designated as at 
FVOCI.

• A financial liability designated as a hedge of the 
net investment in a foreign operation to the extent 
that the hedge is effective, and

• Qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent the 
hedges are effective.

3.2.2   Foreign operations
The results and financial position of overseas 
operations that have functional currency different from 
the Group’s presentation currency are translated into 
the Group’s presentation currency as follows:

Assets and liabilities, including goodwill and fair value 
adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated at 
the rates of exchange ruling as at the Reporting date. 

Income and expenses are translated at the average 
exchange rate for the period.

The exchange differences arising on translation for 
consolidation are recognised in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in the foreign currency 
translation reserve (Translation Reserve), which is a 
separate component of equity, except to the extent 
that the translation difference is allocated to the NCI.

When a foreign operation is disposed of such that the 
control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation 
reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified 
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. 
If the Group disposes of only part of its interest in 
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while 
retaining control, then the relevant proportion of 
the cumulative amount of the translation reserve is 
reattributed to NCI.
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Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign 
operation and any fair value adjustments to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the 
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the 
foreign operation.

3.3   Property, Plant and Equipment
3.3.1   Recognition and measurement

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially 
recorded at cost. Where items of property, plant and 
equipment are subsequently revalued, the entire class 
of such assets is revalued. Revaluations are made 
with sufficient regularity to ensure that their carrying 
amounts do not differ materially from their fair values 
at the reporting date.

Subsequent to the initial recognition of the asset at 
cost, the revalued property, plant and equipment 
are carried at revalued amounts less accumulated 
depreciation thereon and accumulated impairment 
losses. The Group applies revaluation model to 
land, building, Motor Vehicles and cost model to the 
remaining assets under property, plant and equipment 
which are stated at historical cost less accumulated 
depreciation less accumulated impairment losses, if  
any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 
comprise its purchase price and any directly 
attributable costs of ringing the asset to working 
condition for its intended use. The cost of self- 
constructed assets includes the cost of materials, 
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable 
to bringing the asset to the working condition for 
its intended use and capitalised borrowing costs. 
This also includes cost of dismantling and removing 
the items and restoring in the site on which they are 
located. When parts of an item of property, plant 
and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) 
of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, 
plant and equipment (calculated as the difference 
between the net proceeds from disposal and the 
carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or 
loss.

3.3.2   Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant 
and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount 
of the item if it is probable that the future economic 

benefits embodied within the part will flow to the 
Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The costs of the day to day servicing of property, plant 
and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as 
incurred.

3.3.3   De-recognition
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant 
and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from its 
use or disposal. Gains or losses on derecognition are 
recognised within other income in profit or loss.

3.3.4   Depreciation
Items of property, plant and equipment are 
depreciated on a straight-line basis in profit or loss 
over the estimated useful lives of each omponent. 
Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the 
lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably 
certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the 
end of the lease term. Land is not depreciated. Items 
of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from 
the date that they are installed and are ready for use, 
or in respect of internally constructed assets, from the 
date that the asset is completed and ready for use.

The estimated useful lives for the current and 
comparative years of significant items of property, 
plant and equipment are as follows:

 Asset Category
Useful Life     

(Years)
Depreciation

Rate (%)

Building 20-25 4-5

Plant and Machinery 10-20 5-10

Factory Equipment 5 20

Furniture Fittings 5 20

Motor Vehicles 5 20

Offices and Computer 
Equipment 5 20

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for 
use where  as depreciation of an asset ceases at the 
earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for 
sale and the date that the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values 
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if 
appropriate.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES



SIERRA CABLES PLC   ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 75

3.3.5  Revaluation policy
The Group’s land, buildings and motor vehicles are 
revalued with sufficient regularity once in three years. 
The revaluation surplus is accounted in the revaluation 
reserve.

 Changing of Accounting Policy
The Company/Group has decided to change its 
accounting policies relating to Motor Vehicles 
(both leasehold and free hold) from Cost Model 
to Revaluation Model as per LKAS 16 with effect 
from 31st March 2022. Management has voluntarily 
changed the aforementioned accounting policy with 
the view that it will provide more relevant and reliable 
information in financial statements to economic users.

The change in accounting policy from the cost model 
to the revaluation model has not led to a retrospective 
restatement due to the exemption available in 
Paragraph 17 of LKAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Change 
in Accounting Estimates and Errors”. As per Paragraph 
17 of LKAS 8, the initial application of a policy to 
revalue assets in accordance with LKAS 16 “Property, 
Plant and Equipment” is a change in an accounting 
policy to be dealt with, as a revaluation in accordance 
with LKAS 16, rather than in accordance with LKAS 8. 
LKAS 16 provides that when an item of property, plant, 
and equipment is revalued, the carrying amount of 
that asset is adjusted to the revalued amount at the 
date of revaluation. Accordingly, Company/ Group has 
adopted the said policy change with effect from 31st 
March 2022.

3.3.6  Reclassification to investment property
When the use of property changes from owner 
occupied to investment property, the property is 
remeasured to fair value and reclassified accordingly. 
Any gain arising on this remeasurement is recognized 
in profit or loss to the extent that is reverse a previous 
impairment loss on the specific property, with any 
remaining gain recognised OCI and presented in the 
revaluation reserve. 

 Any loss is recognised in profit or loss. However, to the 
extent that an amount is included in the revaluation 
surplus for that property, the loss is recognized in OCI 
and reduced the revaluation surplus within equity.

3.4  Intangible Assets and Goodwill
3.4.1  Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable 
that economic benefits are attributable to the assets 
will flow to the Group and cost of the assets can be 
measured reliably and carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

3.4.1.1 Goodwill
Goodwill that arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries is 
presented with intangible assets. For the measurement 
of goodwill at initial recognition, see Note 3.1.1.

 Subsequent measurement
Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses. In respect of equity accounted 
investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is included 
in the carrying amount of the investment, and any 
impairment loss is allocated to the carrying amount of 
the equity accounted investee as a whole. 

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31st 
March or when circumstances indicate that the carrying 
value of the goodwill may be impaired. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, from the acquisition 
date, goodwill acquired in a business combination is 
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units 
that are expected to benefit from the combination, 
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the 
acquiree are assigned to those units. 

3.4.1.2 Computer software
All computer software cost incurred, which are not an 
integral part of the related hardware, which can be 
clearly identified, reliably measured and its probable 
that they will lead to future economic benefits, are 
included in the Statement of Financial Position under 
the category of intangible assets.

 Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it 
increases the future economic benefits embodied 
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other 
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

 Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis 
in profit or loss over their estimated useful lives from 
the date that they are available for use. The estimated 
useful lives for the current and comparative years are 
as follows:
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 Asset Category
Useful Life     

(Years)
Depreciation

Rate (%)

Computer Software 05 20

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values 
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if 
appropriate.

3.5  Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether 
a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration

3.5.1  Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and 
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group 
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments 
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use 
the underlying assets.

3.5.1.1 Right-of-use assets
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the 
commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use 
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted 
for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost 
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease 
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and 
lease payments made at or before the commencement 
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use 
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 
the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful 
lives of the assets. The Group’s Right-of-use assets are 
included in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.

3.5.1.2 Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group 
recognises lease liabilities measured at the present 
value of lease payments to be made over the lease 
term. The lease payments include fixed payments 
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease 
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that 
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected 
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease 
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase 
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the 

Group and payments of penalties for terminating the 
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising 
the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an 
index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they 
are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in 
which the event or condition that triggers the payment 
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, 
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at 
the lease commencement date because the interest 
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. 
After the commencement date, the amount of lease 
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest 
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, 
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured 
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, 
a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to 
future payments resulting from a change in an index 
or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a 
change in the assessment of an option to purchase 
the underlying asset. The Group’s lease liabilities are 
included in Note 27 to the Financial Statements.

3.5.1.3 Short-Term leases and leases of low value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition 
exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases 
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the 
commencement date and do not contain a purchase 
option). It also applies the low value assets recognition 
exemption to leases that are considered to be low-
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases 
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.6  Investment property
Investment properties are properties held either to 
earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both 
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, 
used in the production or supply of goods or services 
for administrative purposes.

Investment property is recognised, if it is probable that 
future economic benefits that are associated with the 
investment property, will flow to the Group and cost of 
the investment property can be reliably measured.

An investment property is measured initially at its 
cost. The cost of a purchased investment property 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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comprises of its purchase price and directly 
attributable expenditure, the cost of the self-
constructed investment property is its cost at the 
date of when the construction or development is 
completed. The Group applies the cost model for 
investment properties in accordance with LKAS 40- 
“Investment property.”

3.7  Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value. The cost of inventories includes 
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, 
production or conversion costs, and other costs 
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and 
condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and 
work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share 
of production overheads based on normal operating 
capacity. Net realisable value is the estimated selling 
price in the ordinary course of business less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs 
necessary to make the sales.

The costs incurred in bringing inventories to its present 
location and condition, are accounted for as follows:

 Raw materials
• At actual cost, on Weighted Average basis  

 Finished goods and work-in-progress
• At actual cost, on Weighted Average for work in 

progress and finished goods

3.8  Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial 
assets, other than inventories are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine

whether there is any indication of impairment. If any 
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable 
amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised 
if the carrying amount of an assets or cash generating 
unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the 
greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs 
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present value using 
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset or CGU. For impairment testing, 
assets are grouped together into the smallest group 
of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing 

use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of 
other assets or CGUs.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognised 
in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to CGU 
(if any) and then to reduce the carrying amounts of 
other assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on pro rata 
basis. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is 
not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is 
reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation 
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised.

3.9  Financial instruments
3.9.1  Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are 
initially recognised when they are originated. All other 
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without 
a significant financing component) or financial liability 
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at 
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a 
significant financing component is initially measured at 
the transaction price.

3.9.2 Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets on initial recognition, a financial asset 
is classified as measured at: amortised cost; FVOCI - 
debt investment; FVOCI- equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to 
their initial recognition unless the Group changes its 
business model for managing financial assets in which 
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on 
the first day of the first reporting period following the 
change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it 
meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designed as at FVTPL:

• it is held within a business model whose objective 
is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; 
and
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• its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets 
both of the following conditions and is not designated 
as at FVTPL:

• it is held within a business  model whose  objective  
is achieved by both collecting  contractual  cash 
flows  and selling financial assets; and

• its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is 
not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect 
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair 
value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-
by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at 
amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are 
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative 
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may 
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise 
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised 
cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates 
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that 
would otherwise arise.

 Financial assets - Business model assessment
The Group makes an assessment of the objective of 
the business model in which a financial asset is held at 
a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the 
business is managed and information is provided to 
management. The information considered includes:

• the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio 
and the operation of those policies in practice. 
These include whether management’s strategy 
focuses on earning contractual interest income, 
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, 
matching the duration of the financial assets to the 
duration of any related liabilities, or expected cash 
outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of 
the assets.

• how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated 
and reported to the Group’s management.

• the risks that affect the performance of the 
business model (and the financial assets held 
within that business model) and how those risks are 
managed.

• how managers of the business are compensated 
- e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair 
value of the assets managed or the contractual 
cash flows collected; and

• the frequency, volume and timing of sales of 
financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for 
such sales and expectations about future sales 
activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in 
transactions that do not qualify for derecognition 
are not considered sales for his purpose, consistent 
with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets. 
Financial assets that are held for trading or are 
managed and whose performance is evaluated on a 
fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

 Financial assets - Assessment whether contractual 
cash flows are solely payments of principal and 
interest
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is 
defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial 
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration 
for the time value of money and for the credit risk 
associated with the principal amount outstanding 
during a particular period of time and for other 
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and 
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are 
solely payments of principal and interest, the Group 
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This 
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains 
a contractual term that could change the timing or 
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would 
not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the 
Group considers:

• contingent events that would change the amount 
or timing of cash flows;

• terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, 
including variable-rate features;

• prepayment and extension features; and
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• terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows 
from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely 
payments of principal and interest criterion if the 
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid 
amounts of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable 
additional compensation for early termination of the 
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at 
a discount or premium to its contractual par amount, 
a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an 
amount that substantially represents the contractual 
par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual 
interest (which may also include reasonable additional 
compensation for early termination) is treated as 
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of 
the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial 
recognition.

Financial assets-Subsequent measurement and 
gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are 
subsequently measured 
at fair value. Net gains 
and losses, including 
any interest or dividend 
income, are recognised 
in profit or loss.

Financial assets at 
amortised cost 

These assets are 
subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using 
the effective interest 
method. The amortised 
cost is reduced by 
impairment losses. 
Interest income, foreign 
exchange gains and 
losses and impairment 
are recognised in profit 
or loss. Any gain or 
loss on derecognition 
is recognised in profit 
or loss.

Debt investments at 
FVOCI

These assets are 
subsequently measured 
at investments at fair 
value. Interest income 
calculated using the 
effective interest 
method, foreign 
exchange gains and 
losses and impairment 
are recognised in profit 
or loss. Other net 
gains and losses are 
recognised in OCI. On 
derecognition. Gains 
and losses accumulated 
in OCI are reclassified 
to profit or loss

Equity investments at 
FVOCI

These assets are 
subsequently measured 
at fair value. Dividends 
are recognised as 
income in profit or loss 
unless the dividend 
clearly represents a 
recovery of part of the 
cost of the investment. 
Other net gains and 
losses are recognised 
in OCI and are never 
reclassified to profit or 
loss.

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent 
measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at 
amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-
trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such 
on initial recognition.  Financial liabilities at FVTPL 
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, 
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit 
or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains 
and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain 
or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or 
loss.
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3.9.3  Derecogition
3.9.3.1 Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive 
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset are transferred or in which the 
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not 
retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers 
assets recognised in its statement of financial position 
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the 
transferred assets are not derecognised.

3.9.3.2 Financial liabilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its 
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or 
expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability 
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the 
modified liability are substantially different, in which 
case a new financial liability based on the modified 
terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference 
between the carrying amount extinguished and the 
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets 
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in 
profit or loss.

3.9.4  Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and 
the net amount presented in the statement of financial 
position when, and only when, the Group currently 
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts 
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.9.5  Impairment
The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost;

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount 
equal to lifetime ECL, except for following, which are 
measured at 12 months ECLs;

• debt securities and that are determined to have 
low credit risk at the reporting date

• other debt securities and bank charges for which 
credit risk (i.e the risk of default occurring over the 
expected life of the financial instrument) has not 
increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract 
assets are always measured at an amount equal to 
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a 
financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group 
considers reasonable and supportable information 
that is relevant and available without undue cost or 
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative 
information and analysis, based on the Group’s 
historical experience and informed credit assessment 
and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial 
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default 
when:

• The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit 
obligations to the Company in full, without 
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising 
security (if any is held).

• The financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible 
default events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from 
default events that are possible within the 12 months 
after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the 
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating 
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which 
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

 Measurement of ECLs
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit 
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present 
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between 
the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with 
the contract and the cash flows that Group expects to 
receive.)
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ECL are discounted at the effective interest rate of the 
financial asset.

 Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether 
financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when 
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on 
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired 
includes the following observable data: 

• Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or 
issuer;

• A breach of contract such as a default or being 
more than 90 days past due;

• The restructuring of a loan or advance by the 
Group on terms that the Group would not consider 
otherwise

• It is probable that the borrower will enter 
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

 Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement 
of financial position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at 
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is 
charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCI.

 Write-offs
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written 
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is 
no realistic prospect of recovery.

3.9.6  Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances 
and call deposits with maturities of three months or 
less from the acquisition date that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are 
used by the Group in the management of its short-
term commitments.

3.9.7  Derivative Financial Instruments
The Group holds derivative financial instruments to 
mitigate its foreign currency risk exposures. Derivatives 
are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to the 
initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair 
value, and changes therein are generally recognized in 
profit or loss.

3.10   Stated capital
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of 
ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from 
equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of an 
equity transactions is accounted for in accordance with 
LKAS 12.

3.11   Defined benefit plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit 
plan other than a defined contribution plan. The 
Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit 
plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future 
benefit that employees have earned in return for their 
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is 
discounted to determine its present value.

The retirement benefit obligation of the Group is 
based on  the actuarial valuation using Projected Unit 
Credit (PUC) methods as recommended by Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standard (LKAS 19) Employee Benefits. 
The calculation is performed by Independent Actuary 
using the projected unit credit method.

The assumptions based on which the results of the 
actuarial valuation was determined, are included in 
Note 24.2 to the Financial Statements.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when 
a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefits 
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on 
curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. 
The Group recognizes gain or losses on the settlement 
of a defined plan when the settlement occurs.

The Group recognises all actuarial gains and losses 
arising from the defined benefits plans immediately 
in the other comprehensive income. The liability 
is disclosed under Non-current liabilities in the 
Statement of Financial Position and not externally 
funded.
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However, as per the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 
of 1983 the liability to an employee arises only on 
completion of 5 years of continued service.

 Defined Contribution Plans - Employees’ Provident 
Fund and Employee Trust Fund
All employees who are eligible for Employees’ 
Provident Fund Contributions and Employees’ 
Trust Fund Contributions are covered by relevant 
contributions funds in line with the relevant statutes. 
Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution 
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss 
when incurred.

3.12  Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past 
event the Group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be 
required to settle the obligation.

3.13  Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group’s generates revenue through sales.

A.   Performance obligation and revenue recognition 
policies
Revenue is measured based on the consideration 
specified in a contract with a customer. The Group 
recognises revenue when it transfers control over good 
to a customer.

The “effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of the financial instrument 
to:

• the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

• the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the 
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying 
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit - 
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. 
However, for financial assets that have become credit- 
impaired subsequent to the initial recognition, interest 

income is calculated by applying the effective interest 
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the 
asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation 
of interest income to the gross basis.

The following table provide information about the 
nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance 
obligations in contract with customers, including 
significant payment terms, and the related revenue 
recognition policies.

Type of 
products    

Nature and timing 
of satisfaction of 
performance 

Revenue 
Recognition 
under SLFRS 15

Electric 
Wires, 
Cables 
and PVC 
Pipe & 
Fitting

Customers obtain 
control of goods 
when the goods are 
delivered to and 
have been accepted 
at their premises. 
Invoices are at 
the point in time. 
Invoices are usually 
payable within 30-60

Revenue is 
recognised 
when the goods 
are delivered 
and have been 
accepted by 
customers at 
their premises.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue and associated costs incurred can 
be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable net 
of trade discounts and sales taxes.

3.14  Operating Expenses
All expenses incurred in day to day operations of the 
business and in maintaining the property, plant and 
equipment in a state of efficiency has been charged 
to the statement of comprehensive income in arriving 
at the profit for the year. Provision has also been 
made for impairment of financial assets, slow moving 
inventories, all known liabilities and depreciation on 
property, plant and equipment.

3.15  Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition, 
construction or production of assets that necessarily 
takes a substantial period  of time to get ready for its 
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intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost 
of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs 
consist of interest and other costs that Group incurs in 
connection with the borrowing of funds.

3.16  Net Finance Income/(Expenses)
The Group’s finance income and finance costs include:

- interest income.

- interest expense.

- dividend income.

- the foreign currency gain or loss on financial assets 
and financial liabilities.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the 
effective interest method.

3.17  Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred 
tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the 
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in 
equity or in OCI.

The Group has determined that interest and penalties 
related to income taxes, including uncertain tax 
treatments, do not meet the definition of income 
tax, and therefore accounted for them under LKAS 
37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and contingent 
Assets”.

3.17.1 Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or 
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year 
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable 
in respect of previous years. The amount of tax 
payable and receivable is the best estimate of the 
tax amount expected to be paid or received that 
reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It 
is measured using tax rates enacted or substantially 
enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if 
certain criteria are met.

3.17.2 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the 
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is 
not recognised for;

temporary differences on the initial recognition 
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not 
a business combination and that affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

temporary differences related to investments in 
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the 
extent that the Company is able to control the timing 
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is 
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future; and

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax 
losses and deductible temporary differences to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profit will be available against which can be used. 
Future taxable profits are determined based on the 
relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount 
of taxable temporary difference is insufficient to 
recognise the deferred tax asset in full, then future 
taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing 
temporary differences, are considered, based on the 
business plans. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit 
will realised; such deductions are reversed when the 
probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at 
each reporting date and recognised to the extent that 
it has become probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to be applied to temporary differences when 
they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantially 
enacted at the reporting date and reflects uncertainty 
related to income taxes, if any Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.
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3.18  Related party transactions
Disclosure has been made in respect of the 
transactions in which one party has the ability to 
control or exercise significant influence over the 
financial and operating policies/decisions of the other, 
irrespective of whether a price is being charged or not.

The relevant details are disclosed in the respective 
notes to the Financial Statements.

3.19  The statement of cash flows
Interest received and dividends received are classified 
as investing cash flows, while dividend paid and 
interest paid, is classified as financing cash flows for 
the purpose of presentation of statement of cash flows 
which has been prepared using the ‘Indirect Method’.

3.20  Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic Earning Per Share is calculated by dividing the 
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of 
the Company by the number of shares outstanding at 
the reporting date.

3.21  Events occurring after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period are those events 
favourable and unfavourable that occur between the 
end of the reporting period and the date when the 
Financial Statements are authorised for issue.

The materiality of the events occurring after the 
reporting period is considered and appropriate 
adjustments to or disclosures are made in the Financial 
Statements, where necessary.

3.22  Assets held for sale
Non-current assets that are expected to be recovered 
primarily through sale rather than through continuing 
use are classified as held for sale. Immediately 
before classification as held for sale the assets are re 
measured in accordance with the Group’s accounting 

policies. Thereafter the assets are measured at the 
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs 
to sell. Impairment losses on initial classification and 
subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are 
recognised in profit or loss. Gains are not recognised 
in excess of any cumulative impairment loss.

Once classified as held for sale, property plant 
and equipment are no longer amortised or 
depreciated. 

4.   NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED 
BUT NOT EFFECTIVE AS AT REPORTING 
DATE
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka 
has issued a number of new amendments to Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRSs/ LKASs) that are 
effective for annual periods beginning after the current 
financial year. Accordingly the Group has not early 
adopted them in preparing these financial statements. 

The following amended standards are not expected 
to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial 
statements

 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current

 (Amendments to LKAS 1)
The amendment aims to promote consistency in 
applying the requirements by helping companies 
to determine whether, in the statement of financial 
position, debt and other liabilities with an uncertain 
settlement date should be classified as current (due 
or potentially due to be settled within one year) or 
non-current.

 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
 (Amendment to LKAS 1)

Amendments to LKAS 1 - Presentation of Financial 
Statements; intends to help companies provide useful 
accounting policy disclosures. Key amendments to 
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LKAS 1 includes; requiring companies to disclose 
their material accounting policies rather than 
their significant accounting policies, clarifying that 
accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, 
other events or conditions are themselves immaterial 
and as such need not be disclosed; and clarifying 
that not all accounting policies that relate to material 
transactions, other events or conditions are themselves 
material to a company’s financial statements.

 Definition of Accounting Estimates
 (Amendments to LKAS 8)

Distinguishing between accounting policies and 
accounting estimates is important because changes 
in accounting policies are generally applied 
retrospectively, while changes in accounting estimates 
are applied prospectively. The approach taken can 
therefore affect both the reported results and trends 
between periods. Amendments to IAS 8 - Accounting 
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
will clarify how companies should distinguish changes 
in accounting policies from changes in accounting 
estimates, with a primary focus on the definition of and 
clarifications on accounting estimates. 

 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities 
arising from a single transaction  
(Amendment to LKAS 12). 
Targeted amendments to LKAS 12 - Income Taxes 
clarify how companies should account for deferred 
tax on certain transactions – e.g. leases and 
decommissioning provisions. The amendments narrow 
the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) 
so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise 
to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a 
result, companies will need to recognise a deferred 
tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary 
differences arising on initial recognition of a lease and 
a decommissioning provision.

 Onerous Contracts
Cost of fulfilling the contract (Amendments to LKAS 
37 - Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent 
assets) The amendments specify that the ‘cost of 
fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate 
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to 
a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling 
that contract (examples would be direct labour, 
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate 
directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be 
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item 
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the 
contract).

 Annual Improvements to SLFRS Standards issued 
during 2018–2020
Improvements to standards that were issued during 
the period 2018 to 2020 with improved clarifications 
and amendments i.e. SLFRS 1 – First-time Adoption of 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, SLFRS 9 – Financial 
Instruments, and LKAS 41 - Agriculture.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

5 REVENUE
Local Sales  8,031,683,406  5,429,451,716  7,589,263,967  5,185,511,638 

Export Sales  226,151,874  69,103,407  226,151,874  69,103,408 

 8,257,835,280  5,498,555,123  7,815,415,841  5,254,615,046 

6 OTHER INCOME
Written Back of Creditors No Longer Payable  -    118,079  -    -   

Scrap Sales  17,189,530  24,071,202  16,318,460  23,428,082 

Income on Solar Power Generation  23,055,959  32,985,637  23,055,959  32,985,637 

Change in fair value of Derivatives  -    22,429,696  -    22,429,696 

 40,245,489  79,604,614  39,374,419  78,843,415 

7 PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
Profit from Operations is stated after Charging/(Crediting) all the Expenses/(Income) including following;

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Directors' Fees and Emoluments  28,200,000  27,046,790  28,200,000  23,900,000 

Auditors' Remuneration - Audit  2,479,996  2,107,451  1,750,000  1,400,000 

                                          - Audit Related Services  819,400  300,000  750,000  300,000 

Depreciation and Amortization  168,278,609  147,251,330  120,221,558  102,751,546 

Provison for Impairment of Inventories  26,404,378  13,387,010  20,520,369  13,130,445 

Provison/Reversal for Impairment of Related 
Party Receivable- Non Trade  2,500,000  (198,680)  55,850,098  29,337,162 

Provison for Impairment of Related Party 
Receivable - Trade  -    1,996,470  -    36,856,888 

Provision for Impairment of Other Receivables  30,000,000  1,405,346  30,000,000  1,405,346 

Provision/Reversal for Impairment of Trade 
Receivables  74,573,715  45,905,167  57,000,000  44,013,447 

Research & Development Expenses  -    51,824,643  -    51,824,643 

Donations  438,300 155,610  438,300 155,610

Personnel Costs

                     Salaries, Wages and Related Costs  261,350,384  217,773,898  242,471,716  196,823,666 

                     Defined Contribution Plan Cost  29,946,483  23,754,305  28,985,343  23,754,305 

                     Defined Benefit Plan Cost (Note 24)  12,074,953  11,261,474  11,599,523  10,930,268 
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Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

8 NET FINANCE COSTS
8.1 Finance Income

Interest Income 14,942,359 559,807 14,875,138 526,275 

Dividend Income 308,625 384,883 308,625 384,883 

15,250,984 944,690  15,183,763 911,158 

8.2 Finance Costs

Interest  on - Overdraft 16,944,581 13,647,380 9,482,477 6,616,597 

                   - Lease 1,083,511 451,080 1,083,511 451,080 

                   - Import Demand Loans 67,722,444 90,878,568 61,237,151 88,821,890 

                   - Bank Loans 77,169,986 25,563,637 64,756,989 19,220,379 

Exchange Loss 368,323,745 43,312,594 411,026,593 37,250,392 

531,244,267  173,853,259 547,586,721 152,360,338 

Net Finance Costs 515,993,283  172,908,569 532,402,958 151,449,180 

9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Income Tax on Profit for the Year  (Note 9.1) 144,938,213 83,903,204 124,630,322 83,903,204 

Deferred Tax (Reversal) (Note 25.3) (32,981,328) (66,267,465) (36,109,357)  (53,011,324)

111,956,885 17,635,739 88,520,965  30,891,880 

9.1 Reconciliation Between Accounting Profit/(Loss) and Tax Expense

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 583,637,870 337,596,894 462,630,749 327,384,407 

Share of Loss/(Profit) of Equity-Accounted 
Investees (20,690,955) (15,101,345) -   -   

Consolidation Adjustment (53,350,098) (64,396,260) -   -   

509,596,817 258,099,289 462,630,749 327,384,407 

Non Business Income (154,234) (984,690) (154,234) (911,158)

Aggregate Disallowable Expenses  320,352,152 269,008,651  296,832,935 239,478,620 

Aggregate Allowable expenses (93,218,084) (116,539,781) (47,528,839) (98,756,959)

Tax Exempted Income (15,096,750) -   (15,029,529) -   

Aggregate Tax Losses from Business  92,274,599  57,611,439 -   -   

Taxable Profit from Business  813,754,501  467,194,910 696,751,083 467,194,910 

Income from Other Sources 154,234 384,883 154,234 384,883 
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Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Total Statutory Income  813,908,734  467,579,793 696,905,317 467,579,793 

Tax Loss Claimed (Note No 9.2) (4,181,803) -   -   -   

Taxable Income (Note 9.3)  809,726,931  467,579,793 696,905,317 467,579,793 

Income Tax

Tax on Business Income @ 18% 142,093,991 82,989,150 121,786,100 82,989,150 

Tax on Business Income @ 14% 2,844,222 914,054 2,844,222 914,054 

144,938,213 83,903,204 124,630,322 83,903,204 

9.2 Accumulated Tax Losses

Balance as at 1st April 361,147,300 307,321,832 -   -   

Tax Loss for the Year  92,274,599 57,611,439 -   -   

Tax Loss Claimed (4,181,803) -   -   -   

Exchange Difference  198,248 (3,785,971) - -

Balance as at 31st March  449,438,344 361,147,300 -   -   

 Sierra Cables PLC      
In terms of Section 52 of Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of 2017, taxable income from exports of Sierra Cables PLC is taxable at 
the rate of 14% and other profit from manufacturing is taxable at 18%, while other income are taxable at the rate of 24%.

 Sierra Industries (Private) Limited      
In terms of Section 52 of Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of 2017, taxable incom from export of Sierra Industries (Pvt) Ltd is 
taxable at the rate of 14% and other profit from manufacturing is taxable at 18%, while other income are taxable at the rate 
of 24%.

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited      
Based on the prevailing legislation on income tax effective in Kingdom of Kenya, profit from operation together with other 
profits and income taxable at rate of 30%.

9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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10 BASIC EARNING PER SHARE
Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated based on the Profit after taxation attributable to the Ordinary Shareholders divided 
by the Weighted Average Number of Odinary Shares outstanding during the year.

Group Company

 For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Profits Attributable to Ordinary  
Shareholders (Rs.)  465,548,034  323,018,593  374,109,784 296,492,527

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares 537,512,430 537,512,430 537,512,430 537,512,430

Basic Earnings Per Share (Rs.)  0.87 0.60 0.70 0.55

10.1 Diluted Earnings per Share
There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares at any time during the year, hence diluted earning per share is equal to 
the basic earnings per share         

Group Company

 For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

11 DIVIDEND PER SHARE
Dividend for the Year (Rs.)  -    107,502,486  -    107,502,486 

Number of Ordinary Shares  537,512,430  537,512,430  537,512,430  537,512,430 

Dividend per Share (Rs.)  -    0.20  -    0.20 

12 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Plant & Machinery  18,000,000  18,000,000  18,000,000  18,000,000 

Impairment Provision  (18,000,000)  (18,000,000)  (18,000,000)  (18,000,000)

 -    -    -    -   

The Company classified part of its Plant and Machinery as Non Current Asset Held for Sale during the year 2016/17 
following the decision taken by the Board of The Directors to dispose the same. Effort to sell the Plant and Machinery 
commenced in the previous financial years and Directors are of the opinion that they still commit to the initial decision 
to sell the assets and actively involved in the same as at the end of the reporting period. In the year 2017/18 due to the 
existent of material uncertainty over recoverability of such assets, the management decided to provide for impairment. 
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13  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

As at 31st  
March 2022 Land Buildings

 Plant 
and

Machinery 
 Motor 

 Vehicle

 Furniture  
 and

 Fittings
 Factory 

 Equipment

 Office & 
 Computer 

 Equipment

 Capital  
 Work in 

 Progress
 Total 
2022

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Company
Cost / Valuation 
Balance as at 1st 
April  551,915,000  678,339,752  594,567,322  26,229,554  5,149,261  218,912,906  36,957,974  14,978,931 

  
2,127,050,700 

Additions  -    -    21,847,962  245,950  -    612,500  2,673,339  33,791,666  59,171,417 
Surplus on 
Revaluation 
during the Year  255,067,000  326,949,111  -    44,975,711  -    -    -    -    626,991,822 
Balance as at 
31st March   806,982,000  1,005,288,863  616,415,284  71,451,215  5,149,261  219,525,406  39,631,313  48,770,597 

  
2,813,213,939 

Depreciation
Balance as at 1st 
April   -    154,233,804  341,242,720  26,229,554  4,953,950  100,356,530  29,473,930  -    656,490,488 
Charge for the 
Year -  35,852,308  42,771,830  3,546,206  101,914  32,754,393  2,615,416  -    117,642,067 
Balance as at 
31st March   -    190,086,112  384,014,550  29,775,760  5,055,864  133,110,923  32,089,346  -    774,132,555 
Net Book Value 
Balance as at 
31st March  2021  551,915,000  524,105,948  253,324,602  -    195,311  118,556,376  7,484,044  14,978,931 

 
1,470,560,214 

Balance as at 
31st March  
2022  806,982,000  815,202,751  232,400,734  41,675,455  93,397  86,414,483  7,541,967  48,770,597 

  
2,039,081,384 

Assets pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 34 to the Financial Statements.

As at 31st  
March 2022 Land Buildings

 Plant 
and

Machinery 
 Motor 

 Vehicle

 Furniture  
 and

 Fittings
 Factory 

 Equipment

 Office & 
 Computer 

 Equipment

 Capital  
 Work in 

 Progress
 Total 
2022

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Group 
Cost / Valuation 
Balance as at 1st 
April  721,257,401  779,418,317  986,827,005  33,969,518  7,066,253  233,610,840  40,820,096  14,198,449 

  
2,817,167,879 

Additions -  868,871  180,462,580  245,950 -  1,812,500  2,673,339  94,899,594  280,962,834 
Surplus on 
Revaluation 
during the Year  319,894,600  367,963,197 -  45,335,711 - - - -  733,193,509 
Effect of 
Movements in 
Exchange Rates -  452,412  12,089,615  67,350  75,267 -  41,164 -  12,725,809
Balance as at 
31st March   1,041,152,001  1,148,702,797  1,179,379,200  79,618,529  7,141,520  235,423,340  43,534,599  109,098,043 

    
3,844,050,031 

Depreciation
Balance as at 1st 
April  -    175,098,066  511,812,961  33,466,403  6,346,169  115,679,806  32,526,883  -    874,930,288 
Charge for the 
Year -  40,807,093  82,599,226  3,901,562  465,460  35,079,856  2,845,921  -    165,699,118 
Effect of 
Movements in 
Exchange Rates -  64,770  3,372,325  53,605  33,542 -  5,647  -    3,529,890
Balance as at 
31st March   -    215,969,929  597,784,512  37,421,570  6,845,171  150,759,662  35,378,451  -   

 
1,044,159,296 

Net Book Value 
Balance as at 
31st March 2021  721,257,401  604,320,251  475,014,044  503,115  720,084  117,931,034  8,293,213  14,198,449 

  
1,942,237,591 

Balance as at 
31st March 
2022  1,041,152,001  932,732,868  581,594,688  42,196,959  296,349  84,663,678  8,156,148  109,098,043 

     
2,799,890,735 

Assets pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 34 to the Financial Statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
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As at 31st  
March 2021 Land Buildings

 Plant 
and

Machinery 
 Motor 

 Vehicle

 Furniture  
 and

 Fittings
 Factory 

 Equipment

 Office & 
 Computer 

 Equipment

 Capital  
 Work in 

 Progress
 Total 
2021

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Company
Cost / Valuation 
Balance as at 1st 
April  309,392,900  451,209,609  570,231,181  26,229,554  5,149,261  201,954,558  33,197,372  14,938,031 

  
1,612,302,466 

Additions  6,631,200  -    24,336,141  -    -    16,958,348  3,760,602  40,900  51,727,191 
Surplus on 
Revaluation 
during the Year  235,890,900  227,130,143  -    -    -    -    -    -    463,021,043 
Balance as at 
31st March   551,915,000  678,339,752  594,567,322  26,229,554  5,149,261  218,912,906  36,957,974  14,978,931 

  
2,127,050,700 

Depreciation
Balance as at 1st 
April   -    131,671,760  300,123,363  25,501,214  4,817,963  68,322,312  26,842,981  -    557,279,593 
Charge for the 
Year  -    22,562,044  41,119,357  728,340  135,987  32,034,218  2,630,949  -    99,210,895 
Balance as at 
31st March   -    154,233,804  341,242,720  26,229,554  4,953,950  100,356,530  29,473,930  -    656,490,488 
Net Book Value 
Balance as at 
31st March  2020  309,392,900  319,537,849  270,107,818  728,340  331,298  133,632,246  6,354,391  14,938,031 

 
1,055,022,875 

Balance as at 
31st March  
2021  551,915,000  524,105,948  253,324,602  -    195,311  118,556,376  7,484,044  14,978,931 

 
1,470,560,214 

Assets pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 34 to the Financial Statements.

As at 31st  
March 2021 Land Buildings

 Plant 
and

Machinery 
 Motor 

 Vehicle

 Furniture  
 and

 Fittings
 Factory 

 Equipment

 Office & 
 Computer 

 Equipment

 Capital  
 Work in 

 Progress
 Total 
2021

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Group 
Cost / Valuation 
Balance as at 1st 
April  386,364,901  532,490,955  973,227,466  34,029,331  6,551,222  216,652,492  36,181,545  13,263,679 

 
2,198,761,591 

Additions  17,631,200  20,199,000  24,336,141  -    573,662  16,958,348  4,663,633  934,770  85,296,754 
Surplus on 
Revaluation 
during the Year  317,261,300  227,130,143  -    -    -    -    -    -    544,391,443 
Effect of 
Movements in 
Exchange Rates  -    (401,781)  (10,736,602)  (59,813)  (58,631)  -    (25,082)  -    (11,281,909)
Balance as at 
31st March   721,257,401  779,418,317  986,827,005  33,969,518  7,066,253  233,610,840  40,820,096  14,198,449 

  
2,817,167,880 

Depreciation
Balance as at 1st 
April  -    148,871,305  436,442,455  32,484,441  5,888,133  81,284,454  29,674,521  -    734,645,309 
Charged for the 
Year  -    26,287,156  78,648,846  1,030,723  489,969  34,395,352  2,858,633  -    143,710,679 
Effect of 
Movements in 
Exchange Rates  -    (60,395)  (3,278,340)  (48,761)  (31,933)  -    (6,271)  -    (3,425,700)
Balance as at 
31st March  -    175,098,066  511,812,961  33,466,403  6,346,169  115,679,806  32,526,883  -    874,930,288 
Net Book Value 
Balance as at 
31st March 2020  386,364,901  383,619,650  536,785,011  1,544,890  663,089  135,368,038  6,507,024  13,263,679 

 
1,464,116,282 

Balance as at 
31st March 
2021  721,257,401  604,320,251  475,014,044  503,115  720,084  117,931,034  8,293,213  14,198,449 

 
1,942,237,591 

Assets pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 34 to the Financial Statements.
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ( CONTINUED)
13.1 Fully-Depreciated Assets

The initial cost of fully-depreciated Property, Plant and Equipment which are still in use as at Reporting Date are as follows:

Group Company

As at 31st March 2022 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Machinery  4,385,693  4,385,693  4,385,693  4,385,693 

Motor Vehicles - Revalued during the year -  26,790,019 -  26,229,555 

Furniture and Fittings  4,898,562  4,820,315  4,663,864  4,606,622 

Factory Equipment  65,098,947  64,870,292  54,886,562  54,763,807 

Office & Computer Equipment  26,417,909  24,993,517  25,539,591  24,115,199 

 100,801,111  125,859,836  89,475,710  114,100,876 

13.2 Details of Property Plant and Equipment of the Group Stated at Valuation are Indicated below:
In compliance with the accounting policy, land and building owned by group companies are revalued by independent 
professional valuers at least once in every three years unless there is an indication of a significant change in the market 
rates. Details of the revalued land and buildings given below. Tax impact on revaluation of land is given in note 25 to the 
financial statements.        

Property 
Location

Method of
 Valuation

Effective 
date of 

valuation

Estimated 
price per 

perch

Estimated 
price per 

square foot
No of 

Buildings Valuer
Land Extent    

(Acres)

Carrying
 Value of 

Revalued 
Assets as at 
31st March 

2022 if 
carried at 
Historical 

Cost                            

Carrying
 Value of 

Revalued 
Assets as 

at 31st 
March 2022                                                                                                                      

 Rs.  Rs. 

Land, buildings 
at Sierra Cables 
PLC Galwarusa 
Road, Korathota 
(within the limits 
of kaduwela 
Pradeshiya 
Sabha)

Market 
Approach

01st January
 2022 LKR 600,000

LKR 250 - 
LKR 8,000 15

Mr. W.M. 
Chandrasena. 
Bsc.Est.Mgt & 
Val. Chartered 

Valuation 
Surveyor 8.4061  111,515,537 

  
1,622,184,751 

 111,515,537 1,622,184,751 

Land, building 
at Sierra 
Industries (Pvt) 
Ltd Galwarusa 
Road, Korathota 
(within the limits 
of kaduwela 
Pradeshiya 
Sabha)

Market 
Approach

01st January 
2022 LKR 500,000

LKR 3,500 -
 LKR 6,500 1

Mr. W.M. 
Chandrasena. 
Bsc.Est.Mgt & 
Val. Chartered 

Valuation 
Surveyor 2.749  102,676,137  308,091,406 

 102,676,137  308,091,406 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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Property 
Location

Method of
 Valuation

Effective 
date of 

valuation

Estimated 
price per 

perch

Estimated 
price per 

square foot
No of 

Buildings Valuer
Land Extent    

(Acres)

Carrying
 Value of 

Revalued 
Assets as at 
31st March 

2022 if 
carried at 
Historical 

Cost                            

Carrying
 Value of 

Revalued 
Assets as 

at 31st 
March 2022                                                                                                                      

 Rs.  Rs. 

Land, building 
at Sierra 
Industries (Pvt) 
Ltd Kananvila 
Village, Horana 
(within the 
limits of Horana 
Pradeshiya 
Sabha)

Market 
Approach

01st January 
2022 LKR 250,000 LKR 4,500 2

Mr. W.M. 
Chandrasena. 
Bsc.Est.Mgt & 
Val. Chartered 

Valuation 
Surveyor 0.35625  29,179,100  36,271,875 

 29,179,100  36,271,875-

Motor Vehicle 
Method of
 Valuation

Effective 
date of 

valuation
No of 

Buildings Valuer

Carrying
 Value of 

Revalued 
Assets as at 
31st March 

2022 if 
carried at 
Historical 

Cost                            

Carrying
 Value of 

Revalued 
Assets as 

at 31st 
March 2022                                                                                                                      

 Rs.  Rs. 

Motor Vehicle of Sierra Cables PLC
Market 

Approach
01st January 

2022 7

Mr. Nishantha
 Jayakodi 

AMIAE (SL) -  41,675,455 

-  41,675,455 

Motor Vehicle of Sierra Indutries (Pvt) Ltd
Market 

Approach
01st January 

2022 2

Mr. Nishantha
Jayakodi 

AMIAE (SL) -  315,000

-  315,000
 

 The Group has determined that the fair value of land and building can be categories under Level 03 of fair value   
hierarchy.

 Market approach method uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical  
or comparable assets.

13.3  The carrying amount of revalued assets that would have been included in the Financial Statements, had the assets been 
carried at Cost less Accumulated Depreciation is as follows; 

As at 31st 
March 2022                                

As at 31st 
March 2021                         

 Rs.  Rs. 

At Cost 2,008,538,487  143,458,356 

At Valuation 2,008,538,487  1,209,164,759 
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 Carrying Value
 of Revalued 
Assets as at 
31st March

2022 if 
carried at 

Historical Cost                            

Carrying Value 
of Revalued 

Assets as 
at 31st 

March 2022                                                                                                                     

 Rs.  Rs. 

Sierra Cables PLC

Land  90,058,007  806,982,000 

Building  21,457,530  815,202,751 

Motor Vehicle  -    41,675,455 

Total  111,515,537 1,663,860,206 

 Carrying Value
 of Revalued 
Assets as at 
31st March

2022 if 
carried at 

Historical Cost                            

 Carrying Value
 of Revalued 

Assets as 
at 31st 

March 2022                                                                                                                     

 Rs.  Rs. 

Sierra Industries (Private)Limited

Land  57,317,298  234,170,000 

Building  74,537,939  110,193,281 

Motor Vehicle  -    315,000 

Total  131,855,237  344,678,281 

13.4 Capital work-in-progress represents the amount of expenditure recognised under property plant and equipment during the 
construction of Building.

13.5 The exchange difference has arisen as a result of the translation of property, plant and equipment of foreign Subsidiarirs 
which are accounted for in foreign currencies and translated to the reporting currency at the balance sheet date.

13.6 On re-assessment of the fair value of the Group’s assets, it has been identified that there is no impairment of property plant 
and equipment which requires provision in the financial statements.
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Group Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
Cost 

Balance as at 1st April  23,275,443  23,275,443  23,275,443  23,275,443 

Additions  -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March  23,275,443  23,275,443  23,275,443  23,275,443 

Amortization Charge

Balance as at 1st April  20,719,898  18,712,185  20,719,898  18,712,185 

Charge for the year  1,983,959  2,007,713  1,983,959  2,007,713 

Balance as at 31st March  22,703,857  20,719,898  22,703,857  20,719,898 

Carrying Value as at 31st March  571,586  2,555,545  571,586  2,555,545 

Intangible assets represents the cost of Computer Software acquired by the Company. The initial cost of fully-amotised 
intangible assets which are still in use as at Reporting Date was Rs. 19,465,024/-.( 2020/21- 11,726,480/-)

Group Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

15 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
15.1 Gross carrying amount

At Cost

As at beginning of the year  2,528,281  3,695,474  2,528,281  3,695,474 

Addition /Discontinuation of Leases  (1,809,072)  365,745  (1,809,072)  365,745 

Charge for the Year  (595,532)  (1,532,938)  (595,532)  (1,532,938)

As at end of the year  123,677  2,528,281  123,677  2,528,281 

Net Book Value

Right-Of-Use Assets  123,677  2,528,281  123,677  2,528,281 

15.2 Amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Depreciation expense of Right-Of-Use assets  (595,532)  (1,532,938)  (595,532)  (1,532,938)

Lease Interest  (1,083,511)  (451,080)  (1,083,511)  (451,080)

 (1,679,043)  (1,984,018)  (1,679,043)  (1,984,018)
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Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021

Rs. Rs.

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Sierra Cables East Africa Limited (Note 16.1)  182,735,166  182,735,166 

Sierra Industries(Private) Limited (Note No 16.2)  265,216,310  265,216,310 

 447,951,476  447,951,476 

Provision for Impairment of Subsidiaries (Note 16.2.1)  (358,074,584)  (358,074,584)

 89,876,892  89,876,892 

16.1 Sierra Cables East Africa Limited

Balance as at 1st April  182,735,166  182,735,166 

Investment made During the Year  -    -   

Balance as at 31st March  182,735,166  182,735,166 

16.2 Sierra Industries(Private) Limited 

Balance as at 1st April  265,216,310  265,216,310 

Provision During the Year  -    -   

Balance as at 31st March  265,216,310  265,216,310 

16.2.1 Provision for Impairment of Investment in Subsidiaries
 The Company has made a provision for impairment of Rs. 358,074,584/- on the investment in subsidiaries as at 31st March 

2022 due to adverse business environment in which the subsidiary companies are operated. This has resulted by continuous 
operating losses and negative operating cash flows in subsidiary companies and net asset attributable to the parent 
company has been considered as the recoverable amount for the calculation of provision for impairment as at the each 
reporting date. The breakup of the impairment provision is as follows;

Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021

Rs. Rs.

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited  175,339,418  175,339,418 

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited  182,735,166  182,735,166 

 358,074,584  358,074,584 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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Sierra
 Industries 

(Private) 
Limited.

Sierra Cables
 East Africa

 Limited

16.3 Investment Information of  Subsidiaries

Number of shares  42,036,052  11,400 

Holding 90.72% 95%

Cost of the Investment  265,216,310  182,735,166 

Sierra  Industries (Private)Limited. Sierra  Cables  East Africa Limited

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

16.4 Non-Controlling Interest (NCI) in Subsidiary

NCI Percentage (%) 9.28% 9.28% 5% 5%

Total Assets  1,479,264,850  735,489,484  194,495,844  193,509,608 

Total Liabilities  (1,126,030,385)  (585,260,052)  (307,389,278)  (214,326,694)

Net Assets  353,234,465  150,229,432  (112,893,434)  (20,817,084)

Carrying Amount of NCI  32,780,160  13,941,292  (5,644,672)  (1,040,854)

Profit/(Loss) for the period  115,804,747  (15,229,810)  (92,274,599)  (50,047,910)

Other Comprehensive Income  87,200,285  66,750,979  -    (3,785,971)

Total Other Comprehensive Income /(Expenses)
for the period  203,005,032  51,521,169  (92,274,599)  (53,833,881)

Total Comprehensive Income /(Loss)  
allocated to NCI  18,838,866  6,113,494  (4,603,818)  (2,691,694)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities  (19,240,813)  70,323,218  56,468,944  11,379,142 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities  (221,724,197)  (32,160,988)  -    (1,375,044)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities  206,580,400  (37,961,942)  (32,940,616)  (29,126,520)

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and  
Cash Equivalents  (34,384,610)  200,288  23,528,328  (19,122,422)
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Group Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

17 EQUITY - ACCOUNTED INVESTEES
Investment in Joint Venture  11,214,224  -    28,310,163  28,310,163 

Investment in Associates  42,052,683  32,575,952  3,300,000  3,300,000 

 53,266,907  32,575,952  31,610,163  31,610,163 

17.1 JOINT VENTURE
Cables PTE Limited is a joint venture in which the company has joint contol and a 30% ownership interest. The company is 
principally engaged in the manufacturing of industrial and commercial cable products.

The company classified its interest in Cables PTE Limited as a joint venture. Cables PTE Limited has a financial reporting 
period ended 30th june as per their reporting requirments. 

Group Company

 For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cost of The Investment  28,310,163  28,310,163  28,310,163  28,310,163 

Share of Profit/(Loss) for the Year (Net of Tax)  11,214,224  -    -    -   

Accumulated Share of Profit/ (Loss)  (28,310,163)  (28,310,163)  -    -   

Net Asset Value of Associate as at 31 March  11,214,224  -    28,310,163  28,310,163 

17.1.1 Summarised Financial information of Joint Venture

Cables PTE Limited

As at 31st March 2022 2021

Percentage Ownership Interest 30% 30%

Revenue  1,182,764,685  651,301,218 

Net Profit  92,258,778  23,002,252

Company Profit Share  11,214,224  6,900,676 

Non- Current Assets  975,466,597  648,233,505 

Current Assets  746,478,544  358,964,027 

Non- Current Liabilities  866,194,545  487,875,535 

Current Liabilities  650,309,851  441,205,813 

Elimination of the Share Advance  168,060,000  115,992,000 

Net Assets (100%)  37,380,746  (37,875,817)

Group Share of Net Assets (30%)  11,214,224  (11,362,745)

Carrying Amount of Interest in Joint Venture  11,214,224  -   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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Group Company

 As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

17.2 ASSOCIATES
Tea Leaf Resort Holdings (Private) Limited  
(Note 17.2.1)  -    -    2,500,000  2,500,000 

T & G Lanka (Private) Limited (Note 17.2.2)  42,052,683  32,575,952  3,300,000  3,300,000 

 42,052,683  32,575,952  5,800,000  5,800,000 

Provision for Impairment of Investment in 
Associate (Note 17.2.1)  -    -    (2,500,000)  (2,500,000)

 42,052,683  32,575,952  3,300,000  3,300,000 

17.2.1 Provision for Impairment of Investment in 
Associates

Tea Leaf Resort Holdings (Private) Limited  -    -    (2,500,000)  (2,500,000)

 -    -    (2,500,000)  (2,500,000)

Group

 As at 31st March 2022 2021

Rs. Rs.

17.2.2 Net Assets Value of Associates

Tea Leaf Resort Holdings (Private) Limited

Cost of the Investment  2,500,000  2,500,000 

Share of Profit for the Year (Net of  Tax)  -    -   

Accumulated Share of Profit/ (Loss)  (2,500,000)  (2,500,000)

Net Asset Value of Associate as at 31 March  -    -   

T & G Lanka (Private)Limited 

Cost of the Investment  3,300,000  3,300,000 

Share of Profit for the Year (Net of Tax)  9,476,731  15,101,345 

Accumulated Share of Profit/ (Loss)  29,275,952  14,174,607 

Net Asset Value of Associate as at 31 March  42,052,683  32,575,952 
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Tea Leaf Resort Holdings 
(Private) Limited

T & G Lanka  
(Private) Limited

 As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

17.2.4 Summarized Financial Information of Associates

Percentage Ownership Interest 49.9% 49.9% 22% 28%

Revenue  -    -    258,899,924  198,333,471 

Profit/(Loss) for the Year  (61,204)  (26,000)  9,476,731  53,933,377 

Non-Current Assets  -    -    59,798,710  22,954,394 

Current Assets  2,320,277  2,364,977  180,604,139  149,833,709 

Non-Current Liabilities  -    -    9,140,991  11,448,702 

Current Liabilities  7,137,044  7,120,540  40,623,028  44,996,715 

Net Assets (100%)  (4,816,767)  (4,755,563)  190,638,830  116,342,686 

Group Share of Net Assets  -    -    42,052,683  32,575,952 

Carrying Amount of Interest In Associates  -    -    42,052,683  32,575,952 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

17.2.3 Profit Reconciliation for Percentage Change

Percentage of Ownership 2021 28%

2022 22%

Percentage of Ownership Change 6%

Net Assets Value as at 31.12.2021  190,638,830 

Profit Share at 28%  53,378,872 

Impact of Change in Percentage of Ownership  (11,326,189)

Profit Share at 22%  42,052,683 

Profit  Recognised in 2020/21  32,575,952 

Profit Share Recognized in current Financial Year  9,476,731 
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 Group/ Company  Group/ Company

2022 2021

 As at 31st March
No of Ordinary 

Shares/Units Fair Value
No of Ordinary
 Shares/Units Fair Value

Rs. Rs.

18 OTHER ASSETS - NON-CURRENT
18.1 Equity Securities - At FVOCI

National Development Bank PLC  24,061  1,340,198  24,061  1,944,129 

Richard Pieris Exports  PLC  10,359  6,308,631  10,359  3,874,266 

ACL Cables PLC  3,040  173,280  3,040  109,136 

DFCC Bank PLC  11,072  531,456  10,536  627,946 

Chevron Lubricants PLC  3,678  320,354  3,678  331,020 

Kelani Cables PLC  200  58,150  200  22,350 

NDB Aviva Growth Fund Investment in Units  2,199,836  20,612,459  2,199,836  22,108,347 

 29,344,528  29,017,194 

Total Other Financial Assets  29,344,528  29,017,194 

The Group designated the investments shown above as equity securities at FVOCI because these equity securities 
represent investments that the Group intends to hold for the long term for strategic purposes. No strategic investments 
were disposed during 2021/22 , and there were no transfer of any cumulative gain or loss within equity relating to these 
investments.

Group Company

 As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

19 INVENTORIES
Raw Materials  628,214,317  502,452,206  516,790,484  485,401,019 

Work in Progress  488,700,953  467,154,660  438,822,841  441,175,153 

Finished Goods  925,314,468  672,971,737  833,214,667  610,266,696 

Packing Materials  7,998,513  1,772,696  7,177,060  1,772,696 

Engineering Items  23,815,077  21,120,885  23,815,077  21,120,885 

Goods in Transit  -    92,882,160  -    92,882,160 

 2,074,043,328  1,758,354,344  1,819,820,129  1,652,618,609 

Less: Provision for obsolete Inventories  
(Note 19.1)  (41,911,319)  (15,506,941)  (33,650,814)  (13,130,445)

 2,032,132,009  1,742,847,403  1,786,169,315  1,639,488,164 
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Group Company

 As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

19.1 Provision for Obsolete Inventories

Balance as at 1st April  15,506,941  2,119,931  13,130,445   -    

Provision During the Year  26,404,378  13,387,010  20,520,369  13,130,445 

Balance as at 31st March  41,911,319  15,506,941  33,650,814  13,130,445 

Inventories pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 34 to the 
Financial Statements.

Group Company

 As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

20 RECEIVABLE AND DERIVATIVES
20.1 Trade and Other Receivables

Trade  Receivables  2,367,301,962  2,620,751,971  1,950,285,482  2,327,235,417 

Less: Provision for Impairment (Note 20.1.1)  (365,870,698)  (291,296,983)  (299,864,187)  (242,864,187)

 2,001,431,264  2,329,454,988  1,650,421,295  2,084,371,230 

VAT Receivable  254,232,750  251,898,912  169,438,310  180,736,076 

NBT Receivable  5,597,218  5,597,218  2,885,136  2,885,136 

Deposits, Prepayments and Advances  335,760,566  85,663,311  335,760,566  78,143,943 

Other Receivables  217,239,939  21,337,124  -    -   

 812,830,473  364,496,566  508,084,012  261,765,155 

Provision for Impairment (Note 20.1.2)  (72,240,403)  (42,240,403)  (72,240,403)  (42,240,403)

 740,590,070  322,256,162  435,843,609  219,524,752 

Total Trade and Other Receivables  2,742,021,334  2,651,711,150  2,086,264,904  2,303,895,982 

Trade receivables pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 34 to 
the Financial Statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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Group Company

 For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

20.1.1 Provision for Impairment of Trade 
Receivables

Balance as at 1st April  291,296,983  245,391,816  242,864,187  198,850,740 

Provision made during the year  74,573,715  45,905,167  57,000,000  44,013,447 

Balance as at 31st March   365,870,698  291,296,983  299,864,187  242,864,187 

20.1.2 Provision for Impairment of Other 
Receivables

Balance as at 1st April  42,240,403  40,835,057  42,240,403  40,835,057 

Provision made durig the year  30,000,000  1,405,346  30,000,000  1,405,346 

Balance as at 31st March   72,240,403  42,240,403  72,240,403  42,240,403 

20.2 Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative Financial Assets  -    24,909,645  -    24,909,645 

Balance as at 31st March  -    24,909,645  -    24,909,645 

The Group uses derivatives (not designated as hedging instrument for hedge accounting) to manage its exposure to 
foreign currency. The Group used forward contracts with leading banks as the derivative financial instrument. 

Group Company

 For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

21 AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED 
COMPANIES
Non trading

Sierra Industries  (Private) Limited  -    -    506,100,231  181,535,236 

Tea Leaf Holding (Private) Limited  2,500,000  2,500,000  2,500,000  2,500,000 

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited  -    -    110,768,096  57,417,999 

Cables PTE Limited  32,891,960  32,885,960  32,891,960  32,885,960 

Provision for Non Trading Receivables  
(Note 21.1)  (6,430,180)  (3,930,180)  (123,211,452)  (67,361,354)

Total  28,961,780  31,455,780  529,048,835  206,977,841 
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Group Company

 For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trading 

Sierra Electrical Engineering (Private) Limited  616,785  616,785  616,785  616,785 

Sierra Global Network (Private) Limited  1,750,828  1,722,862  1,750,828  1,722,862 

Sierra Technology Holdings (Private) Limited  7,542,499  7,542,499  7,542,499  7,542,499 

Sierra Construction Limited  50,096,037  56,618,508  50,096,037  56,618,508 

Sierra Development (Private) Limited  615,221  615,221  615,221  615,221 

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited  -    -    172,398,786  116,493,146 

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited  -    -    168,206  -   

 60,621,370  67,115,875  233,188,362  183,609,021 

Provision for related party trade receivable  
(Note 21.2)  (2,518,606)  (2,518,606)  (47,731,753)  (47,731,753)

Total  87,064,544  96,053,049  714,505,444  342,855,109 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

21.1 Provision for Non Trading Receivables

Balance as at 1st April  3,930,180  4,128,860  67,361,354  38,024,192 

Provision / (reversal) during the year  2,500,000  (198,680)  55,850,098  29,337,162 

Balance as at 31st March  6,430,180  3,930,180  123,211,452  67,361,354 

21.2 Provision for related party trade receivable

Balance as at 1st April  2,518,606  522,136  47,731,753  10,874,865 

Provision / (reversal) during the year  -    1,996,470  -    36,856,888 

Balance as at 31st March  2,518,606  2,518,606  47,731,753  47,731,753 

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Favourable Balances

Cash in Hand  7,301,881  2,851,975  6,893,348  2,015,097 

Cash in Bank  318,938,144  122,707,067  308,969,911  121,481,044 

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Statement of 
Financial Position  326,240,025  125,559,042  315,863,259  123,496,141 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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Group Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Unfavorable Balances

Bank Overdrafts Repayable on Demand and 
Used for Cash Management Purpose  (324,537,052)  (132,699,932)  (205,255,002)  (47,719,877)

Cash and Cash Equivalents for the Purpose of 
Statement of Cash Flows  1,702,973  (7,140,890)  110,608,257  75,776,264 

23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

23.1 Share Capital

537,512,430 Ordinary Shares  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898 

 894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898 

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time are entitled to one vote per share at 
general meetings.

23.2 Revaluation Reserve
 The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

23.3 Fair Value Reserves
The fair value reserve comprises of the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity securities designated at FVOCI.

23.4 Foreign Currency Transaction Reserve
The transaction reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the Financial Statements of 
foreign operations. 

Group Company

 For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

24 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Balance as at 1st April  64,392,757  54,057,974  63,168,477  53,063,400 

Current Service Cost  7,156,120  5,623,927  6,865,693  5,623,928 

Past Service Cost  (1,001,518)  -    (1,001,518)  -   

Interest Cost  5,920,351  5,637,547  5,735,348  5,306,340 

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss  5,058,407  1,910,559  5,198,531  1,910,559 

Benefits Paid by the Plan  (1,419,250)  (2,837,250)  (1,419,250)  (2,735,750)

Balance as at 31st March  80,106,867  64,392,757  78,547,281  63,168,477 
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Group Company

 For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

24.1 The total amount charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income  in respect of Retirement Benefit Obligations 
made up as follows;     

Current Service Cost  7,156,120  5,623,927  6,865,693  5,623,928 

Interest Cost  5,920,351  5,637,547  5,735,348  5,306,340 

Past Service Cost  (1,001,518)  -    (1,001,518)  -   

Recognized in Income Statement  12,074,953  11,261,474  11,599,523  10,930,268 

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss  5,058,407  1,910,559  5,198,531  1,910,559 

Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income  5,058,407  1,910,559  5,198,531  1,910,559 

24.2 LKAS 19 requires the use of actuarial techniques to make a reliable estimate of the amount of retirement benefits that 
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods and discount that benefit using projected 
unit credit method in order to determine the present value of the retirement benefit obligation and the current service 
cost. This requires an entity to determine how much benefit is attributable to the current and prior periods and to make 
estimates about demographic variables and financial variables that will influence the cost of the benefit.

 An Actuarial Valuation of the Retirement Benefit Obligation of the Company was carried out as at 31st March 2022, by 
Messers M. Poopalanathan, a firm of Professional Actuaries. The valuation was carried out as per the “Projected Unit 
Credit” (PUC) method.       

Group/ Company

 For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021

The Following Key Assumptions Were Made in Arriving at the above Figure.

Expected Annual Average Salary Increment 12.5% 10%

Discount Rate 15.0% 8.7%

Retirement Age  60 Years  55 Years 

Mortality  A 1967/70 Mortality Table issued by the Institute of Actuaries, London   

Staff Turnover Rate 17% for age up to 54 and thereafter zero. 

Weighted Average Duration of Defined Benefit Obligation (Years)

 During the period 2021/2022, retirement benefits obligations were adjusted to reflect new legal requirements in the country 
regarding the retirement age based on the Minimum Retirement Age of Workers Act No. 28 of 2021. As a result of the plan 
amendment, the Group’s retirement benefits obligation decreased by Rs. 1,001,519/- (2020/2021- Nil). A corresponding past 
service credit was recognised in the income statement during 2021/2022. The plan amendment increased the retirement 
benefits obligation of the Company by Rs. 1,001,519/- (2020/2021 -Nil) and recognised the corresponding past service 
charge in the income statement during 2021/2022.      

Discount rate 
LKAS 19 requires the risk discount rate to be based on the market yield of high quality Corporate bonds (AA and above) of 
similar duration to the liability.                                                                                                              

Due to the lack of long term high quality bonds available in the Sri Lankan market, discount rate is determined by 
examining short and medium term government and corporate bonds. For the purpose of this valuation, the Company has 
considered discount rate of 15%. A rate of discount of 8.7% has been used at the previous valuation.

Assumptions regarding valuation of the retirement benefits based on published statistics. The discount rate has been 
changed compared to previous year, in order to reflect the current market conditions. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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24.3 Sensitivity Analysis - Salary Escalation Rate/Discount Rate
The calculation of the Retirement Benefit Obligations  is sensitive to the assumptions set out above. The following table 
summarizes how the impact on the defined benefit  obligation at the end of the reporting period would have increased 
(decreased) as a result of a change in the respective assumptions by one percent.

Group Company

Retirement Benefit Obligation Retirement Benefit Obligation

 For the year ended 31st March

One
   percentage 

point increase

One
   percentage 

point decrease

One
   percentage 

point increase

One
   percentage 

point decrease

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Effect on the Discounting Rate  (2,753,310)  2,989,992  (2,685,264)  2,918,207 

Effect on the Salary Escalation Rate  3,386,256  (3,169,521)  3,313,262  (3,099,183)

Group Company

 For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

25 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
Balance as at 1st April  204,657,526  207,704,606  168,202,891  167,504,991 

(Reversal)/Provision (Note 25.3)  89,319,715  (3,047,080)  67,050,160  697,900 

Balance as at 31st March  293,977,241  204,657,526  235,253,051  168,202,891 

The effective tax rate which were applied by the Company and its subsidiaries are as follows.

 For the year ended 31st March 2022 2021

Sierra Cables PLC 17.88% 18%

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited 18% 18%

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited 30% 30%

25.1 The Deferred Tax Liability is attributable to the followings

As at 31st March 2022 2021

 Temporary 
Difference

 Tax  
Effect

 Temporary 
Difference

 Tax  
Effect

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Company

On Property, Plant and Equipment  365,190,131  65,311,529  435,094,190  78,088,554 

On Retirement Benefit Obligations  (78,547,281)  (14,047,594)  (63,168,477)  (11,337,166)

On Revaluation of Land & Building  1,334,006,287  238,577,065  751,990,176  134,963,479 

On Other Provisions    - Inventory  (33,650,814)  (6,018,197)  (13,130,445)  (2,356,587)

        - Debtor  (271,578,303)  (48,569,752)  (173,591,749)  (31,155,389)

 1,315,420,020  235,253,051  937,193,695  168,202,891 
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As at 31st March 2022 2021

 Temporary 
Difference

 Tax  
Effect

 Temporary 
Difference

 Tax  
Effect

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Group

On Property, Plant and Equipment  470,813,273  84,323,693  518,550,275  93,110,647 

On Retirement Benefit Obligations  (80,106,867)  (14,328,320)  (64,392,757)  (11,557,536)

On Revaluation of Land & Building  1,572,933,472  281,583,959  884,715,675  158,854,069 

On Other Provisions     - Inventory  (36,027,310)  (6,445,966)  (15,506,941)  (2,738,175)

                                        - Debtor  (285,947,039)  (51,156,125)  (183,646,797)  (33,011,479)

 1,641,665,529  293,977,241  1,139,719,454  204,657,527 

25.2 Unrecognised Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognise in respect of the following items, because it is not probable that future taxable 
profit will be available against which the Group can use the benefit thereform. 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Tax Losses  449,438,344  361,147,300  -    -   

Inventory Provision  5,884,009  -    -    -   

25.3 Deferred Tax Liabilities – (Reversal)/Provision

Origination/(Reversal) of Temporary Differences

Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Origination/(Reversal) of Temporary Differences  (32,981,328)  (20,713,875)  (36,109,357)  (21,922,680)

Reduction in tax rate  -    (45,553,590)  -    (31,088,644)

 (32,981,328)  (66,267,465)  (36,109,357)  (53,011,324)

Recognized in the Statement of Other 
comprehensive Income

Reduction in tax rate in relation to Revaluation 
surplus on previous years  -    (34,184,116)  -    (29,048,606)

Origination/(Reversal) of Temporary Differences  122,301,043  97,404,502  103,159,517  82,757,830 

 122,301,043  63,220,386  103,159,517  53,709,224 

 89,319,715  (3,047,080)  67,050,160  697,900 
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Group Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

26 LONG TERM LOANS
Balance as at 1st April 216,707,020 323,805,805 68,421,048 254,749,998

Loans Obtained 323,000,000 121,000,000 200,000,000 -

Repayments  (120,610,391) (237,703,750) (38,197,775) (186,328,950)

Effect of Movement in Exchange Rates  15,538,757 9,604,965 - -

Balance as at 31st March   434,635,386 216,707,020 230,223,273 68,421,048

Term Loans due within One year  132,670,133 74,612,460 80,622,024 7,894,740

Term Loans due after One year  301,965,253 142,094,560  149,601,249 60,526,308

 434,635,386 216,707,020 230,223,273 68,421,048

27 LEASE LIABILITIES
As at beginning of the year 1,993,845 3,701,520 1,993,845 3,701,520

Additions/ Discontinuation  (1,809,074) 365,745  (1,809,074) 365,745

Interest Charge for the year 1,083,511 451,080 1,083,511 451,080

Lease Rental Payments for the year (907,500) (2,524,500) (907,500) (2,524,500)

Balance as at 31st March,  360,782 1,993,845  360,782 1,993,845

27.1 Maturity analysis of undiscounted contractual lease payments are as follows;

Less than One year  360,782 1,508,430  360,782 1,508,430

Between One and Five years - 485,415 - 485,415

 360,782 1,993,845  360,782 1,993,845

27.2 Amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Interest expense on Lease Liabilities 1,083,511 451,080 1,083,511 451,080

Expense relating to Leases of Low-Value Assets 
(included in Other Operating Expenses)  1,563,600 2,107,200  1,563,600 2,107,200

Depreciation expense of Right-Of-Use Assets  (595,532)  (1,532,938)  (595,532)  (1,532,938)

 2,051,579  1,025,342  2,051,579  1,025,342 
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Group Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

27.3 Amounts recognised in statement of cash 
flows on SLFRS 16 - Leases

Lease repayment 907,500 2,524,500 907,500 2,524,500

907,500 2,524,500 907,500 2,524,500

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade Creditors  1,248,532,128 1,849,193,496  1,168,924,410  1,786,045,795 

Other Payables  123,716,609 200,196,984  95,950,451 92,138,066

 1,372,248,737 2,049,390,480  1,264,874,861  1,878,183,861 

29 AMOUNTS DUE TO  RELATED  
COMPANIES
Sierra Industries (Private) Limited - - 30,666 504,594

Mayleen Kenya Limited  1,243,932 1,205,467 -

 1,243,932 1,205,467 30,666 504,594

30 IMPORT DEMAND LOAN
Balance as at 1st April 1,222,117,705 650,751,568 1,222,117,705 586,857,627

Loans Obtained 6,227,876,143 3,174,467,997 5,838,488,769 3,168,422,997

Repayments (5,767,601,369) (2,603,101,860) (5,511,266,395) (2,533,162,919)

Balance as at 31st March 1,682,392,479 1,222,117,705  1,549,340,079 1,222,117,705

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The following contingent liabilities exist as at the reporting date on account of the corporate guarantees given by the 
Company as at 31st March 2022.

 GUARANTEES PROVIDED ON BEHALF OF THE SUBSIDIARY
31.1 Sierra Cables East Africa Limited   USD 990,000/-

 This corporate guarantee has been provided to Commercial Bank Ceylon PLC on behalf of the subsidiary company for one 
off Term Loan facility, where repayment terms are 60 monthly installments with one-year grace period.

31.2 Sierra Industries (Private) Limited   Rs.250,000,000/- 

This corporate guarantee has been provided to Commercial Bank Ceylon PLC on behalf of the subsidiary company for 
Letter of Credit, Overdraft and Import Demand Loan facility. 

31.3 Sierra Industries (Private) Limited   Rs.300,000,000

 This corporate guarantee has been provided to Sampath Bank PLC on behalf of the subsidiary company for Term Loan, 
Short Term Loan, Letter of Credit, Overdraft and Import Demand Loan facility. 

31.4 Sierra Industries (Private) Limited   Rs.46,000,000

 This corporate guarantee has been provided to Commercial Bank Ceylon PLC on behalf of the subsidiary company for 
Performance Guarantee facility.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
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31.5 Sierra Industries (Private) Limited   Rs.73,320,961

This Advance payment guarantees has been provided to China Machinery Engineering Corporation on behalf of the 
subsidiary company for supply & delivery of PVC pipes, fittings and special components.

31.6 Sierra Industries (Private) Limited   Rs.102,414,823

 This Performance Bond has been provided to China Machinery Engineering Corporation on behalf of the subsidiary 
company for supply & delivery of PVC pipes, fittings and special components.

 There are no material contingent liabilities outstanding as at the reporting date other than as disclosed above which require 
adjustments to or disclosures in the Financial Statements 

32 COMMITMENTS
There were no material Capital Commitments as at the reporting date.

There is no any material issues pertaining to employees and industrial relations of the entity for the financial year ended 
31st March 2022.        

33 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING  PERIOD
No circumstances have arisen since the reporting date, which would require adjustments to or disclosure in the financial 
statements except the following;

The Surcharge Tax Act No 14 of 2022 (Act) was certified by the Speaker and published as a Supplement to Part II of the 
Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka on 08 April 2022. As per the said Act, Surcharge Tax is payable 
by company or each company of a group of companies (holding and subsidiaries) subject to the taxable income threshold 
specified in the Act. The Group of companies will meet the chargeability threshold when the aggregate taxable income of 
all subsidiaries and holding company (excluding the companies with nil taxable income due to losses or unrelieved losses) 
exceed Rs.2 Bn for Y/A commencing from 1 April 2020. Such Group of companies will be liable for Surcharge tax at a rate 
of 25% on the taxable income of each subsidiary and holding company excluding gains and profits from dividends received 
from a subsidiary which is part of such taxable income for Y/A commencing from 1st April 2020.

However, Sierra Cables PLC is not liable to pay the above surchage tax as the Company or its holding Company did not 
meet the chargeability threshold (Rs.2 Bn) during the year of assessment mentioned above.

34 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY  AND REPAYMENT TERMS
The following assets have been pledged as securities against the long term and short term borrowings that have been 
disclosed in Notes 26, and 30 to the Financial Statement respectively.

 Sierra Cables PLC

Name of 
the Bank

Facility 
Obtained

Facility 
Amount Rate of Interest

Amount  
Outstanding as
 at the end of

 the year Securities Pledges

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
(1) Overdraft Facility Rs.40 Mn AWPLR+1.5% p.a Rs.29,419,325 01)A Primary Bond 

for Rs.550 Mn and A 
Secondary Mortgage 
Bond for Rs.500 Mn 
executed over the land 
and buildings,Plant and 
Machinery and equipment                                                                                                                                        
02)Primary Mortgage 
Bond for Rs.490 Mn 
executed over stocks & 
trade receivables

(2) Import Loan Facility Rs.1.5 Billion AWPLR+1.5% p.a  Rs.479,610,040
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Name of 
the Bank

Facility 
Obtained

Facility 
Amount Rate of Interest

Amount  
Outstanding as
 at the end of

 the year Securities Pledges

Bank of Ceylon
(1 ) Overdraft Facility Rs.25 Mn AWPLR+2% p.a Rs.14,342,627 Overdraft Agreement

(2 ) Hypothecation   
 Loan

Rs.750 Mn AWPLR+2% p.a Rs.167,207,182 Hypothecation over stocks 
in trade,raw material and 
working progress

(3)Term Loan  
Facility-One off

Rs.200 Mn 5.5% P.a Rs.169,696,965 Letter of Indeminity  of the 
company

Cargills Bank Limited
(1) Overdraft Facility (Sub 
Limit of Facility No 02)

Rs.25 Mn AWPLR+1.5% p.a Rs.22,176,756 N/A

(2) Import Loan Facility Rs.200 Mn AWPLR+1.5% p.a Rs.79,791,750 N/A

(3) Short Term Loan Facility 
(Sub Limit of Facility No 02)

Rs.50 Mn AWPLR+1.5% p.a Rs.50,000,000

(4 Short Term Loan Facility-
One off

Rs.100 Mn AWPLR+1.75% p.a Rs.100,000,000 N/A

DFCC Bank
(1) Overdraft Facility Rs.50 Mn AWPLR+1.75% p.a  Rs.49,095,810 A Primary mortgage 

Bond for Rs.120 Mn and 
further Mortgage Bond for 
Rs.180 Mn executed over 
Book Debts and Stocks                                                                                                                       
02)A primary mortgage 
for Rs.50 Mn over land 
depicted in plan no 4457                                                 
03)Promissory Note for 
Rs.100 Mn and Rs.150 Mn 

(2) Import Loan Facility Rs.450 Mn AWPLR+1.5% p.a Nil

(3) Revolving Short Term 
Loan (Sub Limit of Facility 
No 02)

Rs.250 Mn Quoted at time of 
granting

Nil

(3)Term Loan Facility Rs.80Mn AWPLR+1.75% p.a Rs.60,526,310 A primary mortgage over 
movable assets (Sloar PV 
system and Inverter)

HNB
(1) Overdraft Facility Rs.50 Mn AWPLR+1.75% Rs.39,944,177 Demand promissory note 

for Rs.400 Mn

(2) Import Loan Facility Rs.350 Mn AWPLR+1.25% Nil Mortgage bond for  
Rs.400 Mn over Book 
Debts ad Stocks

Standard Chartered Bank
(1) Import Loan Facility Rs.300 Mn AWPLR+1% Rs.138,553,240 Further mortgage for 

Rs.300 Mn over Book 
Debts and Stocks

Sampath Bank PLC

(1) Overdraft Facility Rs.50 Mn AWPLR+1.5% p.a Rs.45,814,424 Overdraft agreement for 
Rs.50 Mn

(2) Import Loan Facility Rs.300 Mn AWPLR+1.5% p.a Rs.33,177,812 Short Term Import Loan 
agreement for Rs.300 MN

34 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY  AND REPAYMENT TERMS (CONTINUED)
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Name of 
the Bank

Facility 
Obtained

Facility 
Amount Rate of Interest

Amount  
Outstanding as
 at the end of

 the year Securities Pledges

(3) Short Term Loan Facility 
(Sub Limit of Facility No 02)

Rs.100 Mn AWPLR+1.5% p.a Nil Short Term Loan 
agreement for Rs.100 MN

Hypothecation Bond for 
Rs.300 Mn over Book 
Debts and Stocks

Sierra Industries (Pvt) Ltd.

Sampath Bank PLC
(1) Overdraft Facility Rs.60 Mn AWPLR+2% P.a Rs.53,401,105 Overdraft agreement for 

Rs.60  Mn

(2) Import Loan Facility Rs.150 Mn AWPLR+2% P.a Rs.133,052,400 Short Term Import loan  
agreement for Rs.150 Mn

(3) Term Loan Facility Rs.92 MN AWPLR+1.75% P.a Rs.33,000,000 Primary Mortgage 
bond for Rs.85 Mn and 
Additional mortgage 
bond for Rs.83.6 Mn 
over property situated at 
Korathota,Kaduwela

(4) Term Loan Facility Rs.85Mn AWPLR+1.75% P.a Rs.59,800,000

(5) Term Loan Facility Rs.90 MN AWPLR+1.75% P.a Rs.90,000,000 Loan  agreement for  
Rs.90 Mn

(6) Term Loan Facility Rs.10 Mn 4% P.a Rs.1,660,000 Loan  agreement for  
Rs.10 Mn

(8) Short Term Loan Facility  
(Sub Limit of Facility No 02)

Rs.50 Mn AWPLR+2% P.a Nil Shot term loan  agreement 
for Rs.50 Mn

Hypothecation bond for 
Rs.160 Mn an additional 
bond for Rs.50 Mn over 
stock and book debts.

Corporate guarantee 
of Sierra Cables PLC for 
Rs.300 Mn

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
(1) Overdraft Facility Rs.25 Mn AWPLR+2% P.a Rs.64,009,774 Corporate guarantee 

of Sierra Cables PLC for 
Rs.250 Mn(2) Import Loan Facility Rs.200 Mn AWPLR+2% P.a Rs.53,465,125

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
(1) Term Loan Facility USD.990,000 LIBOR+5% P.a USD.77,265 Corporate Guarantee for 

Rupee equivalent of USD 
990,000 dated

01/12/2015 signed by 
Sierra Cables PLC

General term and 
conditions relating to Term 
Loan for USD 990,000 
dated 01/12/2015 signed 
by the company
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35 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of the business on an arm’s length basis at commercial 
rates with parties who are defined as Related Parties as per the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 24 ‘Related Party 
Disclosures’, except for the transactions that the Key Management Personnel (KMP) have availed under schemes uniformly 
applicable to all staff at concessionary rates.

 Non-recurrent related party transactions
There were no non-recurrent related party transactions which in aggregated value exceed 10% of the equity 5% of the 
total assets which is lower of the company as per 31 March 2021 audited financial statement, which required additional 
disclosures in the 2021/22 Annual report under Colombo Stock Exchange listing Rules 9.3.2 and Code of Best Practice 
on Related Party Transactions under the securities and Exchange Commission Directive issued under Section 13(c) of the 
Securities Exchange Commison Act.

 Recurrent related party transactions
There were no recurrent related party transactions which in aggregate value exceed 10% of the consolidated revenue of 
the Group as per 31 March 2021 audited financial statements, which required additional disclosures in the 2021/22 Annual 
Report under Colombo Stock Exchange listing Rules 9.3.2 and Code of Best Practice on Related Party Transactions under 
the securities and Exchange Commission Directive issued under Section 13(c) of the Securities Exchange Commison Act.

35.1 Transactions with Related Parties
(i) Companies within the Group engage in trading transactions under normal commercial terms and conditions

Name of the 
Company 

Nature of the 
Transactions Transaction Value

Balance Outstanding  
as at 31st March 

For the year ended    
31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Transactions with 
Subsidiary Companies

Sierra Industries 
(Private) Limited

Amount Paid for 
Administration 
Expenses

 73,139,078  1,277,221  506,100,231  146,918,936 

Funds Received from 
Sierra Industries 
Customers

 (4,513,751)  (876,312) - -

Funds Transfers /
settlements

 160,500,000  (27,528,975) - -

Payments for Custom 
Duty

 52,291,621  7,803,620 - -

Amount Paid for 
Imports of  Sierra 
Industries 

 73,250,849  -   - -

Amount Paid for 
Imports by Sierra 
Industries 

 (33,672,231)  -   - -

Material Issued to 
Sierra Industries

 3,569,428  -   - -

Transfer from Loan 
Payable Account

 34,616,300 - - -
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Name of the 
Company 

Nature of the 
Transactions Transaction Value

Balance Outstanding  
as at 31st March 

For the year ended    
31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Long Term Loan - - - -

Loan Repayment  -    (85,000,000)  -    34,616,300 

Transfer to Current 
Account

 (34,616,300) - - -

Purchase of Goods  -    473,928  (30,666)  (504,594)

Settlement of Invoices  473,928  -   - -

Sale of Goods  168,206  -    168,206  -   

Settlement of Invoices  -    -   - -

Sierra Cables East 
Africa Limited

Fund transfers  53,350,098  23,522,666  110,768,096  57,417,999 

Sale of Goods  -    -    172,398,786  116,493,146 

Settlement of Invoice  -    (9,423,280) - -

Exchange Difference  55,905,641  5,328,347 - -

Transactions with 
Associate Companies

Cables PTE Limited Amount Paid for 
Administration 
Expenses

 6,000  32,434  32,891,960  32,885,960 

Tea Leaf Holding 
(Private) Limited

- -  2,500,000  2,500,000 

Transactions with 
Other Related 
Companies

Sierra Construction 
Limited

Sale of Goods  17,419,272 16,101,024  50,096,037  56,618,508 

Settlement of Invoices  (23,941,742)  (20,951,038) - -

Sierra Electrical 
Engineering (Private) 
Limited

 -    -    616,785  616,785 
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Name of the 
Company 

Nature of the 
Transactions Transaction Value

Balance Outstanding  
as at 31st March 

For the year ended    
31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Sierra Global 
Networks (Private) 
Limited

Sale of Goods  20,661,571  3,345,305 -  -   

Settlement of Invoices  (20,633,606)  (1,780,393)  1,750,828  1,722,862 

Sierra Technology 
Holdings (Private) 
Limited

Sale of Goods  1,460,381  -    7,542,499  7,542,499 

Settlement of Invoices  (1,460,381)  -   - -

(Previously Known as Sierra Information Technologies  (Private) Limited)

Sierra Ready-mix 
(Private) Limited

Sale of Goods  39,415  -    -    -   

Settlement of Invoice  (39,415)  (38,233) - -

Sierra Development 
(Private) Limited

Sale of Goods  -    -    615,221  615,221 

Settlement of Invoice  -    -   - -

Sintech Engineering 
(Pvt) Ltd

Sale of Goods  4,108,365  1,022,642  -    -   

Settlement of Invoice  (4,108,365)  (1,483,130) - -

Sierra System 
Engineering (Private) 
Limited

Sale of Goods  91,200  -    -    -   

Settlement of Invoice  (91,200)  (7,531,752) - -

Mayleen Kenya 
Limited

Funds Received  -    1,138,083 - -

Settlement  -    -    (1,243,932)  (1,205,467)

Exchange Difference  (38,465) - - -

35.2 Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Key Management personnel are those having authority and responsibility for planning ,directing and controlling the 
activities of the Group . Accordingly the Directors of the Company (including Executive and Non Executive Directors )have 
been classified as  Key Management Personnel of the Company, Group. 

35.1 Related Party Disclosure (Continued)
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35.2.1 Transactions with Key Management Personnel 
 (i)  Loans to Directors

No loans have been given to the Directors of the Company.

 (ii) Key Management Personnel Compensation    

Group Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Directors' Fees  9,600,000  12,746,790  9,600,000  9,600,000 

Short Term Employee Benefits  18,600,000  14,300,000  18,600,000  14,300,000 

 28,200,000  27,046,790  28,200,000  23,900,000 

 (iii)  Other Transactions With Key Management Personnel
 The names of Directors of Sierra Cables PLC, who are also directors of subsidiaries and equity accounted investees 

companies are stated on page 54.

 Details of directors and their share holdings are given on page 55 There were no other transactions with key management 
personnel other than those disclosed in Note 35 to the Financial Statement. 

36 GOING CONCERN
36.1 Sierra Industries (Private) Limited

The Company has recorded an accumulated loss amounting to Rs.145,201,850/- ( 2020/21- Rs. 261,121,499/-) as at 31st 
March 2022 and its current liabilities exceeded its current assets as at 31st March 2022 by Rs.55,087,748/- ( 2020/21- Rs. 
63,293,611/-). Therefore, the management has taken the following mitigating actions to ensure that the company will be 
able to continue as a going concern.

During the last financial year, the Company was awarded with projects worth of over Rs.400 Mn including the water projects 
of National Water Supply and Drainage board, where a part of revenue will be recognized in the 2022/23 financial year. 
Moreover, bided  but yet to be awarded government orders will generate revenue of Rs.340 million during the next financial 
year. And it’s expected that a further income of Rs.1 Bn  will be generated by the new water projects which are currently in 
final evaluation stage.       

As a strategic move, the company has setup a HDPE pipe plant which has greater potential in future. Accordingly,the 
company will be fully equipped to cater the whole pipe requirement of all major projects including the port city in the 
upcoming year.

Accordingly, the Directors of the view that the company would be able to generate sufficient revenues during the next 
financial year, where by accumulated losses could be reduced gradually. The Directors are of the view that the subsidiary is 
able to continue as a going concern and the financial statements of the subsidiary have been prepared on the assumption 
of going concern.       

36.2 Sierra East Africa (Private) Limited
The Company recorded a loss of Rs. 92 Mn during the year ended 31st December 2021 (2020/2021 – loss of Rs. 50 Mn) and 
as that date, the current liabilities exceeded the current assets by Rs. 139 Mn (2020/2021 – Rs. 159.7 Mn).  

The Company was incorporated in 2015 and commenced commercial operations in 2017. The Company was unable to 
operate at optimum capacity and recover fixed overhead due to non-availability of sufficient orders during the year under 
review. 

The Board of Directors are currently in the process of designing new strategic plan for revive the operation of the 
company with the assistance of affiliated companies in the African region. Accordingly, the directors are of the view that 
with the implementation of new strategic plan the Company would be able to generate sufficient revenue during the 
ensuing financial year, whereby the accumulated losses could be reduced gradually. The Directors are of the view that the 
subsidiary is able to continue as a going concern and the financial statements of the subsidiary have been prepared on the 
assumption of going concern.
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37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
37.1  Introduction and Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

• Credit Risk  

• Liquidity Risk  

• Market Risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and 
processes for measuring and managing risks, and the Group’s management of capital.

 Risk Management Framework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management 
framework. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

 i. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer fails to meet its contractual obligations, and this principally 
arises  from the Group’s receivables from customers.

 Exposure to Credit Risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum  credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at 
the reporting date was as follows;

Group Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade  Receivables  2,367,301,962  2,620,751,971  1,950,285,482  2,327,235,417 

Amounts due from Related Companies  96,013,330  102,501,835  885,448,649  457,948,216 

Balances with Banks  326,240,025  125,559,042  315,863,259  123,496,141 

 2,789,555,317  2,848,812,848  3,151,597,390  2,908,679,774 

 Trade  Receivables
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The management 
has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness before the 
group standard  payment and delivery terms offered.

The requirement for an impairment is analysed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major customers. 
Additionally, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment 
collectively. The calculation is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to 
the debtors and the economic environment.
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The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date was as follows:      

Group Company

As at 31st March 2022
Amount 

Outstanding Provision
Amount 

Outstanding Provision

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Past due 0-60 days  933,894,556  7,286,769  863,761,197  3,134,581 

Past due 61-90 days  270,264,505  4,605,686  248,020,556  3,135,527 

Past due 90-120 days  212,674,012  8,392,260  223,141,028  3,618,111 

Past due 121-150 days  106,456,614  8,394,825  152,384,283  1,008,553 

Past due 151-180 days  144,596,751  8,862,221  113,226,566  3,268,509 

Past due 181-210 days  105,417,494  9,392,387  24,947,634  1,891,318 

Past due 211-240 days  77,558,586  8,580,334  26,320,640  1,893,940 

Past due 241-270 days  42,540,626  5,735,496  6,753,083  1,065,332 

Past due 271-300 days  64,315,259  9,129,545  4,363,520  1,306,028 

Past due 301-330 days  5,512,591  1,646,700  7,081,532  1,851,444 

Past due 331-360 days  62,856,337  9,037,160  3,943,862  1,349,262 

Past due Over 360 days  341,214,631  284,807,315  276,341,581  276,341,582 

Total  2,367,301,962  365,870,698  1,950,285,482  299,864,187 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2021
Amount 

Outstanding Provision
Amount 

Outstanding Provision

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Past due 0-60 days  1,401,760,767  4,919,034  1,339,130,317  4,919,034 

Past due 61-90 days  336,913,848  2,269,045  281,667,183  2,269,045 

Past due 90-120 days  293,102,986  2,415,029  237,856,321  2,415,029 

Past due 121-150 days  131,442,873  3,121,167  131,331,625  3,249,732 

Past due 151-180 days  15,299,588  1,820,619  15,197,616  1,221,491 

Past due 181-210 days  32,911,590  4,581,867  36,321,733  4,294,932 

Past due 211-240 days  13,319,455  1,215,100  8,510,668  1,203,158 

Past due 241-270 days  9,034,825  1,547,724  7,151,605  1,512,001 

Past due 271-300 days  12,943,391  3,138,668  12,983,136  3,138,668 

Past due 301-330 days  10,184,681  3,417,270  10,088,778  3,172,936 

Past due 331-360 days  5,684,940  2,297,071  5,306,477  1,795,130 

Past due Over 360 days  358,153,025  260,554,389  241,689,958  213,673,030 

Total  2,620,751,971  291,296,983  2,327,235,417  242,864,187 
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The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables is the carrying amounts at the end of the reporting 
period, and it is analysed by geographic regions as follows, 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Local Debtors  2,185,722,079  2,496,969,146  1,766,616,691  2,206,221,431 

Foreign Debtors  181,579,883  123,782,825  183,668,791  121,013,986 

 2,367,301,962  2,620,751,971  1,950,285,482  2,327,235,417 

Provison for Impairment  (365,870,698)  (291,296,983)  (299,864,187)  (242,864,187)

 2,001,431,265  2,329,454,988  1,650,421,295  2,084,371,230 

 Balances with Banks
The Group has a number of bank deposits, these deposits have been placed in several banks (A+ or Above)  in order to 
minimise the credit risk in accordance with the policy directions provided by the Board. In order to further minimise the 
credit risk, the Group exposure and credit rating of banks are regularly monitered and diversified investment portfolio is 
maintained. In the event of any weakening of credit metrics of a bank the Group may decide to liquidate its investments 
and move to an institution with a higher credit rating.

ii.  Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and 
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

As at 31st March 2022 Within 1 year Between Between More than Total

1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Group

Non- Derivative Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables
 

1,372,248,737  -    -    -   
  

1,372,248,737 

Borrowings 1,815,062,616  301,965,249  -   2,117,027,865 

Lease Liabilities  360,782  -    -    -    360,782 

Bank Overdraft  324,537,052  -    -    -    324,537,052 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

37 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
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As at 31st March 2021 Within 1 year Between Between More than Total

1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Non- Derivative Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables  2,049,390,480  -    -    -    2,049,390,480 

Borrowings  1,296,730,165  142,094,560  -    1,438,824,725 

Lease Liabilities  1,508,430  485,415  -    -    1,993,845 

Bank Overdraft  132,699,932  -    -    -    132,699,932 

As at 31st March 2022 Within 1 year Between Between More than Total

1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Company

Non- Derivative Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 1,264,874,861  -    -    -   
 

1,264,874,861 

Borrowings 1,629,962,103  149,601,249  -    -   1,779,563,352 

Lease Liabilities  360,782  -    360,782 

Bank Overdraft  205,255,002  -    -    -    205,255,002 

As at 31st March 2021 Within 1 year Between Between More than Total

1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Non- Derivative Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables  1,878,183,861  -    -    -    1,878,183,861 

Borrowings  1,230,012,445  60,526,308  -    -    1,290,538,753 

Lease Liabilities  1,508,430  485,415  1,993,845 

Bank Overdraft  47,719,877  -    -    -    47,719,877 

iii.  Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates- will affect 
the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

 (a) Currency Risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than 
Sri Lankan Rupees. The foreign currencies in which these transactions primarily denominated are United Stated Dollars 
(USD) and Euro.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
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 Exposure to Currency Risk
The summarised quantitative data about the Group’s exposure to currency risk as reported to the Management of the 
Group based on its risk management policy was as follows:

Group Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

USD. USD USD USD

Trade Receivables  884,806  657,071  894,985  642,374 

Trade Payables  (5,820,934)  (9,027,151)  (5,589,659)  (8,729,912)

Net Statement of Financial Position Exposure  (4,936,128)  (8,370,081)  (4,694,674)  (8,087,538)

 Exposure to Currency Risk

As at 31st March 2022 2021

USD USD

Trade Payables - Foreign Creditors  5,820,934  9,027,151 

Gross Statement of Financial Position Exposure  5,820,934  9,027,151 

The following significant exchange rates were applicable during the year

Average Rate Reporting Date Spot Rate

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

USD. USD USD USD

USD  205.22  188.39  292.00  199.00 

 Sensitivity Analysis
A strengthening of the Rs, as indicated below, against the USD at 31st March 2022 would have increased/(decreased) the 
Equity and Profit or Loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances 
that the Group considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. The analysis assumes that all other 
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. 

As at 31st March Strengthening Weakening

Profit or Loss
Rs.

Profit or Loss
Rs.

31st March 2022

USD (15% Movement)  254,956,920  (254,956,920)

31st March 2021

USD (10% Movement)  179,640,312  (179,640,312)

The sharp devaluation of the Sri Lanka Rupee against USD has direct as well as indirect impacts on companies operating 
in Sri Lanka. Currently, the impact on the Company from forex movements mainly arise from the revaluation of the Group’s 
USD denominated borrowings and supplier liabilities as required by IFRS and do not entail an actual cash transaction 
loss. 

37 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
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 (b) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Groups exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s 
long term debt obligation. The Group utilises various financial instruments to manage exposures to interest rate risks.

At the reporting date, the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments were as follows: 

Carrying Amount

As at 31st March 2022 2021

Rs. Rs.

Variable Rate Instruments
Financial Liabilities

Long Term Loans  434,635,386  216,707,020 

Import Demand Loans  1,682,392,479  1,222,117,705 

Bank Overdrafts  324,537,052  132,699,932 

 2,441,564,917  1,571,524,656 

 Cash Flow Sensitivity Analysis for Variable Rate Instruments
The Group is exposed to changes in market interest rates through bank borrowings at variable interest rates.

Profit or Loss

As at 31st March
800 bp

 Increase
800 bp

 Decrease

Rs. Rs.

31st March 2022
Variable Rate Instruments  (195,325,193)  195,325,193 

Cash Flow Sensitivity (Net)  (195,325,193)  195,325,193 

Interest rates have shown a sharp increase due to the policy rate adjustments by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka. The interest 
rates on most of our loans and borrowings are currently on a floating basis. As such, our financial performance may be 
negatively affected by changes in prevailing interest rates in the financial market.

37.2 Capital Management 
The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain share holder, creditor and market confidence and 
to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital and level of dividends 
to ordinary shareholders.

The Group’s Net Debt to adjusted Equity ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Group Company

As at 31st March 2022 2021 2022 2021

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Total Liabilities             4,274,234,741  3,931,614,872  3,631,105,933  3,491,559,001

Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents Favourable  (326,240,025)  (125,559,042)  (315,863,259)  (123,496,141)

Net Debt                                                                                             3,947,994,716  3,806,055,830  3,315,242,674  3,368,062,859 

Total Equity                                                                                                3,796,420,604  2,718,379,980  3,462,305,219  2,569,234,329 

Net Debt to Equity Ratio 104% 140% 96% 131%

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to Capital Management during the year and the Group is not subject to 
externally imposed capital requirements.
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38 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in 
making the measurements.

 Level 1 : Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

 Level 2 : Valuation techniques based on observable inputs.

 Level 3 : Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs

38.1  Financial Instruments carried at Fair Value and Valuation Bases
The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period, by the level in the 
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized.

Company

As at 31st March 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Fair Value through OCI 29,344,528 - - 29,344,528

29,344,528 - - 29,344,528

Company

As at 31st March 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Fair Value through OCI  29,017,194  -    -    29,017,194 

Derivatives - Fair value through PL -  24,909,645 -  24,909,645 

 29,017,194  24,909,645  -    53,926,839 

38.2 Fair Value of Financial Instruments carried at Amortized Cost
The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and the Group’s estimate of fair values of those financial assets and 
liabilities not presented on the Group’s Statement of Financial Position at fair value.

2022

As at 31st March Carrying
 Amount

Fair 
Value

Rs. Rs.

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents  326,240,025  326,240,025 

Trade and Other Receivables  2,218,671,203  2,218,671,203 

Amounts due from Related Companies  87,064,544  87,064,544 

Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables  1,372,248,737  1,372,248,737 

Interest Bearing Borrowings  2,117,027,865  2,117,027,865 

Amount Due to Related company  1,243,932  1,243,932 

Bank Overdraft  324,537,052  324,537,052 
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 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents and balances with banks approximate the fair value as theses are 
short term in nature.

 Trade and Other Receivables         
Trade and other receivables are expected to be settled within one year from the reporting date and hence the discounting 
impact would be immaterial. Therefore carrying amount approximate the fair value as at the reporting date.

Tax recoverable, deposits and prepayments, prepayments to suppliers and advances amounting to Rs. 508,084,012,/- (2021 
- Rs. 347,165,807) have been excluded as they are not financial instruments.

 Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year from the reporting date and hence the discounting 
impact would be immaterial. Therefore carrying amount approximate the fair value as at the reporting date.

 Interest Bearing Borrowings
 Long term borrowings are repriced either monthly, quartely or semi annually in line with the changes in the market rates.

Hence carrying value of these borrowings approximate the fair value.Other borrwings are short term in nature and hence 
carrying value approximate the fair value.

38.3 Categorization of Financial Assets and Liabilities as at the Reporting Date

Classification Fair Value

Group -2022 Amortized
 Cost

FVTPL FVOCI Other
 Financial 
Liabilities

Level 1 Level 2

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Financial Instrument

Trade and Other 
Receivables

   
2,218,671,203  -    -    -    -    -   

Amount due from 
Related Parties  87,064,544  -    -    -    -    -   

Other Financial Assets  -    -    29,344,528  -    29,344,528  -   

Cash and Cash 
Equipments  326,240,025  -    -    -    -    -   

Financial liabilities

Trade and Other 
Payables  -    -    -   

 
1,372,248,737  -    -   

Interest Bearing 
Borrowings  -    -    -   

 
2,117,027,865  -    -   

Amounts due to  
Related  Companies  -    -    -    1,243,932 - -

Bank Overdraft  -    -    -    324,537,052  -    -   

Leases - - -  360,782 - -
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38 Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
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Classification Fair Value
Group -2021 Amortized 

Cost
FVTPL FVOCI Other

 Financial 
Liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.

Financial 
Instrument
Trade and Other 
Receivables  2,304,886,945  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Amount due from 
Related Parties  96,053,049  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Other Financial 
Assets  -    -    29,017,194  -    29,017,194  -    -   
Cash and Cash 
Equipments  125,559,042  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Derivatives 
financial assets  -    24,909,645  -    -    -   -  24,909,645 

Financial 
liabilities -   
Trade and Other 
Payables  -    -    -    2,049,390,480  -    -    -   
Interest Bearing 
Borrowings  -    -    -    2,010,190,862  -    -   -
Amounts due 
to  Related  
Companies  -    -    -    1,205,467 - -  -   
Bank Overdraft  -    -    -    132,699,932  -    -   -
Leases - - -  1,993,845 - - -

39 ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND ITS IMPACT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The country’s current economic crisis presents the most significant threat in our immediate risk landscape. We are aware 
of the inevitable short-term pressures that will arise from these conditions and have taken corrective measures to minimize 
these impacts.

As at end March 2022 inflation rate was 18.7%. However, it has been escalated up to 61% at the end July 2022. Exchange 
rates also observed a notable fluctuation after the balance sheet date and has not adjusted in the current year financial 
statements since the conditions that gave rise to the gain/(loss) did not exist as of 31st March 2022.

The Monetary Board of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka (CBSL) has decided to increase the Standing Deposit Facility Rate 
(SDFR) and the Standing Lending Facility Rate (SLFR). The depletion of foreign reserves has put restrictions on imports and 
affected supplies.

The Company has taken the following measures to ensure it continuity of its operations as a going concern.

 Increase of Interest Rate
Increase of Interest rates have impacted to the organization working capital. Finance cost for short term loans have 
increased and has impacted to the net profits of the Company.

Company and the Group is in the process of taking steps to minimizing the above impact by obtaining advances from 
customers, reduce debtors outstanding and negotiating credit terms with its suppliers. 

Fluctuations in Foreign Currency
The Rupee depreciation has negatively impacted the imports of the company while positively impacting the company’s 
export sales. In order to overcome the negative impact of dollar fluctuations, the company continues to pursue the 
expansion of its global presence and explore new markets.

Over the medium-to-long term, we are confident that Sri Lanka’s economy will stabilize as a result of fiscal consolidation 
measures, structural reforms and an IMF engagement. We are firm in our belief that Sri Lankan businesses will demonstrate 
their characteristic resilience in responding to the challenges presented by the economic fallout and will emerge as 
stronger, resilient and more agile organizations.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022

Shareholding As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

From -To No. of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares % No. of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares %

1-1,000 14,193 12,329,521 2.29 13,929 12,406,708 2.31

1,001-10,000 6,702 16,926,905 3.15 6,478 15,750,128 2.93

10,001-100,000 926 28,591,334 5.32 919 28,257,096 5.26

100,001-1,000,000 128 33,585,640 6.25 130 36,876,001 6.86

1,000,001-10,000,000 14 446,079,030 82.99 18 444,222,497 82.64

Total 21,963 537,512,430 100.00 21,474 537,512,430 100.00

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

No. of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares % No. of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares %

Resident 21,922 533,369,480 99.23 21,432 533,063,103 99.17

Non-Resident 41 4,142,950 0.78 42 4,449,327 0.83

Total 21,963 537,512,430 100.00 21,474 537,512,430 100

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

No. of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares % No. of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares %

Individual 21,657 89,188,371 16.59 21,210 110,729,588 26.48

Institutional 306 448,324,059 83.41 264 426,782,842 73.52

Total 21,963 537,512,430 100.00 21,474 537,512,430 100
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TOP 20 SHAREHOLDERS 

No. Name As at 31st March 2022

Shareholding %

1 Iconic Trust (Pvt) Ltd  156,866,167  29.18 

2 Sierra Holdings (Pvt) Ltd  143,354,345  26.67 

3 Hatton National Bank PLC / Carlines Holdings (Pvt) Ltd  50,487,671  9.39 

4 Hatton National Bank PLC / Almas Organization (Pvt) Ltd  45,311,229  8.43 

5 Amana Bank PLC/ Almas Organization (Pvt) Ltd  13,511,934  2.51 

6 Mr. D. S. Panditha  11,738,918  2.18 

7 Almas Organization (Pvt) Ltd  9,660,000  1.80 

8 Tranz Dominion,L.L.C.  3,600,000  0.67 

9 Hatton National Bank PLC / Mr. R. E. Rambukwelle  2,757,000  0.51 

10 Employees Trust Fund Board  2,294,368  0.43 

11 Mr. D. K. A. K. Weerathunga  1,990,000  0.37 

12 Merchant Bank of Sri Lanka & Finance PLC/ Mr. R. H. Munasinghe  1,633,798  0.30 

13 Merchant Bank of Sri Lanka & Finance PLC/ Mr. R. G. Senevirathne and Ms. A. Senevirathne  1,623,600  0.30 

14 Corona T Stores (Pvt) Ltd  1,250,000  0.23 

15 Dr. C. C. James  1,000,000  0.19 

16 Mr. D. M. P. De Zoysa  975,000  0.18 

17 Seylan Bank PLC/ Mr. R. G. Senevirathne  910,000  0.17 

18 Union Investments (Pvt) Ltd  821,500  0.15 

19 Ms. G. A. M. M. Bandara  703,792  0.13 

20 Southasia Economic and Trade Cooperation (Pvt) Ltd  695,599  0.13 
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  
SIERRA CABLES PLC – REG. NO. PQ 166

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 19TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company will be held on Friday, 23rd September 2022 
at 10.00 a.m. as an on-line audio-visual meeting with arrangements for the on-line meeting platform made at LOLC Holdings PLC, No.100/1, 
Sri Jayawardenapura Mawatha, Rajagiriya.

The business to be brought before the meeting will be:

1. To receive and consider the Report of the Directors and Statement of Accounts of the Company for the Financial Year ended 
31st March 2022 with the Auditors’ Report thereon.

2. To re-elect Mr. P. E. A. B. Perera as a Director, who retires by rotation in terms of Article 91 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company.

3. To re-elect Mr. W. A. P. Perera as a Director, who retires by rotation in terms of Article 91 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company.

4. To re-elect Prof. A. K. W. Jayawardena as a Director, who retires by rotation in terms of Article 91 of the Articles of Association 
of the Company.

5. To re-elect Ms. S. S. Kotakadeniya as a Director who was appointed to the Board on 11th February 2022, retiring in terms of 
Article 97 of the Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible, offers herself for re-election.

6. To re-elect Mr. P. Weerasingha as a Director who was appointed to the Board on 11th February 2022 retiring in terms of Article 
97 of the Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

7. To re-elect Mr. D. S. K. Amarasekara as a Director who was appointed to the Board on 06th June 2022 retiring in terms of Article 
97 of the Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

8.  To re-appoint Mr. D. S. Panditha as an Executive Director. A Notice has been received from a shareholder in terms of Section 
211 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 of the intention to propose the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLUTION
 “That Mr. D.S. Panditha who reached the age of 70 years on 14th July 2022 be and is hereby re-appointed as an Executive 

Director of the Company for a period of one year or until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting whichever occurs 
first and it is hereby declared that the age limit of 70 years referred to in Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 shall 
not apply to the said Director”

9. To re-appoint M/s KPMG, Chartered Accountants as the auditors for the ensuing financial year at a remuneration to be fixed by 
the Directors.

10. To approve in terms of Companies (Donations) Act No. 26 of 1951 the making of donations by the Directors as determined by 
them for the current Financial Year and until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board  
Sierra Cables PLC

 

(Sgd.) 
L O L C Corporate Services (Private) Limited  
Secretaries

31st August 2022  
Colombo
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FORM OF PROXY
SIERRA CABLES PLC – REG. NO. PQ 166

I/ We ………………………………………………………………..……………….………………………………………………………………
………………………… of ………………………………………………………..………………………..……………….………………………
………………………………………………………….…  being a member/members of the above named Company  hereby appoint;
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...…………………………

…………………………. of ………………………………………………………………………………………………… whom failing 

Mr. W. A. P. Perera    or failing him

Mr. D. S. Panditha   or failing him

Prof. A. K. W. Jayawardena   or failing him

Mr. B. W. N. Rupasinghe    or failing him

Mr. P. E. A. B. Perera   or failing him

Ms.. T. A. P. Weerasinghe   or failing her

Ms. S. S. Kotakadeniya   or failing her

Mr. D. S. K. Amarasekara   or failing him

Mr. P. Weerasingha    

as my/our proxy  to represent me/us and vote on my/our behalf at the 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held as 
an online meeting on 23rd September 2022 at 10.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof and at every poll which may be taken in 
consequence of the aforesaid Meeting. 

Please indicate your preference by placing an “X” against the resolution.  

For Against

1. To adopt the Annual Repot of the Board of Directors and the Statement of Accounts for the Financial Year 
ended 31st March 2022 with the report of the Auditors thereon. 

2. To re-elect Mr. P.E.A.B. Perera as a Director, who retires by rotation in terms of Article 91 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company.

3. To re-elect Mr. W.A.P Perera as a Director, who retires by rotation in terms of Article 91 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company.

4. To re-elect Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardena as a Director, who retires by rotation in terms of Article 91 of the Articles 
of Association of the Company.

5. To re-elect Ms. S.S. Kotakadeniya as a Director who retires in terms of Article 97 of the Articles of Association 
of the Company.

6. To re-elect Mr. P. Weerasingha as a Director who retires in terms of Article 97 of the Articles of Association of 
the Company.

7. To re-elect Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekara as a Director who retires in terms of Article 97 of the Articles of Association 
of the Company.

8.  To re-appoint Mr. D.S. Panditha as an Executive Director.

9. To re-appoint M/s KPMG - Chartered Accountants, as the External Auditors of the Company for the ensuing 
financial year at a remuneration to be fixed by the Directors.

10. To authorize Directors to make donations. 

dated this  ………...  day of  ………………………. Two Thousand and Twenty Two.

……………………………….......................
Signature of shareholder        
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NOTES:
1  Please return the completed Form of Proxy after filling in legibly your full name 

and address, signing on the space provided and filling in the date of signature.

2  The Proxy shall:

 a) in the case of an individual, be under the hand of the shareholder or his or 
her attorney,  and if signed by an attorney, a notarially certified copy of the 
Power of Attorney should be  attached to the completed Form of Proxy if it 
has not already been registered with the Company.

 b) if the shareholder is a company or a corporation, be either under its 
common seal or under  the hand of an officer or attorney authorized by such 
organization in that behalf in  accordance with its Articles of Association or 
Constitution.

3  Please indicate with an ‘X’ how the proxy should vote on each Resolution. If no 
indication is  given, the proxy shall exercise his/her discretion and vote as he/
she thinks fit.

4  The completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at LOLC Corporate 
Services (Private)  Limited, Secretaries to Sierra Cables PLC, 4th Floor, No. 34, 
Sir Mohamed Macan Markar  Mawatha, Colombo 03, or scanned and emailed 
to corporateservices@lolc.com with the  email subject titled “SIERRA AGM 
PROXY” not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of 
the Meeting.



CORPORATE INFORMATION

NAME OF THE COMPANY
Sierra Cables PLC

COMPANY RE-REGISTRATION NO.
PQ 166 (Under Companies Act No.07 of 2007)

REGISTERED OFFICE
112, Havelock Road, Colombo 05

COMPANY SECRETARIES
L O L C Corporate Services (Private) Limited
No. 100/1, Sri Jayawardenapura Mawatha, Rajagiriya
Tel: 0112 663 000
Fax: 0112 307 380
Email: corporateservices@lolc.com

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND NATURE OF 
OPERATIONS
The principal activity of the company is manufacturing, 
marketing and distribution of power cables.

AUDITORS
KPMG (Chartered Accountants)
32 A, Sir Mohomed Macan Marker Mawatha
P.O. Box 186, Colombe 03.
Tel: 011 5426426
Fax: 011 2445872
E-mail: frt@kpmg.lk

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Sierra Industries (Private) Limited
Sierra Cables East Africa Limited, Kenya

EQUITY-ACCOUNTED INVESTEES
T & G Lanka (Private) Limited - Associate
The Tea Leaf Resort Holding (Pvt) Ltd  - Associate
Cables PTE Limited, Fiji - Joint Venture

BANKERS
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
Sampath Bank PLC
Bank of Ceylon
People's Bank
DFCC Bank
Cargills Bank Limited
Hatton National Bank
Standard Chartered Bank
Habib Bank Limited
Bank of China

DOMICILE AND LEGAL FORM
Sierra Cables PLC is a Limited Liability Company incorporated 
and domiciled in Sri Lanka.

Road Colombo 05 and principle place of business is located at;

39/1A, Galwarusa Road, Korathota, Kaduwela.
Tel: 011 4412000-4
Fax: 011 2770291, 011 4412573
E-mail: info@sierracables.com

Issued Ordinary shares of the Company is stated as listed on 
the Colombo Sock Exchange since 22nd November 2005.
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Sierra Cables PLC
Co. Reg. No. PQ 166
P.O. Box 6, Kaduwela, Sri Lanka.
Tel : +94 11 4412000 - 4
Fax : +94 11 4412573
E-mail : info@sierracables.com
Web : www.sierracables.com
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